THE SEATTER FAMILY
GEORGE and CAROLINA SEATER
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Gerge & Carolina (Erichsen) Seatter with Betty {(Dodds) Menzies
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CAROLINA (Tena) ERICHSEN was boru in 1861 at Aarhus, Dewmark, Tn
the early 1880's her father Niels aund brother carl Immigrated to Manitoba.
renters and stone masons by trede and in a few yYears sent
oney for Niel's wile and three daughters to ‘oin them. The familv moved
to Theodore about 1886, Niels and Carl worked with Niels Nielsen building
pridges and stone buildings., Tn 1894 they joinad with many in the comm-
ity to build the Orkney Church and later the School,

Theodore saw its firvst wedding mid October 1896, when George and
Carolina Seatter were married, It was a beautiful fall and the community
threshing was done after the wedding, Lena had been a dressmaker in
Depmark and brought her talent and experience with her. She worked in
the communities where she lived and after she was married she became well
known for her quilting and was alwavs in demand at community quilting bees.

When Lena came from Demmark she brought a wooden trunk that had be-
louged to her grandmother. Shortlv after arriving in Manitoba the house
her family lived in caught fire. Lena, although ill, managed to pull the
Tull, heavy trunk out of the house - the only thing saved. The trunk was
counstructed with wooden pegs but decorative meral bands were put on for
extra strenpth for the trip to Canada. It has recently been restored by
her grandson and still remains on the homestead!

George and Lena had three daughters - FRANCES, CAROLINA(Tulla) and
GEURCGINA, who died at age two. Lena's parents moved in with the Seattersy
1 1898 and din 1906 a two~story lumber house was built bv George and Niels.
A great chasge from the original log house, even with its additions!

George wis a qulet man who liked to read and who took a great Interest
i his community. o was elected to the Board of Trustees of the Orknev
fohool dn the early vears and held the position for 38 vears!

Frances and Tulla were Orkonev School graduates, Tulla married Jock
Rennie and

farmed just west of Yorkton, Thev had two children, Margaret
and Walter. Frances tock her high schooling in Yorkten and then went to
Normal School in Saskatoen iun 1919, She taught at Reaman School and then
married Stewart Dodds in 1822.

STEWART and FRANCES (Seatter) DODDS

STEWART was born in 1887 at Selkirk, Scotland where his father was
fead pardener on a large estate. By thirteen his parents had died and
e started an appreuticeship at a grocershop where he lived and was paid
fwelve cents a week,

In the spring of 1906 Stewart immigrated to Canada, arriving in
Yorkton that fall. After a winter of cutting wood in the cold and waist
deer snow for Dave Fergus, he was ready to return to Scotland but did not
bave enough money for the fare. Stewart worked for Frank Reaman, Gleason's
and John Parterson, doing general farm work for several vears, In 1913
he purchased a team of horses from Reaman for 3430.00. That vear his
brother Suam arrived and they rented land at Foam Lake aad later bought
34 of seetion seven from Pete Rousay,

April 6, 1922 Stewart married FRANCES SFATTER and they rented Lairg
farm. They moved to the Seatter homestead 1n 1924,

Both Stewart and Frances were verv active in the Wheat Pool, Co-op
and Crediv Union. Stewart was a member of the Wheat Pool and served on
Commitrtees for manv vears. In 1943 they helped organize the Yorkton Credit
Unica. Frances was the first president and later an enplovee for ten

Years, retiring in 1968, Stewart served as a director for manv of the
farly vears.

131




Rve L

Always interested in education, Frances was a trustee of the Orkney
School Board fTor several vears after her father rotired. She also did
much work witch the girls in Homecrait Clubs, Io 1935 she went back
teaching, for a year at Orkney School and then a few vears at Clvde and
Rocky Dell Schoels, Trances was active in the Women's Co-op Guild and
a Director of the Yorkton Fairboard, taking special interest in the
school work division and later the fancy work, She was presented with
a life membership for her 35 years of service.

gtewart loved his garden and was proud of his straight, weedless rows
and especially of his beautiful tomatoes. He enjoved picking berries and
had the happy knack of returning with the very best and bigpest berries
on the top of the pail. Frances did her part by cleaning and preserving.
The cellar was always full of good food for the winter and spring.

Stewart and Frances had four children, all of whom attended COrknev
gchool for at least part of their education,

Stewart & Frances (Seatter)

Dodds Family — ca. 1937
Children: Robert, George, Anne & Betty

The youngest, BETTY, born in 19352, went to Orkney School until
finishing Cr. V(1943). Tt was then easier to send her to Yorkton as Anne i
and George were golng to High School there., She took Home Economics at
the U of § and went to Swift Current to teach. She met and married Leonard
Menzies, an Optometrist, and they raised a family of five.

ANNE, born in 1927, finished her schooling in Yorkton and then became
an R,N. graduating from the Regina General Hospital, She married Walter
Turlock, who was in the Armed Forces and they had two sons. They were
stationed at many places including a stint in Cermany, When Wally retired,
they settled in Kelowna, B.C. Anne has since gone back to nursing and is
presently the Director of Resident Care Nursing, a 300 bed unit, part of
the Kelowna General Hospital, Wally passed away in June 1988.

GEORGE was born ian 1925. He took his Gr. 10 and 11 in Yorkton and
then joined the Navy., After the war he finished his High School and later
went to Calgary to work. He met and married Muriel Warren, a aurse who

132

g?-{ up in hglx%ngtou. George later became a Chartered Accountant and

WO ced for the Edmonton Public School Beoard and then for the Alberta

Govarnment. Geoorge and Muriel had three daushters and a son George
o ' ‘ . . g = Iy A L R
passed away 1n Februarv 1988, )

YT o — Ty o i 2 .

ROBERT, the oldest, was born in 1923. See Robert Dodds historw

{L 1o R!: George, Anne, Betty & Robert — 1987

ROBERT DODDS

L923 ROEERT, the oldest son of Stewart and Frances Dodds, was born in
23. e went to Simpson School for 1 vear and then 1 i
education at Orkney, @ complered s
He worked on the family farm and during the fall spent sometime
on threshing gangs.
[ November 1947 he married EVA EDGAR. He
: d . r parents Kate(Hallid:
and Fredrick farmed north of Yorkton, (attidey)
. Sifeﬁt and Eva started farming on the home farm in 1949 with horses
e sti T i ‘
e arms the land his grandfather, George Sgatter, homesteaded in
Robert and Eva have two children, Ken and Linda,
; §EN attended Orknev School for one vear. At that time school was
Yeld in the Church, He then went to St. Magnus and graduated from the
?rkton Composite ligh School, He received his B.Comm. from the Univer-
;lty.of Saskatchewan in Saskatoon in 1972, He has been emploved with
iorrls Industries Ltd, since May 1972, He started working in the Account-
Png DepF., then later as Programmer Analyst and is currently the Data
aricess%ng Ménager. In 1975 he obtained his Certified Management Account-
Hd designation. Iu 1974 Ken married Myrna Stainger, daughter of George
and Inez Stainger, They have two children, Heather and Kevin,
. LINDA attended St. Magnus, Yorkton Composite High School and grad-
o ed from the Yorkton Regional High School, She then received her R.N
| Ehe Ke%sey Institute of Applied Arts & Sciences in Saskatoon, Sask
£: 97? Linda married Jim Wingert from Flin Flen, Manitoba. Thev have
a[g Chlldren, Richard and Susan. Jim is with the Taxation Depar&meut
1d Linda nurses at the Grace Hospital in Winnipeg, Manitoba.
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CAROLINE (Seatter) RENNIE

CAROLINE(TULLA) WILHELMINA SEATTER was born December §, 19061 at
Yorkton, MNorth West Territories, daughter of Georse and Caroline (nec
Erickson) Seatter.

She was raised on the family farm in the Orkney area and attended
Orkney School and Church.

Caroline was an active member of the Orknev congregation and Westview
United Church and also the U.C,W,

On February 14, 1923 she was married to JOHN TEOMSON RENNIE. The
couple farmed in the Yorkton area until 1949 when they retired.

Caroline passed away on March 23, 1981,

John Thomson Rennie was born April 21, 1894 in Peebles, Scotland
and came to Canada in 1913. The following vear he enlisted in Yorkton
in the 16th Light Horse Regiment, 1In Winnipeg he transfered into the
Mototr Machinegun Brigade and went overseas with the first contingent.

On his return to Yorkton in 1919, he was emploved with the later Peter
Rousay.

He was an acitve member of the Wheat Pool committee in its' earliest
years. He was director of the Yorkton Credit Union and was one of the
first in the organization of the Co-op. John passed away on Mav 30, 1963.

Caroline and John had two children.

John & Caroline {Seatter} Rennie George & Margaret (Rennie) Billyard
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MARGARET SEATTER RENNIE born Januarv 25, 1924 in Yorkton. She attended

.
Stwpson Schoel.

On May 2tn, 1940, Margaret was uanidted in marriage to GEORGE W, BILLYARD

ToMr. & Mrs. 5. Dodds.,

the home

‘ George Williarm Billvard was born on Marcn 12, 1913 at Bredenbury, Sask,
Ceonrge was in the Roval Canadian Alr Force. FHe was stationed in many parts
o7 (Canada and he also served overseas.

Upen his retirement they made thelr home in Clareshom, Alta, Mr.
zitlvard died on August 3, 1988,

AThe couple had six children. #MRS. HERMAN (CAROL) COUBLET of Mable
Lake, B.C., MRS, ALLAN (BETTY) HEWARD of Granum, Alta., MR, ADREL BILLYARD
of Lethbridge, Alta., MR, DALE BILLYARD of Clareshom, Alta., MRS. DWAIXE
(¥RAN) TROTTER of Fort McLeod, Alta., MRS. BARRY (LYNN) GUY of Moose Jaw,

Sask. They zlso have thirteen grandchildren.

%

Walter & Pearl {Schrader} Rennie & Family
Back Row (L to RI. Murray, Karen, Dianne Front: Pearl & Walter

WALTER HAROLD RENNLE was born March 6, 1926 in Yorkton, Sask.

Walter artended Simpson School. Walter liked the outdoors so he chose
farping for his occupation, helping his parents until they retired in 1959,

In that vear Walter was united in marriage to PEARL SCHRADER.

Walter and Pearl carried on Farming until 1980 when the farm was sold.

Walter now is working for Morris Industry.

The couple have three children.

TAREN J. BINNIE was born in Yorkton, and attended Simpson School and
wr Yorkton ‘fonal High School. Karen then entered the University of
Saskatoon. She has a degree in Bachelor of Artg (1935) and
also Bachelor of Fducation (L987). She is emploved at Tegieriam, Alta.

DTANE M. ZENNIE was born in Yorkteon and attended Si.3 1 wchool and
the Yorkton Pegional High Schoel. She also attended the J-skatoon Business
College.  She is working in the U. of 5. at the Small Animal Science Vet.
Dept.  She da a Steno 1.

MURRAY . REWNIE was born in Yorkton, and attended the Simpson Scheol
and the Yorkton Regional figh School., He is now attending the College of
Arts and Sciences, taking his 4th vear in Computer Sclence.

ratchewan,
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THE WISEMAN FAMILY

submitted by: Elizabeth Weaver Pauhlus

HUMBLE Wiseman, my great-great grandfather, was a Scotchman who
fought in the Battle of Waterloo in 1815 against Hapoleoun. His tele-
scope has been handed down te a fifth generation recipient.

His son, myv great grandfather was 105 and still Captain of his own
ship. During a storm, his ship was damaged and was sinking. He sent
all bhis crew tc safety and he went down with his ship.

My grandfather, another HUMBLE Wiseman, was born at McDuff, Scot-
land on Mav 8, 1819. He married RUTH WATSON in 1844. Thev left Scot-
land and landed in Quebec in 1846. My father, WILLAIM DUFF Wiseman
was born in Quebec on December 25, 1846. Grandfather, Humble Wiseman,
was a stonemason and a carpenter by trade but took up land near Quebec,
becoming a farmer and raising sheep and cattle.

In 1866, our family moved to the Muskoka District for better pas-
tures. The men cut the large trees, trimmed them and sent the logs down
river to Toronto. Some they hauled with oxen to use for building and
fuel.

The fleece from the sheep was spun into wool varn. Socks, mitts,
touques, scarves and even underwear were knitted by the wemen. FEven
some men knew how to knit.

Men used snowshoes te get over the deep snow to their trap lines
or to get supplies.

The settlers helped one another with house and barn raising bees,
warping cloth parties, quilting bees and log hauling. Thev also met
for dancing and social enjoyment.

In the spring the maple trees were tapped, the sap collected and
then the sugar-cff was done. It tock an experienced person to know how
long to becil the sap before it was right for syrup and sugar. Thick
syrup poured onto nice clean snow hardened into very good taffv. Maple
syrup was sold and brought in much needed money.

My dad, William D. Wiseman spoke of Owen Sound and Barnev's Bav
and rowing on the lovely lakes in summer. Winter time thev'd slide on
the frozen lakes with bobsleds, '

My Dad went to school for a few years. French was taught on one
side of the room, English on the other, with a log dividing the roomn.
However, when recess time came, all kids plaved and talked together.

In 1884, it was a dry vear at Muskoka, so grandfather Humble Wise-—
man and dad decided to take their families west to York Colomnv, N.W.T.
They came by rail to Winnipeg, then leaded their worldly goods onto
wagons drawn by oxen and started for the Colony. Most of the group
and bigger children walked, driving the cows and sheep. My Aunt Jean
Ferguson, Dad's sister, rode on the wagon.

Aunt Jean's husband staved in Winnipeg to work and earn much needed
money. He was a very good carpenter, but several months later he fell
off a ladder and died. 1t was so sad.

Aunt Jean had three sons, JOUN, HUMBLE and WILLIAM and three dau-
ghters, JESSIE, RUTH and ISABEL(BELLA). They took homesteads around
what later was the village of Orcadin. The two oldest girls, Jessie and
Ruth went out teaching and Bella staved home and helped Aunt Jean.
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My grandfather, Humble Wiseman, and mv Dad took up homesteads and
nre—omptions on 20~26-4 west of second meridian. Dad's place was the
;mrth half and grandfather's the south half. Dad put up a log house
and grandfather, a brick heouse.

With their oxen, thev bBroke up land and planted some wheat, but
rore oats., Around their homes they planted maple seeds and hops.

After harvesting, the surplus oats were bagged and sold in York
Colonyv, while the wheat was hand-cleaned, bagged and taken to Whitewocod
where it was ground into flour.

On one of these trips, Dad camped in the Qu'Appelle Valley. That
cvening an Indian Chief dinvited Dad to share siupper with them. Next
morning before leaving, Dad again thanked the Chief. The Chief asked
pad if he knew what he had for supper. Well, it turned ocut it was
skunk!!

Dad's mother, Ruth Watson Wiseman died quietly in her sleep con
February 6, 1896 at age 78. She was the first person buried in the
new cemetery behind the new stone Orkney Presbyterian Church,

Grandfather, Humble Wiseman, died May 11, 1903 and is alsc buried
in the Orkney Cemetery.

William Sr. & Juliana (Balint} Wiseman
L to R): William Sr., Juliana, Bessie {on lap), Margaret (en ¢ .air)

My Dad married JULTANNA BALINT on December 4, 1899 My Mother was
born in Hungary, a daughter of a Laird's son, Stephen Balint Sr. Her
family came to Canada in 1893 and settled in the Otthon District. When
the Crand Trunk Pacific, mow the C,N.R. built a rail line to their district
and put up a station, grandpa Balint named it "Otthon'", which in iun-
garian means ''Home'".
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My parents had ten children, five boys and five girls. The bovs
were WILLIAM GEORGE, JAMES STENEN,JONN FRANCIS, MARTIN DAVID and LO&IS
DUFF, The girls werec MARGARET RUTH, ELIZABETH JEAN(BESSIE), ROSE
CHRISTINA, JESSIE and THERESA. Tater a foster daushter, ISABEL FERCUSON
came to live with us. She was the daughter of Humble Ferguson.

The Wiseman Children
Back Row (L to R): William Jr., Terisa, Jessie, Rose, William Sr. Front: Louis, Jack, Max & Jim

The Wiseman Girls — 1917
L to R): Bess, Theresa, Margaret, Jessie & Rose
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Bessie's Story

i, BESSLE (FLIZABETH JEAN) Wiseman was bora at home in 1902. 1
started school in 1907, walking the one and a half miles. The first year
mv sister Margaret, walked to school with me. T was left handed so every
time 1'd start to write, I got smacked on my hand. This made me a slow
learnct, so sad!

Winters were very cold with lots of deep snow. Sometimes the teacher
pever came. They used to light the fire in the stove and it would take
ages to get those stones to keep some heat in the place. Those that
sat near the stove were Lot, the rest were still cold, Lunches in the
tin pails or packets in the porch were frozen by dinner time.

We used slates and slate pencils the first few years. Long hard
henches to sit on, didn't have enough desks.

Miss Roland was our first teacher, then Mr. Weir. In summer T often
got a ride to school on the handle bars of his bicycle. Next teacher
was Miss McKennv, who later married Tom Garry. Next was Miss McTavish.

Subjects I liked best were Art, Agriculture and Arithmetic. TIn the
morning we had to march into the school, say the Lord's Prayer, then sit
down and start our work., We had periods of art, sewing and writing.

Games wec plaved were Anti-I-Over, using a softball, Steal Away Sticks,
foutball and baschall, using anvtvpe of a stick for a bat.

In winter hockev was plaved on a pond west of the school, acress the
rail tracks. ¥Nc one had skates. Willow sticks for hockey sticks and any
small object for pucks. 8o much fun and so happily plaved that sometimes
we didn't hear the school bell.

Teachers were mostly veryv good at helping the children with their
heavy coats and scarves.

We often caught a ride home with Frances and Caroline Seatter.

They drove with a horse and buggy, so we'd hang on or sit anvwhere there
waAs & spacea.

My schocl vears ended in 1913, During the first Worid War, saw many
local bovs march away, some never came back.

T recall walking to church with my Dad and elder sister, I was about
5. There was old Mrs. Garry with her cute little grandson, Alex Rousay.
Alsc remember the father of Bob Rousay, how he could sing, also the three
Rousay Brothers, how theyv harmonized. The Reid sisters were our choir
most of the time.

The elders never stood on the platform during service, that was just
for the minister. If the minister wasn't there, the elders led the service.

My Dad beought his first horse in 1902, named him Prince. He lived
seventeen years, was used on the land as well as the buggv. Many times
I went to town with him. Wise old horse.

T had taught Sundav School at the Orkney Church. I also belonged
to the Orkney Co-op Guild. Many times we'd walk to the meetings, carrying
our cake. Sometimes this would be several miles. Most of the women
brought their children. Was so nicell

My reminiscence of those days is remembered with much fondness.

I married ALFRED WILTLIAM WEAVER in 1928. Ve had three children,
JEAN, RUTH and WILLIAM(BILL). ALFRED died in 1936 from lebar pneumonia.
Tt was attributed to the gas in the lungs from the first World War.

I had a very hard life, bringing up the three children. I succeed-
ed due to the help of very good friends and neighbours. Shortly after
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Alfred passes away, a number of neighbours gathered togethar and put a
wood floer over the mud floors in our house.

My daughters Jean and Ruth, completed Commercial Courses at the
Yorkton Collegiate Institute. Jean became a secretarv and Ruth an
Accounting Clerk. My son Bill, attended university in Ottawa, becoming
an Electric Engineer with a degree in Physics,

Jean married Jim Graham and lives in Carbon, Alta. Thev have seven
children, Charles, Jean, Dawn, Jimmy, Robert and twins David and Don.

Ruth married John Herman and lives in Yorkton. They had three
children, Deanis, Kim and Barry.

Bill married Doreen Etmanski and lived in Ottawa, Ontario. Thev
had four children, Philip, Valarie, Cheryl and Patricia. Bill passed
away in December 1986.

Eventually I married ELZOR PAULHUS, We had a son, ROBERT, who now
works for the Dept. of Highways. He married Roxanna Balint and they
have two children, a son Lucas and a daughter Megan. They reside west
of Otthon, less than two miles from the original Stephen Balint homestead.

I have seen and lived through many changes. My home now is the Yorkton

and District Xursing Home.

The Children of William D. Wiseman and Julianna Balint

MARGARET married Tim Wallis who worked for the C.P.R, for many
vears before moving to B.C, They raised three sons, Edward (deceased)
Herbert, who lives in Calgary with his wife, Vera. They have 2 married
daughters. Llovd who lives in Vernon, B.C. and 1 daughter Margaret
Monck also in Vernon.

BESSTE, see Bessie's history.

ROSE married John Rousay. They had one son, Richard "Dick" and his
wife Hilda. They live in Indian Head, where Dick drives a bus for Grey-
hound.

JESSIE married Larry Stroud. They had 3 sons, Ronald lives in Ed-
monton, David and Arthur live in Victoria, B.C,

JAMES married Julia Meszaros. They had 2 daughters.

THERESA Hnatuik has 2 sons, Clinton who has 1 daughter and Kenneth
has one son and they live in Regina.

JOSIE married Del Nagle and has one son Tracey. They live in Calgary.
Jim lives in Theodore.

THERESA Wiseman trained for a nurse in Moose Jaw. After graduation
she moved to the U.S.A. and worked in Manhattan Hospital in New York.
She later moved to San Francisco where she met and married William Andrew.
They had one son, William McDuff who lives in Vacaville, California.
Theresa passed away in 1982.

JOHN "Jack" never married. MHe was injured in a run away and was
crippled for the rest of his life. Confined to a wheelchair, he died in
the old folks home in Wolsley,

MARTIN "Max" married Ethel Baines. They had one daughter Maxine.
Maxine works for the Bank of Montreal in Fort McMurray. Max passed away
in March 1982 at Leader, Sask.

LOULS married Dorothy Master. He moved to B.C., and worked for B.C.
Electric for many years. They had one daughter Theresa. She had 3 child—
ren, Denise Hartman, Angela Mittoni, Travis Mittoni. JTouis is retired
and living in Vernon, B.C,

e following letter was written by Theresa Wiseman Andrew of Vallejo,
> following L 1

Th
oorirornia on June L4, 1971.
[T s -

8l SO AT 4 A AT 17_\-‘[t'1 _
PORERTINGS, TO 01D FRIENDS, CLASSMATES, WEIGHBOURS AND ANYONE FOR

T ENOUG ' : g U A GRAND COMMUNITY,
TWNATE ENOUGH TO BE PART OF SUCH ! 7 _ .
}Léﬁlﬁfﬁfgéiohts will be with vou and I trust vour Homecoming will be a

areat éuccess. o ‘ '
sres HoW T REMEMBIR -- the services of old - the minister droming on until

e would sleep - the mice playing from under the stage curtain until we,
boizt older would giggle and the poor minister not aware of the mouse
a - . :
+ hecame dismaved. ,
sher MEMORLES ~-- of many wonderful people among them my parents and many
their life long friends. .
ot MEMORIES -- of the days Ellen McKen and T spent modeling the grave
stones from clay when the teacher would let us cross over1to the Church
to do just that and we played for hours around her mother's grave.
MEMORIES ~— of my first attending a funeral, Mrs. Jack Reid, a dear
friend (J.F. Reid). ‘
o MEMORTES -— of horse and buggy days and of walking to and from Church.
MEMORIES ~- of Mrs. Sinclair and all the grasshoppers that would get

i he lace of her lovely white dress.
e iEﬁOR?ES —— of loyely old hymns and the wonderful people who sang

them.

MEMORIES -- of concerts and how excited we were about our part.
The lights were never brighter and the Christmas Tree never more beau-
. i d races

MEMORIES -- of picnics and ice cream, a luxury in these ays, er
ran for precious nickles. The alder men who would hand you a nickle or
a cone no charge, like man from lleaven. . ' ‘

MEMORIES ——,of being tired, a good tiredness from being in a happy

environment and having a full stomach. - ‘ .
There isn't enough paper to record all my memories, but T will re

member as I have all my life. We were fortunate to grow up in a gocd

community.
¢OD BLESS YOU ALL."

WILLIAM (Bill) WISEMAN

WITTLTAM{Bill) Wiseman married EDNA TUBERFIELD and raised 5 child-
ren. .

GLENN married Nellie Chipeur and raised 2 daughters, Lorraine
Lysak who has 2 sons, Mitchel and Kenton, and lives in Yorkton. Kelene
lives in California.

BEVFRLY married Gordon Orth and has 2 daughters and 2 sgns. De?ra
Tripp works at the Yorkton Credit Uniom, Kerry married Cynthlg Schneider
and has 3 children, Jerilee, Alyssa and Anthony. Dallés 1s'w1th the
Bank of Commerce in Regina. His twin sister, Diana, lives in Yorkton
and works for Yorkton Photo. '

JFAN married Blake Harris and has 2 sons, Blake and Blair.

ELAINE married Morley Clark. She is divorced and has 1 daughter,
Kim Day and one son Darcy. He is divorced and has one son Dustin.

TERRY the voungest, was killed in a car crash in 1969.
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Bill and his family were very invelved in the 4-H movement, the
family raised and showed Purebred Shorthorn cattle, winning many prizes
and ribbens at the Yorkton Fair.

Bill's home broke up in 1959 and in 1970 he married ANNLIE MADDAFORD,
Bill and Annie presently are enjoving life in their home south of Yorkton.

Memories of Bill Wiseman

Bill Wiseman Jr. showing his prize shorthorn bull

The house we lived in, my Dad built of logs. He was an expert Axe-
man. Every log was hewed square and the corners were dove-tailed. This
was all done with only an axe.

My Dad also built a sleigh of poplar from the bush. He shaped the
runners with an axe and it ran for years.

My Dad's farm was a mile and a half from Orkney School. Dad helped
build the school, Dad was on the School Board with Bob McKen, George
Seatter and John Patterson. When the school was resfored, Jim and T
helped to shingle it.

I remember Mother cooking for the threshers. We had a milk house
out back of the house, where the milk was cooled in pans before we had
a separator, Mother used to skim off the cream. In the summer she also
did her cooking and baking out there.

Pete Rousay and his crew did our threshing. T worked on Bob McKen's
threshing crew. Bob was a real hard worker, he never walked, he ran.

He could eat and go in twenty minutes. TIn those days you threshed by the
bushel, so I suppose this was why he was in such a hurry.

I remember riding around on horseback with Donald McKen and Fred
lall. Donald and Fred would catch wild range horses and ride themn.

[ hauled wood from Humble Ferguson's. I hauled wood into every
house in Orcadia. That was the first winter after I left home.,

I remember Bill and Bob McKen, Bob's older sons, coming to our place
for weekends when they were training for the Army. These boys were special
friends of my Mother and Dad.
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My Mother was a mid-wife and many nights I would get out of bed to
drive mv Mother to wherever she was needed,

They uscd to have dances or house parties in the homes, Evorvene
bringing someihing. 1T especially remember the ones at Grannv Patterson's.

Rousay Brothers supplied the music.

L remember catching fish in Cussed Creek with a pitchfork. We would
cateh a bagful, take them to one of the homes and thev would cook them
Forous.

I remember 1/4 of a mile from home you could go out sit and pick
peautiful cranberries by the handfuls. I remember one of wmy first business
ventures, [ took a sack and my little wagon and went picking. T had to
come back across the creek and almost lost them, I can still hear Grannyv
Patterson saying, "Here comes Billy with the cranberries”., 1 got paid
15 vcents a bag.

I was about 16 or 17 years old when T left home and went to Belle
Plaine to work. I worked there for 7 years.

In my later vears T was involved with my family in 4-H. We raised
anc showed Purebred Shorthorn cattle, winning numerous prizes.

The.

JESSIE (Wiseman) and LAWRENCE STROUD

JESSIE MARY WISEMAN, born March 9, 1907, Jdied June 1946, married
LAWRENCE MATTHEW STROUD, Julv 4, 1926,

Thev had a2 familyv of three sons and two dauzhters,

RONALD Stroud, born April 17, 1927 at Orkney, Sask. He married
HLSAYO MARIOE MATSUNE on July 4, 1953, Their children consist of a
daughter LORI LYNNE, born August 16, 1957 at Whitehorse, Yukon, and she
is a school teacher, She married Gregory Robert Whalen, April 14, 1984
anc they have a son Matthew Caleb, born December 15, 1985 and another
son Nathaniel Themas, born November 23, 1988.

WILLLAM DAVID Stroud, born April 14, 1929, is a retired Major of the
R.C.A.¥. He married MARILYN RAY MITTS on February 16, 194%, Their children
consist of a son, WILLIAM BRUCE, born February 10, 1950, He married HELEN
IREXE RENY, July 31, 1973. Thev have a daughter Katherine Irene, borm on
February 5, 1976 and a son William Christopher, born May 24, 1979. A
daughter PATRICIA LYNN, born March 22, 1951. She married ROCER THOMAS
SEWTON an Operations Manager. Their familv consists of one son and four
daughters, TYLER WINSTON THOMAS, born January 23, 1982: HEATHER LYNN
born July 26, 1985; SUSAN DIANE, born February 7, 1956 and Office Manager:
DORA KTLEEN, born Januarv 4, 1960, a Programmer married to Wolf Schmitz
a4 HMec. Eng. Tech. on September 3, 1988; MARGARET JEAN, borm April 26, 1963,
a4 homemaker married to James J, Karakai Jr. a Plumber, on Julv 5, 1836,

ELLEN JANE Stroud, born April 26, 1931, a nurse.

MARY MATILDA Stroud, bornm August 8, 1932.

JOHR ARTHUR Stroud, born May 5, 1934, married to HFLEN ELEANOR HOPEE.
Their family consists of three sons and one daughter, SANDRA LYNN, born
April 15, 1956; GLEN MICHAEL, born February 8, 1959, married to DOREEN
BROUGHAM, and thev have one daughter Alyssha Elizabeth Rose, horn October
2, 1988; STEVEN LAWRENCE, born May 3, 1962; CHRISTOPHER NRIL, born March
19, 1968.
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THE FERGUSON FAMILY

submitted bv: Tsabel [armon (Fersuson)

My great grandmother Ruth Watson married sreat graudfather Humble
Wiseman in the Orkaney Isles, Scotland. Thev had two children, William
Wiseman and Jean Wiseman. My grandmother JEAN WISEMAY was born in
McDuff, Scotland. and married JOHN Ferguson, born in Killmarnick,
Scotland. Thev came to Canada settling first iz Ontario and then in
Manitoba for a time. T can best determine that they came to the Orkney
District in 1883, and started a homestead about 3/4 mile north east of
Orcadia. TI've been told great grandfather Humble helped to build the
Orkney stone church and school,

Jean and John Ferguson had five children: Jessie, John, Humble,
Isabella and William. Since the children were veryv young, bora in the
1870"s, they attended the Orkney School in its early vears and used
slates to write on,

Grandfather John Ferguscon died accidently as a vounp man, therefore
my grandmother Jean Ferguson had to raise her five children bv herself.
One of the wavs she made a few extra dollars For luxuries for her child-
ren was to do washings for the workers that were building the rail-

road through Crcadia. She was quite a resourceiul woman who could hateh

a chick in her bosom if she had uno clucking hewn. Cats at that time were
very valuable. "In order to keep the vermin down' as they used to sav,
grandmother Jean would trade a prize goose for a cat. She kept a shot
gun handy above her door, and if anv natives or iutruders came around
with i1l dintentions she was not afraid to scare tihem off with ir,
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John Ferguson’s homestead receipt from York Farmers

WILLTAM Ferguson known to me and mine as "Uncle Billy'" bought his
nomestead in 1399 for $15: Sections 34, Township 25 and 26, Range 5,
west ol the scecond meridian.  Uscle Billy owned one of the first
MeLaughlin cuars that he purchased in May of 1920 from Yorl
GCompany, from a salesman camed Jeffrey Betts, my future father-in-law,
He also owned a threshing machine and would hire some help and go from
tarm to farm harvesting. This was a time of co-oparation. When one
persons crops got threshed they proceeded to the next till all were
coempleted.,  What an exciting time this was as I recall. The threshing
machine and all the men coming with borse drawn hay racks. Food was
prepaved in abundance, since everyone stayed -~ sometlimes soveral davs
if it rained! Plates of home made bread would disappear as quickly
as one could slice and repleaish them, Hard working mer had Lremendous
appetites, Oune hatrvester could cat a whole home made ple aad look for
more (1o worries of cholesterol at that time).  Jokes aud tricks plaved
on cach other and laughter was shaved by all at the table.

Lucle Billy took pride ion his garden and had fruit trees of apple,
pPlum, currvancs, cranberries, raspberries, gooseberries, hazel nutrs and
stravberries. Even though he was a bachelor he could cook a pood meal

) . - s K - P i T B f o -
and did all his own canaing. During the depression of the 1930 s, he
was koown for anever turning awayv the hungrv drifters who would show up
at hiis door Looking for a meal. He iived iun his home a half mile east

Ot Oreadia until his death in 1959,
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HUMBLE Ferguson, my father, married MARY TAZURKO in 1920, They
lived a half mile worth of Orknev School. My mother Marv Ferguson
died in 1928, and I was raised by my relatives My, and Mrs. W.D. Wiseman,
whose children were like sisters and brothers to me. Mary and Humble
had three children:

WILTLLAM (BILL) JAMES Ferguson known to some as "king'. My hrother
Bill pot this nickname because our father sold n cow, and with the money
purchased all new clothes for Rill complete with bib overalls. When
Bill went to school with the new clothes, and since he was so proud,
all his classmates fondly named him "King Bil1. le attended the Orkney
School starting in 1927, joined the armed services in 1941 and was
discharged honorably in 1945. He married Evelvne Prysdale bhefore going
overseas, after his return they had two children, Brvan and Lois. Bill
died in British Columbia in 1979.

LTLLIAN ISABEL Ferguson always known as Isabel attended the Orknew
Schocl beginning in 1929. T also attended the Orknev Church and received
baptism and first communion in 1937. By the way, since I was not allowed
to go to dances, my classmates tried to teach me how to square dance
during noon hour in the Orkney Church, No doubt we were caught! This
was a no-no according to the Board and it had to cease immediately. 1
joined the Canadian Women's Army Corps in November, 1942 and was di-
scharged henorably io 1945. 1 married Jack Betts in 1947, lived in
Yorktoa until 1955 and then settled in Regina. We had three children,
Joan, Georgina and Jeaun Betts. lo 1966, we adopted John. Jack died
i 1968 and T married mv present husband Jack Harmon in 1874. Jack
Harmon re-adopted John, naming him John Jeffrey Retts Harmon.

ROBERT (ROB) Ferguson attended the Orkney School from 1931. He
joined the armed services in 1942 and was discharged honorably in 1945,
He married Trene Thompsou in 1948, They settled in Peace River, Alberta,

where they had four children, Constance, Dale, Karen and Kevip., Curreatly

Bob and lrewe live in Chemainus, B.C, wherc thov live on a hobby farm
tendiug bees, cattle, grapes, kiwi fruit, strawberries and cut-your—own
Christmas trees.
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AGREEMENT
Respecting Sale of

Letters Putent.

This Agreement mape anp conciupep s eiciteenth
day of  april 190y, between JORn Ferguson.
of Qrcadin, in the District of Yorkton. Province of Seukateh-
ewsn, vominion of Cenudn, heeinafter called the pariy of the Fimt Part;
And W Irwin Hasbent, of the City of Ottawa, in the Province of Ontario, Dominion
of Canada, Solicitor of Domestic and Foreign Patents, hereinafter called the parly of the Second Part;
Mhitnessety that:

Whereas <ohn Fergugon ., party of the first part hath
inveated certain new and useful improvements in "0l SLEIGHS!
v

.,
?

And wheteas the said party of the first pare is desirous of selling, transferring and
assigeing his pateat or leasing or gramting licenses to others to use his invention as aforesaid,

And whereas W, Irwin Haskesi, party of the second par, is well situated and equipped
to receive offers and ready and willing to assist his client in the sealing of any contract aflect-
ing the ownership of the patents for a commission up to but nor exceeding five percent (59)
of the sale price:

Doty {heeefore, this indenture witnesseth that in pursuance of the said agreement and
in consideration of the premises and of the covenants hercinbefore contained on the part of
the pasties hercto, the said parties heteto mutually agree as follows—

That ¥, lruse Haskent, party of the second part is authotized by the undersigned
inventor, party of the fist part, to offer the patent righes, when they shall issue on the said in-
vention for sale and to negotiate for the highest possible terms with prospective purchasers;

That ¥. fruwin Haskerr, party of the second past, is not authorized to definitely
accepr any bids, offers or proposals until the same have been first submitted to and approved
of by vohn rerguson, , panty of the first parg

That ¥ Irwin Haskett, pacty of the second part, is not given the exclusive right
to the sale of the patent tights to the said inveation but that
Johrn Ferguson , party of the fitst part, may dispose of his patent himself o through
any other medium that be may desire;

That W, Irwin Haskeit, party of the second part, will instrud the purchasers or
lisencee of the patent rights to the invention to pay the full purchase price to the

Bank at
to be mid to Joha Ferguson , party of the fiest parg,
in exchange for the properly signed documents;
That the lowest price John Fergusaon , party

of the fist parr, is willing to accept at this time, subject, nevertheless, to change, is
ot dollars (3 Jopee ) tor outight cash
settlement /,W—//%ag,m[ Loor -
7 oo dollars and cents ($ 4 )

royaity on each and every anticle manufactured under his patents. -

In twitness wheresf the parises berets have heveiento set thefr bands
and sealy the day and year first abere writhen.

‘—,f", -
VLAl e s s
< aventor {Party of 1he first part.)

AS
Attorney at Patenrs (Pariy of 1be sevomd part)
Signed, sealed and delivered in the presence of: S ""'/

T itmesies.

John Ferguson’s ‘Bob Sleigh’ Patient
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THE SIMPSON FAMILY
WILLIAM SIMPSON

submitted by: lirs. Maude MePheco

In 1873 WILLTIAM Simpson breught his familv from Scotland to Toranrco.
fle was in the shoe store business for awhile. Tearing about opportunities
in the west he sold his store and tocok a homestead and pre-empted the land
where Orcadia is now located.

His son THOMAS VEITCH Simpson was borm in Scotland in 1371. He was
15 years old when he came to live in Orcadia,

His love for the outdoors and animals was why he chose to bhecome a
Veterinarian. ile went back east to train and returned to Yorkton in 1896
as Dr. T.V. Simpson.

Ho animal was too sick or toc small for him to treat, 17 a farmer
had no monev to pay, as many were in the situation, made no difference
to him.

Dr. T,V, Simpson shared an office with his trother-in-law, Dr. Cash
M.P. Thev only had a light partition between them. In serious cases
or operations, Dr. T.V. Simpson was often called into assist. He was
a "friend te man" as well as beast.

Jr. Simpscn married MARY McGRATH in 1898, Their marriage was
blessed with four children, MARGCARET, RETA, SHIRLTY and CHARLIF.

Shirlev is living at Logview, Alta., Margarct and Shirley were both
nurses. Margaret and Charlie served in the forces during the Second World
War.

Margaret and Charlie sgre both deceased.

br. Simpson and Levi Beck went together to Chicago and each hough:
an avtomoblle, made by Jolsom. Tt looked much like a good rubber rirad
bugey. The engine was under the seat and started by vigorously cranking.
It's speed limit was 15 miles an hour, Both cars were erated and snipped
by train to Yorkton.

Gasoline was twenty cents a gallon., The car was a noisy beggar,
When Dr. Simpson would take Mrs. Simpson for a Sunday drive, people would
hezr them coming and would run out to the gate te see them pass,

Dr. Simpson is credited with five firsts in Yorkton. He was the first

Veterinarian, had the first car, the first garage, the first McCoughlan
Agency, and the first John Deere Agency,

The Simpsen family were respected and well thought of. Hence Simpson
School was named in their honor.

Mrs. Simpson died in 1949, and Dr. Simpson in 1960. They lic in the
Yorkton Citv Cemetery among many of their pionecr friends.

THE PURVES FAMILY

surmbitted dv: Mrs. 4dldice Burkell

DAVE Purves came to Canada in 1906 with his cceusin Tom Sim
son of John and Jesgie Simpson. They worked for thelr Uncle
Simpson, who farmed the "Grange' farm of the Orkney District

Dave staved one vear then moved to the Rhein area. TIn 1911 #William
Simpszon retired to Yerxton. At that time John and Elizabeth Purves were
married in Scotland and cane to work the Simpson farm.  They farmed two
vears, when thev also moved to Rhein, Tom Simpson, then brought his
Dad and Mother John & Jessie over from Scotland to take over the Willian
Simpson farn.
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Mrs, Jessie Simpson said that thanks to Mr.s William Mulr Sr. (Sarah)
wio taught her to bake and helped her in many ways. [t it were not for
Loy friendshipy she would have gone back te Scotland.

Tom died at an early age and his mother a2ad dad continued to tarm
ontil about 19G27.

John dieé in Yorkton and Jessic returned to Scotland.

John and Jessie had a family of four, ANDREW, ALICE BURKELL, CHRISTINE
¥oeDOUGAL and EILEEN PURVES.

Alice married William Burkell and farm in Tonkin area. They had threce
bavs, CRAIG, JACK and KEITi. .

Craig married MARLYNY GRUNERT. Thev purchased the Dave Folster farm
in the Orkney District/

THE GUNN FAMILY
JOHN ALEXANDER GUNN

John Alexander Gunn

Tan the vear 1887 the land north of Orkney School towards what is
now Good Spifit Provineial Park was both unsurveved and uninhabited,
To this new territorv in that vyear came DONALD Gunn and his family.
Zorn in 1840, Donald was the son of one of the original Selkirk Settlers,
qlso a Donald Guon. The vounger Donald spent his early years at his
birthplace of St. Andrews, now Lockport, Manitoha. In 1876, with hig
wife and five voung children he moved to the Birdtail Creek, where he'
had a sawmill Qnd trading post approximately thirty miles northeast of
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the present town of Birtle, Manitoba. In 1881 he moved to near Fort
Ou'Appelle where he tried farming, Drought and Irost led to his giving
it up. He went north to look for land suitable Zor ranching. The south
end of Devils Take, as it was then called, seemed ideal. There was an
abundance of water, good pasture and unlimited hayland for puttiog up
winter feed.

Donald's first wife, CAROLINE BALLENDEN, had died and he had re-
married. His second wife, SARAR FIDLER, also from the Red River Setlle-
ment, their two very young children born at Fort Qu'Appelle, JOUN (4) and
MINNIE (2) and his five teenaged children from his first marriage all
moved to the new home with him. They began rancnhing and Donald Gunn ance
more ran a trading post that served settlers and the bands of Indians whe
came to hunt and fish and pick chokecherries in the sandhills around the
lake.

The two younger children grew up on the homestead at Devils Lake.
Their mother died in January 1897 when Minnie was barelv eleven. Her
father felt she needed a woman's care as well more schooling, so sent
her to his sister Janet Muckle at Clandebove, Manitoba. Mrs. Muckle was
both a teacher and a mother of four children. John remained at home and
in early May of 1898 he went to stay at N,IL Neilson's, so that he could
attend Orkney School.

For three vears Minnie went to school in Manitoba without getting
home. Letters exchanged with her father and especially with her brother
John were her oaly contact, They exchanged many letters aad fortunately
most have been saved. They give us an insight into school davs at Orkuaey
in 1898.

26 June 1898 John writing to Mianie ... "I like going to school

pretty well. There are 20 children going row. I am almost througl the
third book but T am behind in arithmetic. The Orkney schoolboys are going
to play football against the Yorkton boys on the First, T am one of the
forwards."

18 September 1898 John writiag to Mianie ... "The school ouly lasts
three more weeks, T like staying down here pretty well conly that I get
so lonesome. I have only been home once since the 20th of May. You were
speaking of seeing Jimmy Reid. I doa't remember him. I see all the Reids
around here. Bob Reid and the Peace's have moved up to Fishing Take. The
people are all harvesting just now., There was 900 head ot fat cattle came
all the way from Prince Albert to be shipped from here. They were about
a month on the road. T am getting on pretty fast at school, We have
Canadian and British History twice a week. In arithmetic I am past cubic
and square measure, fractions and perceuntage. Baba Sinclair is our teacher.
She is going toc college in Winnipeg as soon as scheol closes, We got heaten
on Dominion Dav at foothall."

24 October 1898 .., "I am at home now. I got first place at the
quarterly exam at the Orkaney School and I also received a book called
"The Pioneers' by J. Fenimore Cooper for third place on the Roll of Henor.
T was writing in a Number 6 copy book when I left."”

When his sister Minnie wrote to John ou 0! January 1899 she mentions
his teacher ... ™iss Sinclair vour teacher 1s poing to Manitoba College.
She is Anna's hest friend. She says that vou were one of her favorite
scholars. Baba Sinclair might come down at Easter,'" Anna was Mrs.
Muckle's eldest daughter and a ccusin of John and Minnie. Ethe was attend-
ing Manitoba College at the time and became a school teacher,
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John Cunn went on to join the 4th Contingent Canadians, 5th Regiment
COMURL s and din 1902 sailed for Seuth Africa to take part in the Boer War.
ta 1904 he took a homestead in the Proceevilie district and started farm-
ing there.  The Sourh Alrican script he received in 1908 led to his sell-
ing his Preeceville farm and going to picneer on a homestead in the Grande
Prairie, Alberta area. In 1914 he agaio went to serve his country. lie
foived the First Canadiarn Mounted Rifles in Yorkton and in 1915 was alveady
coedng front line service, Tn June 1916 he was taken priscuner of war at
the hattle of Sanctuary Wood. He was sent to Germany to work at, among
other things, building a railway bridge over the Rhine. The captivity,
hard work and shortage of food led to his spending seven months in hos-
pital then being transferred to Switzerland for further medical treat-
ment. He eventuallv was sent to Englaad and back to Canada in May 1919,

On his return he took over from his father Donald, who by this time
was nearly eighty., Johun built some cabins, opened a store and "Gunn's
Reach” became his life. When Spirit Lake post office was established
in 1935 he also became postmaster. Interested in archeology, natural
historv and the early history of the west, he spent his leisure time in
reading and collecting artifacts. He had married Margaret Walker of
Staffordshire, Fngland in 1924, She had come out to Yorkton te stay
with her uncle and aunt, George and Sarah Colvin., John and Margaret had
onlv one child, Joyce, who is married to Bill Anaka and still lives cuo
ihe site homesteaded by her grandfather in 1887.

John Cuna never fullv recovered from his prison camp experiences
and after battling asthma for vears he died at Fort San in August 1947,
within a mile of where he had been born almost exactly sixty-four vears
betfore.

Manv former Orkney residents will remember Johu Gunn from their
visits to Cunn's Beach in the early days, Some of the former Orkney
United Church voung people will alsc remember camping at the beach with
their student ministers in the early 1950's .., more than fiftv vears
after John Guon as a 15 vear old boy attended the old Orkney School and
mentioned in oue of nis letters to his sister that, “There is church
every Sunday heve'.

THE FERNIE FAMILY
A. L. FERNIE and FAMILY
submitted bv: Mrs. Mary (Fernie) Pinder

Tt was in 1883 that Mr. and Mrs. A.L, FERNIE and family said favewell
to the land of the heather, sailing off from the bomnie banks of the Clvde
en route for Toronto, Canada, where for a short time all the family were
comfortably maintained, But as a city did not hold cut much prospect for
a large familv of bovs, and after considering the persuasions of an agent
interested in forming a colomy away out in the far west, in the province
of "Assiniboia' as it was then called, preparations were made, and in
company with a few others , we migrated to the virgin prairie, some sev-
enteen hundred miles or so to Broadview on the C.P.R,

We unloaded the goods and chattels with mules and wagons Cto make the
journcy into the far north some ninety miles away.
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This being in April, the country was largely covered with water and
transport was made very difficult in the mud, Te Dad fell the leot of
driving a team of mules, and having never handled a team in his life
before, he soon discovered he encountered many difficulties, often re-
sorting to his fellow travellers to extricate his charge from the miry
clay and the objectionable obstacles these obstinate mules would be un-
knowlingly guided into with their inexperienced driver.

Sometimes reaching a shack for shelter as night came on, and some-
times less fortunate, when the wagon box would serve as a roof overhead
for the women and children, all ever straining ear and eve in fear of
meeting a stray rebel, it being about the time of the Indian rebellion
of 1885.

In passing through the Fort Qu'Appelle Indian Reserve all were held
up until the toll money was paid, and all were curiously laughed at and
gazed upon by the many dusky inhabitants decked in war paint and weapous
of warfare. 1t was with some relief the reserve was left in the rear and
their mutterings died to our hearing,

A few cows taken along with the party were driven by the wemen,
mother doing almost the complete journey on foot carrying her voungest bov,
a lad of between two and three years, most of the time fearing to leave
the child with any of the drivers, lest in navigating deep sloughs and
rugged creeks an accident might happen. The wagons were heavily laden
and the ground so soft, loads often proved too much for the power attached,

Thus all advanced untlil the journey was complete, landing at a shanty
where we were allowed to stay for the summer months. There was mother earth
for a floor, and sods on the round poles on the roof, a small window in
one end, and the door s¢ low the smallest grownup would have to duck his
head to enter, which proved painful to the unaware, But when the touch
of a feminine hand made itself felt, it became more endurable, and exi-
stence for mother and the three youngest children was made possible, and
in the course of time, about five months after our arrival, another little
fellow was added to our family, and under the care of a kindly wmeighbour,

Mrs. Simpson Sr., and one of our travelling party, who came to the assistance

on this trying occasion. all went well and the baby thrived. Meanwhile
Dad had got work at the building of a flour mill some eighteen miles away,
being erected for the inducement of settlement. But when this mill was
operated later on the quality of its' flour was very poor, and it did not
prove a success, often being out of action,

It was shortly after this that dad made entry for his homestead, in a
small settlement of Arcadian people who had come in a year or two before
and where the land had more than its share of scrub bush and stones,
but as little settlements were few and far between, he naturally sought
to locate where there would be a neighbour here and there. All just
beginning, none with much of this worlds goods but having enough energy
among them to consider the possibilities and ford on in this new land.

Tn the District of Orkney where only the foot of the wild animal and

the Indian had trod and where but a few monthsbefore the thump—thump

of the enemies tom-tom could be heard {rom their camping grounds, while

on the war path and when later many a visit was given by these dusky people.
in time of peace, when but a short time before they had invaded, looted,

and ravaged, terrifying the women and children in their humble dwellings

and we that were a few miles from them at that time or anvbody in 1335 Llived
in terror of the unsettled condition of the country, and ocur fears were
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o intense that often a black stump frightened us and mother was often
alarmed with the little one excitedly rushing £o the shack exclaiming that
an Tndian was near, we hid in the hush by day and deprived ourselves of

a tieht at night altho' the only means of light by night at this time was
a4 litvle fat rendered from a badger and put in a small dish with cross
gsricks and a knotted piece of cotton, This lit, a very flickering dim
lizht was the result but even this was pleasingly acceptable when more
peaceful conditions cast away our fears,

Yes, I well remember their highly painted faces and bright blankets
flowing over the flanks of their pinto=-ponies all decked in feathers and
colored ribhons. While the voung men dressed in beads and buckskin pranced
in the forend of the proc¢ession of creaking carts, with little papooses
riding here and there by them, these were their trips north for hunting.
Some months afterward they would stop while travelling and try and get
acquainted, but we were not yet confident of their friendliness, so in
fear we approached them in an attitude of peace. And on their departure
felt much relieved when we were sure they had journeved bevond the limits
of our settlement,

However it was in the middle of winter with the temperature well
down in the zeros. When mother and the little ones unloaded themselves
from a hay rack at the door of our own ''shanty'" as all houses were called
then. It had been a cold drive altho' we all chattered much with Mr.

Ted Bull and ¥Mr. Meredith, who so kindlv came to our assistance at this
time with the help of a team of ponies. Prospects at this time lav all
ahead with no possible failure ever in view,

We found dad busily preparing the place for our coming and our an-
xiety to get there brought us & wee bit soon, as there was much yet to
he done. It was true the log walls were up, chiked, and the poles on the
roof, but all vet to be plastered from the clay from the ground in the
middle of the floor. The stars could be seen in every direction through
the crevices and the wind blew through the walis, The prospects of living
in such a place made tears come to mother's eves as she gazed ou, with
a child of five months in her arms while three cor four little ones were
hanging around, with her mind going back some twentv miles or more to the
older hovs scattered among the lonely bachelors eager to secure a few
pocinters in the art of homestead life.

But Dad, and all, worked hard and long and with his rip-saw active,
in time a floor was cut and laid, as well as a door put on made from a
few dry short boards given by a bachelor and after dad went three miles
and a half and carried them home on his back. He found on making the door
there was but enough material to cover an opening only bilg encugh to let
the smallest man in the settlement in without ducking his head and with
a couple of swmall windows the place began te look more like a dwelling
and when the packing cases were emptied of all they contained there was
much in the way of bedding, curtains, carpets and other articles to make
the place cozy. Meanwhile dad and his tools were busily engaged in making
all such necessities as tables, chairs, bedsteads, cupboards and many other
things all made from the poplar timber bush near the shanty, and where
the woodman's eritical cve ever scanned for the natural bends in the trees
that would serve him well in the making of sleigh runners, ox collars,
and such equipment as he hoped to need in the near future. IC was shav-—
ings and the shrill noise of the rip-saw all the remainder of the winter
through, giving us little time to be lonely.
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Spring time came and dad had to take flight, in search of worlk, with
a passerby, to the far off town of Fort Qu'Appelle where he would occupy
himgelf in the summer months with his teools as dad was a good tradesman
of the old Scoteh school of carpentering, leaving mother and the vounger
members of the family to continue work on the homestead.

Alex, one of the older bovs, was promised the use of a team bv the
man he was working for, for a few davs along with a little seed. TIn the
course of time, along he came with a voke of Big Red oxen and a plow in
the wagon. We were delighted to see him, the f{irst time since we came
over to the homestead, as he sat upon the wagon beating off mosquitoes,
first the one side and then the other, while the whole gang of voungsters

endeavoured to unhitch those mysterious monsters amid their frantic efforts

to rid themselves of a moving mass of savage mosquitoes that had collected
and followed him over a journey of twenty miles and were now safely de-
pesited in and around the shanty, where we just about smothered ourselves
with highly perfumed smoke towering out of an old tin can, half full of
cinders and green weeds. We found it necessary teo follow this method

of extermination often afterwards as we had formed rather a harsh opinion
of these pets from the many painful experiences that these native enemies
inflicted wpeon us, knowing they were especially fond of the Scotch folk.
In fact it was hinted there was only one thing they liked better and that
was an Englishman just over.

However as Alex related to us much of the times the bovs were having,
and his past, present and future prospects, We all became intensely in-
terested at how much he had learned, and of the great marksman he was in
sheoting two geese with one shot and kind of sorrv he did not hit a third.
Also of David's washing experiences and how Dave could shoot roosters and
kill a pig, not speaking of bBoiling Dean Thin's red flannel shirts with
his fine white cnes and dragging them through the slough, tied to the old
Brindy ox's tail to complete the laundrv work while David popped over a
few mallards with an old muzzle loading shotgun from the back of the
faithful old ox. But to the lads great annovance he could not remove the
red shades from the white shirts which the Dean was to wear on his return
journey after a visit from London, England with his two bachelor sons, who
Dave catered to from day to day, making soup and frying pork and beans.
This work he became proficient din, in time. Alex soon got busy going up
and down the furrows. .The children were so delighted thev must all trudge
up and down after him. One would almost have to put a post up to seec if
Buck and Bright were moving. But Alex kept on persevering and with much
shouting of "Gee and Haw!'" they appeared to understand so well, having
been guided by it for the past fourteen er fifteen vears down east or
thereabouts. Alex was able in a few davs te have turned over in a hlack
mass about five acres of land, A small portion of it to be alleted to
the seeding down with potatoes. All things in readiness the seceding
began, the seed thrown on by hand, and the potatces in process of planting
when one morning the work was disturbed when Sandy came running toward
the shanty shouting, "Is my eye out? Is my eye out?’" His mother being
terrified rushed to meet him, persuading him to allow her to examine the
part and was glad to assure him his cye was still there, and with a band-
age around it retraced his steps and resumed his planting. Tt was Bright
in his frantic efforts te rid himself of the thousands of venomous mog-—
quitces, had given poor Alex a powerful swipe in the face with one of those
long dull looking horms of his, orpamented with about a dozen rings. Even
in this accident there was much to be glad of as it might of been worse
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and we were about ninetv miles from a doctor at this time, Seeding done,
avr brother toek his departure, leaving those at home to turn their att-
ention to fencing the little field. The bush being but a short distance
off made it possible to get the necessary timber, and with mother as the
manager the work went on of cutting and sharpening the pickets, and the
rails, then drag them out under our arms and place them around the field.
] am sure it seemed endless the amount of material 1t took to complete
the job, but in time was done and all were verv pleased of what had been
accomplished.

By this time the little supply of provisions was coming to an end.
In fact the flour barrel was entirely empty, so the only thing remaining
to do was to boil some of the black barley that was yet on hand after our
sceding, and make it as palatable as possible with seasoning and keep all
1iving for a few days, while an effort was put forth to secure a sack of
flour up from Whitewood, yet the mill was not operating.

Now the crop came on nicely, and so did the frost, but any way we
arranged to have it cut and a neighbour of more advanced experience in
the person of George Seatter came along with his old binder and a cow
and an ox and a horse attached. There was much gleaning to be done after
he left and the stecoking went on by the children, finally stacking it,
propping it on every side as the sheaves were carried on two short sticks
placed on the ground laying the sheaves across in number equal to our

strength, the top of the stack completed it was viewed with much satisfaction

and eventually was taken by one of the thresher hands a mile or so away
to where an old horsepower machine stood and was manned by everybody with
his mules and oxen to operate the affair over at Bob Sincleir's homestead.
Tt is true the little frozen grain turned out but slowly, and it
did not appear to worrv anyone very much, so long as the housewife gave
the gang of her scanty supplies, some thing like a thresherman's meal
and the evenings were usually spent in singing joking and playing tricks
and much laughter, getting tc bed somewhere in the ''wee sma hour".
Dad came home in the early winter and continued his carpentering
and often as one would glance at him while pushing his ripsaw through
that tough poplar the drops of perspiration could be seen dropping from
his face, while his saw was heated, But when this wood was trimmed up
it served well for the many articles needed in the home and on the home-
stead, where it could serve in building and necessary equipment.
In Spring a yoke of steers two years old were bought and broken
in, these we were very proud of. Only one was a mully and was exception-
ally fond of the green short grain inside the fence and casting his eye
over the field would size up the rail fence and after he took in the
whole situation he would soon get busy lifting rail after rail off with
his big stumpy head pushing in the old black cow and his mate and then
mully would avail himself of the opportunity of a good "blow out" as
Johnny called it, the result of a very discouraging spectacle, after a
few attacks like that, our field prospects were diminished, while Mully
underwent punishment with his front feet hobbled together for a few days.
A calf and a few chickens had arrived the latter the result of a hen
being given by one young man while three neighbours volunteered three eggs
each, thus our first flock of chicks arrived that were much admired by
the children, as they all claimed one each immediately, and I was lucky
enough to have a pullet when they could be distinguished while those who
were less fortunate shed tears when their pets lost their heads when it
was profitable for us to take them to the block.
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By this time things were going a pace in general in the little settle-
ment. The oxen bheing busy and mother finding it necessary Lo go some six
miles away where by now a settler had found it to his interest to keep
a few groceries as a supply for settlers, and buy a few items, also see
if the mail had come. The day was very warm and fixing the top of the well
sccurely, letting the fire out, and with much instruction she took leave
of the children. She walked away getting to the place and resting a wee
while, getting a few necessities. She was making her return journey in
the late afternoon, foot-sore with the hear and the sand under foot, hurry-
ing on when all of a sudden a large wild beast came from a scrub near
the path she was following which was little more than a wagon track. What
she had read of wild beasts in the west, she concluded it was a wolf. He
gazed at her very curiously, sniffing and following behind at a few paces.
She kept looking behind her and watching his curious interest, and quite
decided that if he got too close to her she would throw the pepper in his
eyes and then he would not see her making her escape, but at this time
a bird flew across the road. This took the brute's eye, he taking a
few bounds after it soon set his attention upon it. Mother grasped the
opportunity, and quickening her pace finally runniung, until she put a
hill between her and this undesirable companion.

However it was but a short time and she could see the children who
had started out in their anxiety to see her return. They were awfully
pleased to find her coming home, but there was mno candies as thev were
told the candvman was dead. The children did not mind that, so long as
mother was home safely as they quivered with fear as to what might of
happened had that mysterious brute attacked her with her feet tired and
sore from the rough and sandy road. This journey was made several times
but mother carricd a stick alwavs for fear of meeting such roamers ang
never was there a chance of a ride as there was onlyv two settlers home-
ateaded along that stretch of prairie,

By this time the parents were getting anxious about a school after
considerable discussion a board of trustees was founded, An acre of land
donated by a worthy bachelor, Robert Sinclair, a bee called, the logs cut
and hauled while another day or two put up the walls and poles on the rooi
where they were covered by thatch., The more skilled tradesman made them-
selves responsible for the furnishing such as the desks, tables and black-
board. ,

Meanwhile the children were being taught in a log roem at the home
of Mrs. Sinclair's. This room the teacher occupled by night and the
pupils by day. It was my lot to sit on the edge of the teacher's bed
and dangle my feet. I can assure you, without a back support I worked
hard to overcome all obstacles in our alphabet.

The lady in charge was Miss Ella Carson, a woman of such morals and
personality that is becoming in omne responsible for the teaching of little
ones. She was in possession of a teaching permit and her ability to teach
proved greater than many in later days helding a certificate of high degree,
and whose salarv was the sum of about twenty-five dollars per month, and
bring her board from her mother's home when opportunity afforded her.

Tt was with pleasure and satisfaction that those ratcpayers made
it possible in about a months time for about a dozen bovs and girls to set
themselves to study in their nice little Orkney log school house; bv far
the best building in the district and was in every sense a compunity centre
and all for the small sum of two or three dollars taxes a year. It was
maintained for quite a number of years, and where some of the pupils later
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“illed quite vesponsible positions in life. TFinally being replaced by a
Setter buildi )

e 07 stone,
Yes, many needy clreounstances cauvsed the oider folk to truck and trade
convenience each other causing a friendliness to exist that stood

rest of vear after.

seasons were drv and prafrie fires raged witheut a barrier, often
giving cause Yor much alarm, HNothing to hinder its sweeping before the
wind or quench its wildness. Nights were spent in wakefulness and davs
in Slghting. These fires, burning up much timber, endangering the little
homes of the settlers sending their reflections high up into the clouds,
creating a spectacle of such terror, some almost gave up in despair,

But after a time of gloom or danger passed over, the people readily
turned their attentien to other things that gave them courage and with )
little events in social life that lifted them over the stiles from time
to time, thev continued to press on.

One event of importance, the first of its kind to take place there,
was a wedding which was to take place when the minister came up from the
C.P.R., some ninety miles awav and after waiting for some length of time,

the Rev. gentleman arrived with his shaggy nag and Buckboard encountering
many hardships on the wayv. His coming gave Betty, the "bride-to-be',
courage so she slipped con her bonnet and off she walked a mile or so up
through the bush to tell the husband-to-be "the minister had come'. While
on learning this Jim raised his head while digeging his garden and quietly
exclaimaed "that he had gone off the notion'. In her dismav she retraced
her steps relating the decision. Hewever the young man must have reconsidered
his pesition as a bachelor, as shertly Jim came sauntering along dressed
in nis best. Scme of the good old hasbeens of Brnonie Scotland with cne
nant leg carelessly turned up while thev adorned the top of a rough pair
of boots leooking as if thev had not seen blacking since thev tread on
Canadian soil. But with Jim and Betty this far eon the road‘to matrimony
they notified their friends and on their arriving the ceremony was perférmed.
It was a great event. The women were dressed in their best frocks that
had not been aired for many a day waiting for an occasion. Yes, they were
all there. The Reid's,., Peace's, Fergus's and Garrv's not forgetting
Stevenson and hig wife with all their musical talent.

Amid jokes and good wishes the happy couple took up their abode in
a shanty where the stumps had been cut at a suitzble length, inside here
and there on the earth floor to serve as chairs, But that condition of
affairs appearced ef little displeasure to them as time remedied to some
small degree these disadvantages that were replaced by little ditems of
comiort. Around this worthy couple, who proved to be a real host and host-
€58 to the many who received a real welcome that was extended to all who
cane that wav, and ever giving a helping hand in time of sickness or need
anc ag readily rejoleed with those rejoilcing, Hever appearing to be
striving hard Lor much of this world's goods, and vet appearing to take
a deal of enjoyment out of all and everbody who came in contact with them.
Jim never leaving his companv any wise discouraged when it was his ple-~
asure ro entertain.  Although this worthy couple have passed away some
Years ago, many are the kind memories cherished of those real piloneers,

Now dad was agaln coming home Lo gpend the winter munths.. So with
our oxen driven by Geordie, one of the bovs, off thevy went following that
0ld Pellv Trail well beaten by the carts of the Indians and long hohrs,
dﬁy after dav were spent, not passing a house or any one for miles and
Miles while the Load of wheat to be pristed at the Qu'aAppelle Flour Mill
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became very heavy as those faithful oxen taxed their strength finally
encountering those rugged hills surrounding the valley and the mill

here made of good srade of flour. Dad was eager for their coming, no
more so, than those at home were when the homecoming meant something for
each and all members of the family and usually the winter supply of
provisions.

It was usuallv in the late evening of the eighth eor ninth day of the
journey that the team would come steaming and covered with frost, fagged
out, but with a look of satisfaction on their animal faces that really
seemed to express a thought of gladness that another long journey was
finished.

Dad soon unpacked his trunk with its gifts to one and another and
after a few davs looking about was soon settled down to his home depart-
ment again, By this time a little log building was furnished him to put
his kit in and where he found himself very comfortable while working with
his tools. Different items of woodwork from the neighbours came his way,
some would like an armchair made, some a cupboard or a Iittle table as
their need may be.

But one dav there was something to be made there in the form of a
little coffin, which cast a sadness over the children when the sad news
of the sudden death of little Willie Peace, a child of one of the settlers
had been killed accidently by a shot from a gun loaded for geese and that
had been left in a corner of the shanty, and while the little lad was lock-
ing for his shoes he unfortunately disturbed the weapon, it discharged,
the result was sudden death fer little Willie Peace.

In consequence Dad offered his services at this time of bereavement.

The children in such fear were almost afraid to go near the workshop
on tiptoe, having such an awesome feeling about them, To the younger ones
this was the first sign of death they had experienced and seemed te them very
near, but they gathered a few curly shavings and covered it with a slip and
were quite satisfied when Dad placed it in the little coffin to lay the
little head of gclden curls on, after which a few neighbours gathered to
put the little fellow to rest in a quiet spot on his father's homestead.

By this time a preacher was seen occasionally in the district in the
person of Mr. H. who made his rounds with an old white horse and a to-
boggan in the winter. He being a man of large proportions found it di-
fficult to keep comfortable on this snow-boat with its sides built up
off the ground with canvas.

So approaching Dad on the question of making him a cutter and con-
sidering the hard times the work may stand as donation to Dad's credit.
But when Mr. H. hitched to his new rig, he alsoc brought the subject of
his salary to dad's notice when the carpenter said it was with that in
view he had done the job for him. But the preacher was not going to bhe
put off as he indignantly exclaimed, '"Oh! That does not add anything
to my stipends.'" and was not satisfied at all. However mother later
made a further struggle in the direction of his salary at a considerable
sacrifice although she did not appreciate his attitude of ungratefulness.

Some months after this from dad's labours a pony came home to us.
"Polly" looked grand, and much pleasure was promised ourselves from this
source and by this means we all learned to ride altho' some of us had
made a few attempts in the art of riding on Buck the ox up te this time,
Finally a team of horses were safely deposited in the stable with colts
at foot for the substantial sum of five hundred dollars, with interest
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which in time was all cleared off, more to mother's satisfaction than
aaybodies, as she had a very unhappy horror of cebt.

 The boys brought different items of stock home and articles of
{nterest on the farm until it was found necessary for Dad to cease his
Long journcys as there was much to keep him busy amid home and farm ne-
cessitles, although he spent but little time on the land himself, the
carden work came his way.
N Time went on, all enjoved a fair share of prosperity. The Manitoba
and North Western Railway as it was called at this time, came along making
4 station within six or seven miles of our end of the settlement. This
was the nearest station where it made its terminus for a few yvears con-
tinuing on later, and where now stands the City of Yorkton, incorporated
as a city a short time ago. And has done away with those long trips where
the hoof of the ox followed for miles the well beaten paths of the buffalo
and the Red River carts and where the white Nimrod roamed ummolested with-~
out restriction with game in plentv over the vast stretches of country
that lay on every side. The result that many were the tempting game bags
emptied under the interesting gaze of the dwellers. Years have passed
since that time, and many of those worthy piloneers lie on the hillside
now. Our mother among them while but a few years later the father and
main stay of life in our cabin home has been laid beside her not for-
gelting the oldest brother "Geordie" who also has departed from his
labors, while others with us enjoy memories of those departed, of the old
Yeotch settlement, the little log school house, the noble school teachers,
and all it ment to blaze the trails in those pioneer days,

The Fernie's sold their homestead in the Orkney District about 1910
and to get plentv of water for their large herds of cattle and horses,
obtained land on the Cussed Creek in the Beaverdale District, south of
Springside. George and his father ahd adjoining quarters and the other
boys obtained land nearby. This family cventually all married, and raised
families, the descendants of whom are scattered over Canada.

CEORGE Fernie married HELEN BRAGG, They had two children, ALLAN and
LATILEEN, all dececased. DAVE Fernie married and moved to Toronto and
raised a familv of whom little is known. ALEX Fernie moved to the Theodore
District. He and his wife raised three children, BILL Fernie lives near
Theodore. He never married, He is buried in the Thecdore Cemetery.

JACK Fernie married MAY YATEMAN of Springside. They had six children,

born in Beaverdale District, They moved to a locationm near Thunder Bay,
Ontario. Jack and MARY are both buried there. PETE Fernie, the voungest
member of the family, married HAZEL DODGE. Thev have one daughter PAMELA.
They lived in Springside for many years. FPete died a few vears ago.

lazel lives in the Yorkton Nursing Home, MARY Fernie the eldest daughter
married DAVID PINDER of Springside. She lived at Springside for many

years prior to her passing. She wrote the enclosed historv of the Fernie's
pionecer days. She had a large family, but only five lived to adulthcod
RUTH, MRS. LAWRENCE FELDRIKIN, is the only living member of her family.
JESSTE Fernie the second daughter married CHARLIE PEAKER of Yorktoen. Charlie
was Mayor of Yorkton for many vears. They were highly respected first
citizens. Both are buried in the Yorkton City Cemeterv. So passes the
first generation of Fernie's, true pioneers of Orknev.

~ gubmitted by: Maude McPhee
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THE McKEN FAMILY
JOHN and MARGARET McEKEN
submitted by: Margie Steve

This family history of John and Margaret was compiled from the various
familv stories Donald McKen left for historical purposes.

JOHUN Mcker was born in Newmains, Scotland, the only c¢hild of John and
Agnes {(Reid) of Donregan County of Dumfrieshire. In 1867, Joln married
MARGARET COWAN of Johnstone, also in Dumfrieshire. All of John and Mar-
garet's familv of 12 were born in the countvy of Dumfriecshire. John,
along with his three older children, was working at the "Rells" farm in
Castle Douglas, when word came to them that the York Colonization Co.
was looking for settlers to come to Canada. Tand could be homesteaded
for $10,00. With the promise of all this land, thev were lured from their
homeland. By 1890 thev had scraped together enough money to sail to
Canada with 10 of their family. Left behind in Scotland were AGNES and
ROBERT, along with Robert's wife, Helen "Nellie',

After a hectic sea voyage and train ride frem Montreal, thev landed
at the Immigration shed in Yorkton in April 1890. They were met by the
Colonization Company and taken to see their homestead near Cussed Creek.
Their first night was spent at the Tmmigration shed, but next dav they
moved to their homestead. They ascquired a team of oxen and plew, and
immediately began to build themselves a soddy. Thev accomplished this
feat with the help of their neighbours, Tom Tullis, Tom Garrv, Mathew
Peace and John Duncan.

So began their life in Canada. They lived in this soddy until 1903,
at which time Orcadia had begun to flourish and thev were able to buyv
lumber at the Prairie Lumber Company in Orcadia. Thevy obtained the ser-
vices of a carpenter, "Peg leg' Parker, whe built the house for them.

The New House - ca. 1905
fL to R Jessie McKen, Peg Leg Parker, Mary McKen, Jim McKen,

Roddie Mcleod, Nellie McKen, Margaret McKen {Grandma),
and John McKen {Grandpal.

Margaret (Cowan) & John McKen
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shen the house was finished they cleared back the furniture and had a
fanve.  They celebrated for two reasons, (1) the finishing of the house
s (2) Saskstchewan becoming a province of Cannda.  This house was to
stand and be lived in until 1945, at which time it was occupied by Fred
and Touige Hall

Shortly after their arrival in Canada, a aeighbour John Duncan took
pity on them and loaned them a milk cow, It was a range cow, so wild
that it took the whole family to milk it.

John was fascinated with the threshing business., He first acquired
a small threshing machine which was fed by hand. He built this threshing
husiness, along with his older sons, into a very profitable enterprise.
lorsepower, then steam and finally in 1905, the Rumely 0il Pull.

In the early vears some of the lcKens attended Windsor School, where
it is noted that one vear John loaned them the money to pay the teacher's
salary.

By the spring of 1891 Robert and Agnes had arrived from Scotland
and things began to get very busy. Jim had been able to get a job in
Yorkton at Levi Beck's Mill and Bill got a job draying. With everyone
pulling together they were able to establish their farming operations.
Agnes got a job at the Royal Hotel where she met and married a railroad
zan, DICK GRAHAM. Shortly after their marriage, they left to make their
home in Gladstone, Manitoba.

Margaret was well known as the local midwife, a practice she had
learned in Scotland.  She sometimes travelled far into the Beaver Hills
to deliver a baby. Most times her kindness was repaid in chickens and
vegetables,

John died on October 30, 1912. He had gone to town with his Democrat
and team of ponies (a pinto and a bay), to get threshing supplies. He
was late in returning and lost his way on the trail, and wandered into
the muskeg. He was found the next day, by George Seatter, dead of ex-
posure. Margaret kept the threshing operation together and remained in
the homestead house with her son TOM, until her death in 1915,

The courage of this pioneer family was unending. TLeaving their home-
land with such a large, voung family to face life on the Canadian prairies
was no easy task. Only cnce was Margaret heard to voice any misgivings
about the choice they had made. The first night on their prairie homestead
the frogs began to croak, the oxen began stamping in the bush and Margaret
said to John, "John!, What kind of country hane you brought us to, tc be
ate up by wolves?'.

John and Margaret's family of 12 were: ROBERT, AGNES (later Mrs. Dick
Graham), JIM, JEANNIE (later Mrs. Duncan McLeod), MARGARET (later Hrs.
George Hall), WILLIAM, THOMAS, JOHN JR. (Batch), CHARLES, JESSTE (later
Mrs., Bill Benjamin), NELLIE (later Mrs. Charlie Barber) and MARY JANE
(later Mrs. Charles Lewis).

When John died in 1912, the familv had amassed a holding of some 13
quarters of land. It is interesting to see what John McKen Sr. listed
as his possessions when he applied for his homestead. "A wife, 10 child-
ren, 30 head of cattle, 9 horses, a 40 x 14 house, a 16 x 24 stable and
3 sides of a quarter, fenced",

Following is a list of the homesteads the McKen boys had:

John McKen Sr. - N.E. 28-26-5, 1891: Robert McKen - S.E. 28-26-5, 190L;
Jim McKen - §.E. 28-26-5, 1899: Tom McKen - S.W. 24-27-6, 1906: John Jr.
- N.F. 26-26-6; and Charles McKen ~ $.W. 24-26-6.
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ROBERT and HELEN McKEN

submitted byv: Margle

Robert McKen Sr. Helen (Dougan) McKen

ROBFRT "THE ROSS" and HELEN "NELLIE" (DOUCGAN) McKen were both born
in Newmains cottage, village of Mousewald County of Dumfrieshire in Scot-
land. Bob was born 20 December 1868 and Nellie was born in 1867, They
both worked at the Kells farm in Castle Douglas, Bob as a teamster and
%¥allie as a domestic. It was here they were married and also here their
first child, a son, ROBERT JR. was born.

Bob immigrated to Canada in the spring of 1891 along with his sister
Agnes, leaving behind his wife and son until he could establish a home
fer them. Bob farmed with his father John, and worked the adjoining
quarter, which belonged to T.V. Simpson. T.V. had built a house of sorts
on his quarter, but he wanted to return to the East to go to Veterinary
College. He left Bob to look after his land and Nellie with their son,
Bob Jr. came to Canada in June 1893.

By all accounts Bob was a real worker. Evewitnesses say that in his
younger davs Bob never walked, he ran. During the winter months he would
go up to Pelly, hauling logs to make extra money. This was very dangerocus
work. Piling the logs on the wagon to a peak, then driving to the river
on icy slopes. Since the horses were all sharp shod, it was quite a
feat to keep the load from upsetting. It was here in the winter of 1895,
that Bob first became acquainted with one of his neighbours, Bob Rousay.

Tn 1906 we find he owned S1/2 of 28 and had signed an agreement with
the York Colonization Company for the purchase of the §1/2 of 35. TIn 1909
his family consisted of his wife Nellie and five children and they moved
to a log house which Bob had built on 8S8ec. 35. This house was to stand
and be their home until 1945. It was in this log heouse their voungest
child was born. Their fourth child "Sandy" had died at the age of 1 vear
in 1897. So it was that Bob and Nellie raised a family of four boys and
two girls.

Life took a bit of a turn for Bob over the next few vears, His father
died in 1912, his wife Nellie died in 1914 and his mother in 1915. His
two oldest sons Robert and Bill went to war and paid the supreme sac-
rifice in 1917.
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With the marriage of his cldest daughter Jen in 1917, Bob found hig JESSIE (McKen) and JIMMIE CANNON
dream somewnat shattered. From a family of six tl
teen vear old son Donald, and his seven vear old
home. In 1916 Seb hired Mrs. Laura Fenske as a housekecper, who came
there with her eighteen month old son, Barmney.

Beb and Dornald, with a lot of hard work, kept the farm going. In
1939 Bob turned the family farm over to Donald, dut continued to live
therc with his scon until his death on his birthday, December 20, 1945,
at the age of 77. 1t was alwavs said that Bob's reason for staving alive
was to see his grandson Bill return from overseas in the Second World
War., This wish was fulfilled, as he was te see Gill return in the fall
of 1945, just pricr to Bob's death.

Bob and Nellie were hardv pioneers of the Orkney District. Their
family all attended Orkney Church and School. Bob, 1like his father before
him, ran a very successful threshing operation with steam as his main
source of power. His two sons, Robert and Charlie were steam engineers.
Their family of seven children were: ROBERT JR.,, BILL, JESSIE JANE "JEN"
(Mrs, Jimmie Cannon), ALEXANDER "SANDY", DONALD, CHARLLE JR., and ELLEN
(Mrs. Hartford Lewis).

Robert, Rellie and Sandy are buried in Orkney.

wre was only iiis seven-— . P R
e 1T e 3o . submitted bv: Margie Stove
aughter Bllen lelt at ;
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ROBERT McKEN JR.
submitted bv: Margic Steve

ROBERT was the eldest of the familv of Beb and Meliie McKen. Bob
was born in Castle Douglas in Scotland in 1891 and came to Canada with
his mother in 1393, at the age of 2.

Bob farmed with his Dad and ran the steam engine on his Dad's
threshing crew until he joined the Army in 1916. He was also the hunter
in the family and it is said that for many years ir was this hunting
ability that put food on the table and clothes on the familv's back.

It was Bob who taught his vounger brother, Deonald, how to hunt and trap.

After joining the Army to fight in W.W.1, Bob was listed as missing,
and was presumed dead in November 1917. His name is listed om the pla-

Jessie (McKen) & Jimmie Cannon

ques of the TUnknown Soldiers on the Menin Gate in TFlanders, France. JESSIE "JEN" McKEN was born in 1895. She was the 3rd child, and
first daughter of Robert and Helen McKen. Jen attended Orkneyv School
WILLIAM McKEN JR ' where Hazel Dodge became her best friend. Jen stayved at home until

her marriage. With a family of 6 plus her Dad, it is not hard to sce

submitted by: HMargie Steve whv she did. With the death of her mother in 1914, she became not only

WILLTAM McKen Jr. was the second child bern to Bob and Nellie McKen, housekeeper, but mother to her vounger sister Ellen, whe was 15 years
at the homestead farm of the McKen's in 1894. ‘ vounger and her brother Charlie, wh? was 12 vears y?unggr than ber.
Bill farmed with his Dad until he too enlisted to fight in W.W.T In 1909 JIMMLT CANNON W?S working éround th? d%SEILCt’ EHV%ng
in 1%16. When Bill left to go overseas he tock his horse "Major'' with arrived the same vear from Mineota, Manitoba. 'Jlmm%e Was bOLH.%H SC?%—
him. Bill was killed in action in June of 1917, and Is buried in Will- land in 1889. He was 19 vears old When he arrlﬁed in Xorkpon g}th his
erville Cemeterv in Belgium. team of horses to help build the railroad frem Yorkton to ﬂelvllle. Due
‘ ) to an outbreak of anthrax his horses had to be done away with so he left
JESSIE McKEN (see story next page) the railroad, saving he couldn't work without his team. TIn 1915 we find

him, among other things coacl of the Orcadia soccer tecam and caretaker

of the Yorkton Skating Rink, where it is said he taught most of the kids

ALEXANDER “SANDY"™ McKEN in the areca how to skate. In 1916 Jimmie joined the Army, but was sent
; : : lome with a medical discharge. On January 2, 1917, Jen and Jimmie were
e 7 -_'\( 1e AN s - . . X . .
submitted by: Margle Steve married. Their first home was in Orcadia and the church later stood on
ALEXANDER McKen was the fourth child born to Bob and Nellie McKen that site.

in 1396 and died a vear later in 1897.
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Jen and Jimmic raised sheep and Jen was the shepherd. Bill Wiseman
Jr. worked with them for a while. Thev then moved to the T.V. Simpson
farm, which is now the golf course in Yorkton. Their oldest san, Bill,
still lays claim to the fact that he is the onlv person around who was

bern on a golf course. They later moved to the Ennis farm, where their
second son Robert, was born. Finally thev settled on a farm rented and
later purchased from Empire lLand and Loan Companv. This was where thev

lived out the rest of their life.

Humour now enters, Jen sent Jimmie out to catch and behead 2 chick-
ens for the threshing crew's dinner. Jimmie was walking across the vard
with the chickens when Donald, Jen's brother came in the gate. Now it
is a known fact that Donald was an excellent marksman. Jimmie held up
the chickens and said, "Shoot their heads off if vou can', whereupon
Donald promptly reached into the car, got his gun and did so, with 2
shots. Another time the writer and Jimmie were shovelling snow off the
roof of the house. Jimmie put the shovel over the chimmey and said,
"Watch this, Auntie's baking bread", aaaagh the old wood stove.

There were endless streams of dogs and other animals, all with
names. They loved their farm.

In 1965 they began moving to Yorkton for the winter. They cele-
brated their Golden Wedding Anniversary in 1967 at Orkney B School in
Orcadia.

Jen and Jimmie had two sons, WILLIAM, who married Isabel Patterson,
and ROBERT "Bob', who married Marian Willows.

Jen died in 1969, Jimmie in 1980 and Bob in 1986.

WILLIAM JOHN “BILL"” and ISABEL CANNON
submitted by: Bill Cannon

How I survived to write this storv, I sometimes wonder. The be-
binning of my life is told in the Jen and Jimmie Cannon story. The story
is told that the night I was born, with Aunt Maggie Hall in attendance,
all did not go well and we were all loaded up and sent to the Yorkton
Hospital, where I was actually born. When I was a month old, Mom and
T were released from hospital with ne way to get home. A taxi was
called, and at that time a taxi was a horse and buggy. The taxi took
us to Aunt Maggie Hall's and the driver went to announce our arrival,
leaving Mom and me in the buggy. The horses shied and ran around in
circles with the both of us still in it. So began my life. The next
incident 1 recall is living in Orcadia, and myself and the Wilson bovs
lying on the railroad track letting the trains run over us, just for
something to do. Prior to moving to the Ennis farm, we spent a winter
with Uncle Tom McKen. That was fun! ©Uncle Tom offered me a dime if
I could keep from talking for five minutes.

L started school at Orkney with Ivan Patrick as my teacher. I was
always interested in sports and plaved ball for Orcadia. This was fun
and sometimes a wild time as there was a feud going between Orcadia and
the Gabert Tigers Ball Team. The team was composed entirely of Gaberts
and they sure didn't appreciate being beaten by Orcadia. This was a
sport T carried with me into the Army. I have a small worn horseshoe
plaque T brought home from England which reads, "Wings for Victory,
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rogom and Ewel England Baseball Match, June 2, 1943 - {anada vs. U.5.A,
P;esented to lance Corporal W.J. CANMNON". In ny growing up vears, many
Gundavs were spent at Uncle Donald MeKen's and we all plaved hockev for
Areadia at what we called "Herb's Hole'. It was a skating rink at Herb
Flliott's. _

In 1941 T joined the army in W,W.II, returning home in the fall of
1945. It was always said my Grandpa McKen lived only for the dav I re-
turned [rom overseas, and so it was that Grandpa McKen died that Christmas.

Isabel & BHICannoﬁ

On November 22, 1946, T married ISABEL PATTHRSON, the daughter of
our neighbours Tom and Betsy Jane Patterson, We began our life together
on the John Polil farm. In 1949 we moved to a little house on Second Ave.
in Yorkton. Later I bought a home at ¢5 Darlington and I began as the
0il truck driver for the Yorkton Co-o0p.

Many promotions later and still with the Co-op at the feed mill,

I left the Co-op in 1969. During this period I was also raising turkeys
with Russell Anderson, and had begun to farm my Mom aud Dad's farm which
I purchased in 1970. T am still farming it, having retired from al%
other jobs. AaAfter the death of my Mother in 1969, my Dad came to live
with us in our new and larger home. Dad staved with us until he needed
more care and had te go to a nursing home. He died in 1980.

Tsabel and T raised a family of 3. DONALD, horn in 1949 and named
after my Uncle Donald McKen, works for L.I. Case and lives in Dawson Creek,
B.C. ALAN was born in 1952, and he with his wife Iris live in Fort Mc-
Murray, Alberta along with their 4 children. Alan is a fireman there. ‘
Our daughter KATHY was born in 1958 and lives in Prince Albert, Sask. with
her husband Kevin Bates, who is the bDeputy Fire Chief.

We have 8 grandchildren and are presently enjoying our life in semi-
retirement. Coing back and forth to the farm on a regular basis and walk-
ing my brown lab, "Sailor'". T celebrated my 70th birthday this vear,
and am enjoving good health and so is my wife Isabel. We look forward
to enjoving many more happy vears together with our grandchildren.
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ROBERT and MARIAN CANNON

submitted by: Bill Canuvon

ROBERT(BOB) was born in 1924 while his parcnts Jen and Jimmie Cannon
were living on the "ERNIS" farm. This farm is the N.E. quarter of section
16 and is presentlv farmed by Don Croc.

Bob spent rmuch of his younger lite arcund his TUncle Donald McKen,
working for him and hunting with him. He became close friends with Barney
Fenske (son of his grandfather's housekeeper, Laura Fenske) as thev were
both musically inclired. Bob and Barnev played for dances at Orknev and
the surrounding district. Bob loved to play his fiddle and he and Barney
also played for Amateur Hour on the radio.

Robert Cannon

Along with his love for music, Bob was also an accomplished athlete.
He played ball with the Orcadia Ball Team, sometimes catching while his
brother Bill pitched. He was one of the famous hockey plavers who played
with the Orcadia hockey team at Herb Elliott's or "Herbs Hole" as it was
known to the bovs.

In 1946 Bob became involved in carpenty and left the district.

ie married his wife MARTAN in the 1970's and they moved to British
Columbia, where Bob died in 1986.

DONALD McKEN
submitted by: Margie Steve

DONALD was born the 5th member of the family of Bob and Helen
"Nellie" McKen. He was born in his parent's log hcuse on Sec. 28.
Donald always said he and Abe Lincoln had something in common, both
born in a log house. Donald could remember only slightly, the sod house
with the log kitchen built on one end, that his grandparents John and
Margaret McKen lived in before thev built their homestead house in 1905.
He said it was always leaking. Also, he remembered the party they had
when it was completed, They all lived together, and that big house was
wide open to the wind. No insulation in those days and the wind whistled
in. During the winter they nearly froze to death.
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It was in this house that his vounger brother Charlie was born. In
1906 his Dad purchased the south half of 35, but it was 3 vears before
thev were able to haul enough Togs from Beaver Eills to build themselves
A lbg house on this land. Tn 1901 all was ready and Donald moved with
his HMother and Dad and three brothers and one sister to the log house
on S1/2 of 35. This was to be a temporary house until they could huild
a better one. However this was te be Donald's home for the next 35 vears.
shortly after moving into this house in March 1910, his vounger sister
Ellen was born.

Tn 1917 Donald and his Dad began farming tegether, but the farm op-
eration at that time was still in Bob's name. Donald worked hard to keep
the farm afloat. He boﬁght a scrub plow and began clearing the bush and
breaking more land. To aid in the paying of the farm debts, he bought
a hammer mill and chopped feed grain for farmers all over the countrv.
Tt's a wonder with all the woerk at home to do, that he found time toc hire
out breaking other people's land as well. He had to wait a few vears
for Barney Fenske to grow up and be able to work with him. Barney and
his mother Laura had come there in the fall of 1916. Barney was onlv a
baby of 18 months, so you can see they had to wait a few years for Barmey
to be old enough to milk the cow. Bob apparently did this chore until
he turned it over te Barney.

It is told in Donald's diaries that Barney was involved in a farm
accident and landed in the hospital in the late 70's. Donald was then
forced to make an effort at milking the cow, for the first time. As
most people know by now, Domald kept a 50 year diary with a daily account-
ing of all his life's work.

In 1939 Bob retired and the land was transferred to Donald. Taking
time from his farm work, his guns and his trapping were his first love.
He had a fine collection of guns and hunting and trapping was an art he
learned from his older brother Bob. Bob was 9 vears older than Denald
and when he set out to hunt and trap, Donald trotted after him, almost
as soon as he was able to walk, Donald was also a veryv avid trapper,
trapping and selling muskrat, mink, wolf, fox and you name it. When
hunting season began, Donald was never seen without his gun nearby.

This did not always help, as he once said, "the ducks flew so low he
could have reached up and grabbed them", He had gone a few steps too
far from the truck, and by the time he got his gun, damn, they were
gone! Also, he trapped a multitude of beaver from the beaver dam he had
built on his farm on 27.

Donald was full of fun and was seldom seen without his lifelong
buddy and friend, his cousin Fred Hall. Many a holiday season and New
Year's Day were spent at the home of Fred and Louise Hall. Fred was just
two vears younger than Donald, and they farmed together for many years.
Fred had a lot of hayv land and Donald hauled most of his hay from there.
The creek ran through Fred's iand, and Fred was forever driving just a
little too close to it and landing in the creek, requiring Donald to come
to pull him out. Most farmer's were concerned if it rained in harvest
time, but not Donald and Fred, they would jump off the combine, grab
their guns and simply go hunting until it dried up.

In 1945 Donald built a new house on the farm. Fred Chupa was hired
as the carpenter and that was the only help needed. Barney proved to be
a talented carpenter and did most of the work on the structure. Donald
looked after his Dad all his 1ife and was happy to see Donald build, how-
ever his Dad was in the house only a month when he died. When they were
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building the house they still had no windows in the bascment, and when
they were away getting more supplies, a skunk paid a call and Tell into
the basement. 3arncy and Donald carefully lowered a stovepipe inte the
basement and waited for the skunk to wander in. Donald had no patience
with waiting, and when they pulled the pipe out Donald looked in the end
to see where the skunk was., It was looking him straight in the eve, and
needless to say, it didn't take Barnev long to appear with a board for the
hole and saved the day.

Donald McKen with coyote skins

1949 brought one of the happiest events in Donald's life with the
arrival of Donaid Cannon, his namesake. Donald is the grandscon of
Donald's sister, Jen.

Donald was a classic example of a farmer who went from steam engine
and horses, to diesel. He ran the steam engine on his Dad's threshing
crew and farmed with horses and gas tractors with lugs. He was one of
the Farmers who was a long time in believing you could use a tractor with
rubber tires. His last tractor was a Duetz diesel.

The Wheat Pool was cne of Donald's pet projects. T guess he knew all
the problems of the farmers prior to the organizing of the Pool. TIf you
lived close to the elevator and got there first, you could deliver vour
wheat and get top dollar. Tf vou lived further away and couldn't get
there in the first bunch, by the time you arrived the price had plummeted.

One of Donald's more notable accomplishments was aiding in the for-
mation of the Yorkton Co-op. He was a charter member of the Co-op and
was on the first Board of Directors along with Stewart Dodds, Gerald
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Tarson, Frank Draper and Fred Edgar, who was the first chairman of that
hoard.  Donald's winter holidav was always his trip to Sasxatooun to the
¢.C.T.1.. Convention. Manv a time, coming and going in the early years

the roads would be blocked at home and he would be taken to and brought
pome from the train in Orcadia by Barney in either the stone boat or the
hav rack and team. Of course the highlight of this trip would be his
annual visit with his sister, Ellen and her familv, who lived in Saskatoon.

Donald was a game warden from 1948 until well iInto the 60's. He
would have staved longer but they decided in Regina that all the game
wardens should wear suits the same. Being a game warden was more or less
agratis anywav, and they wanted Donald to pay $65.00 for a suit, so he
packed up his badge and sent it back. His interest in the preservation
of wildlife never waned. He was working in the field one day when he saw
a hawk swoop down to attack a nest of baby ducks. The mother duck had
wandered off, so Donald jumped off the tractor and threw mud balls at
the hawk. Donald put the nest in his cap and carried it down to the creek,
He said he saved the ducks but didn't do much for his cap. He always
posted his land on 27 in the hunting season.

Donald went to Orknay School and always took his gun with him when
he walked. Apparently there was no shortage of shells as Donald shot
his initials in every fencepost on his way to school and home.

Politics was another of his interests. For many yvears, there was
never an election of any kind held in the district that Donald was not the
D.R.O.

In his vounger years Donald enjoyed playing the fiddle at dances, and
alse for his own pleasure. This was an art he learned from his older
brother, Beb. He plaved fer "Milk for Britain'" dances during the war
vears. He was mostly self-taught on his fiddle and in order to get his
music, Pete Rousay, would whistle and Donald would copy down the notes.

Donald plaved hockey with the Orcadia hockey team until he was well
on in years. His hockey playing was done at Herb Elliott's "Herb's Hole'.

Donald was verv close to his two sisters, Jen and Ellen. Many days
of hunting were spent down at his sister Jen and her husband Jimmie's,

His other sister, Ellen, left the district but Jen never did. As the
writer and the daughter of his sister Ellen, I well remembet the letters
from Uncle Donald, full of fun and news of some sort. When he had fi-
nished the new house and dug a new toilet (a job he didn't think much of},
he wrote and said he hoped nobody ever held their nose waiting feor any-
thing to hit bottom. The time he first saw a manure spreader he sat right
down and wrote to us., '"Boy! I wouldn't want to stand behind that thing
when it takes off'".

A strong community spirit was another of Donald's strong points.

At the time of the final restoration of the Orkney Church and School, he

was too far along in vears to aid in the final restoration, he encouraged

it to the last. He was also very interested in family and communityv history
and made every effort to preserve it. His diaries were published and the
money donated to the Orkney Historical Society to aid in the publishing

of this Orkney History Book. We as a family knew he would want this and
felt no finer tribute could have been made to Donald.

Donald died January 28, 1987 at the age of 87, and is fittingly
buried in Orkney Cemetery with his mother, father and brother Sandy.
Donzld was the last surviving member of the immediate family of Bob McKen.
However he was survived by his sister Jen's son, Bill, and his sister
Ellen's daughter, Margie Steve.

171




CHARLIE McKEN JR.

submitted by: Margie steve

Charlie McKen Jr,

CHARLIE was born the 6th member of the familvy of Rohert and Nellie
MceKen. Charlie was a steam engineer and ran the steamer for his Dad
on the threshing crew. Charlie attended Orkney School. One morning
his sister, Jen, packed him up and sent him te school. Ellen was still
too little to go with him and later in the morning she came in and
announced that Charlie was "deown the hole'. Jen, thinking he had gone
to school, needed a bit of convincing from Ellen, bhut she went out and
sure enough, there was Charlie down the toilet hole. They had just dug
a brand mew toilet hole. Charlie had seen a bird's nest in the corner
of the rcof and in an attempt to get it, had slid down the hole. The
men were all in the field so Jen and Ellen began throwing weed from the
nearby pile down the hole for Charlie to stand on, until he could climb
out.

Charlic was alwave a rather inventive boy. He got tired of sawing
and chopping the wood by hand, so he hocked up the steamer to the buck
saw and it worked! Sure did beat doing it by hand,.

He left home in 1921 and went to Pasqua, just outside of Regina.
There he met up with Bill Wiseman, an old close friend. Apparently
things were not too easy for Bill either, so Charlie left with another
fellow and went on the vodeo circuit. He worked the Sparrow Ranch in
Midnapore, Alberta as a rodeo rider and was injured in an accident when
the horses were coming out of the chute. He recovered from these injuries
and went to Vancouver, where he drove freight trucks. He was again injured
in an accident and this plus his injuriles in Alberta contributed to his
death in December 1927 at the voung age of 21 vears.
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LAWRENCE HERMAN FENSKE

Lawrence “Barney’’ Fenske with his mother Mrs. Laura Fenske
holding her saddle mare, Daisy - ca. 1927-28

I was born at Saltcoats, Sask. on the 1st day of Mav 1915 to
ARTHUR HERMAM and LAUBA ANNIE Fenske.

My father was born at Fall Creek, Wisconsin, U.S.A. on February
22, 1889 to Herman and Bertha Fenske. He came to Canada with his father
and brother about 1912 or 13. A few months later his father and brother
returned to Wisconsin., My father decided te stav in Canada and worked
on various Tarms around Saltceats. He met my mother when he went to
work on the same farm where she was alreadyv enploved.

My mother's maiden name was Laura Annie Hall. She was born at
Little Bainden, Mavfield, Sussex, England to Walter Robert and Eliza
Hall on December 28, 1887. After her school vyears she left home and
worked as a domestic for some of the aristocracy in and around Sussex.
In 1912 she decided to come to Canada, but after making all arrangements
to sail she became verv sick and had to postpone her trip for a vear.
She told me manyv times that she was very lucky that she took sick at
that time as the ship she was to have sailed on was the Titanic, the
ship that was supposed to be unsinkable, but sank when it struck an ice-
berg on its' maiden vovage.

Then in 1913 she felt well encugh to trv to come te Canada again.
She ser saill for Canada in the latterpart of March arriving at Saltceats
the first week of April. She got a job at the Saltcoats Hotel for awhile,
but then she thought she would like to work on a farm.

So she got a job on the farm of William Porter. This was where she
met my father. They were married on the 9th of April 1814, just about
one vear after mv mother arrived from England. Then of course tho big
event was my arrival on the scene about cone vear later, May 1, 1915,
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A few mounths after I was born my father developed tuberculosis.

As there were no sanitoriums at that Uime, he was freated at home, but
passad away on July 25, 1916. After he was laid to rest, mother went
back to her old job at the hotel for a month or sc. It was here she
saw the ad in the Yorkten Enterprise for a houseckeeper for the fzll
harvest scason. She answered the ad and geot the iob on the farm of
Robert McKen of Orcadia. She arrived in Yorkton on the passenger train
and was met there by Mr. McKen, who was driving a team and democrat.
Mother always claimed that was the longest ride she ever had in a de-
mocrat, because of the fact she had me, a baby, to look after and with
the mosquitoes still out in full force, she thought she was going to be
eaten alive, they were so bad. This was in mid September 1916 and 1
was just a little squirt of 16 months.

Mother was quite surprised to find a log house at the end of her
journey, as she had never seen one before and she thought it gquite unique.
The log part of this house consisted of two rooms, a dining-living room
and a bedroom at cne end. There was a frame lean-to of a large kitchen
and bedroom attached. These two bedrooms were large enough to hold two
beds each along with a bureau and washstand and a lot of other miscell-
aneous articles including three trunks. This home stood until 1947 when
it was torn down. Meanwhile a new house had been built in 1945.

Robert McKen's wife had passed away in 1914, leaving him with a
family of six to lock after, four boys and two girls. Uhen myv mother
arrived on the scene, the two older boys William and Robert Jr. had al-
ready enlisted in the Army and were about to go overseas. They eventually
did and were both killed within a few months of each other in 1917.

This left the four other children namelv Jessie(Jane) commonly
called Jen, 21 vrs. old; Donald 16; Charlie 10 and Ellen 6. T will
give a brief history of these last four including their father at the
end of this narration,

After threshing was done that fall my mother stayed on through the
winter to help look after the younger McKen's. 1In the spring of 1917
Mr. McKen asked her is she would stay on for the rest of that year,
which she did. And so what was supposed to have been temporary became
a permanent job, one of 55 years, until she passed away on June 7, 1971.

Besides looking after the McKen family and myself, mother grew a
very large vegetable garden and also a large flower garden. She also
took over looking after the chickens, geese, turkeys and ducks that were
raised on the farm. My mother Jliked to ride and she would ride for miles
visiting various neighbours on horseback. She took over the job of look-
ing after the cattle to help lessen the work of the others on the farm.
As there were no fences when she came to the district, she would have to
ride for miles sometimes to find the cattle. Then around 1920 evervbody
started erecting fences, making it a lot easier to look after the cattle.

Along with these jobs and looking after the house and doing the
cooking, 1 often wonder how she did it.

Especially at threshing time, when she had to cook for 15 to 20
men. This was when she needed help. So Jen McKen or by this time Mrs.
Cannon, used to come and help and of course Ellen was old enough to help
after school. Then in later years I had to help after school as Jen
had moved away and Ellen by this time was going to the Collegiate in
Yorkton. After T quit school T had to be in the field working or hauling
grain from the machine, so T was net much help around the house. This
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was when Mr. MeKen hired someonc to help with the cooking and the general
heusehold work, _

Over the years mother grew some of the most beautiful flower gardens.
in the last vear of the Second World War, she grew a victory gardeﬁ.
the word 'Victory' was planted of white Alyssum and large enoﬁgh that
I'had to get up on the roof of the old house to get the whole word in a
picture.  She did most of the landscaping around the new house, with a
lot of help frem me, as I had to haul the water for the trees and shrubs
and flowers, about every two or three davs.

Mrs. Fenske's Victory Garden

Besides doing all this work, both inside and outside the house, mv

mother belonge:d to the Orkney Ladies Aid. She was a member of the Orknev
Red Cross and also the Orknev Communitv Club,
How she managed all this I still wonder about. 1 know there were

lots of women who went through similar experiences and T say hats off
to them, for if it had not been for them we would not be where we are
todav, Somewhere between coming to the McKen's and starting school T
acquired the name of Barney, and it has stuck to me ever since.

I started school in 1921 with Ellen, who was already going to school.
Ellen was 11 and I was 6 years old. Mr. McKen drove us the 3 1/2 miles
Lo school for the first two years and then as they thought Ellen was able
to handle a horse and buggy, she took over the job of driving to school.
Charlie was through school at this time.

So now I was laft to go to school by myself. I was now 10 vears old.
S0 whenever there was a lhorse available, T rode to school on horseback,
oftherwise I walked across the field 1/2 mile to Orcadia and joined the
kids from there and walked 2 1/2 miles down the track to school. There
Were a few unusual things that happencd when T went to school, like the
time the school barn burned down. The teacher had all of the pupils
Cut cleaning up the yard in the afternoon, then he set fire to the pile
of rubbish that had accumulated. Thinking that the fire was out we all
Went home. The next morning there was no barn, just a pile of ashes and
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some smoke. The teacher got raked over the coals for not making sure
the fire was out before he left for home. We had tu tie our horses Lo
the buggies or to a fencepost for awhile, until the new barn was built
during the summer holidays. Then there was the time one of the kids

was fooling around with matches and started quite a fire across the road
scuth of the school. That used to be part of our plavground at the time.
We all ended up fighting for the rest of the afternocon.

I will never forget falling flat on my face into a wasp nest, when
being chased by another student when we were plaving "pump, pump, pull
away''. I got stung pretty bad around my face. We had an old well north-
west of the scheel that had a lot of wet clay arcund it. Miss McQuecn,
our teacher at the time, took me over to the well and plastered my face
with the clay, which seemed to take the pain out of the stings.

The water in that old well was full of alkali and was Iimpossible
to drink, so it was eventually filled in. I guess I'd better stop
reminiscing as there are things that happened that are to numerous to
mention here.

In the spring of 1930 I passed into grade IX and that was the extent
of my education as I had to leave scheol to work on the farm., There
was of course the usual farm chores and field work to be done after I
left school. But T guess my main job was looking after the cattle, a job
I took over from my mother. There were close to a hundred head, more
or less at times, counting the milk cows. Through the thirties the water
supply in the pasture dried up and T had to take the cattle up te the
Cussed Creek for water. The creek got pretty low at times, but it never
really dried out as there were places that were deep enough to hold water
through the driest season. Later on we bought a 1/4 section of pasture
a mile and a half south of Orcadia, where there was lots of water right
up to the present time. T had to drive the cattle twice a dav up to
that creek, early in the morning and late in the evening if the weather
was very hot and dry. At that time we kept the mlilk cows at home where
there was a good water supply from a forty ft. well, which is still on
the go. In the winter time of course, all the cattle were at home and
had to be watered at that same well. 1 used to check the fences and
carried all my tools on horseback in saddlebags, or tied on the saddle,
Once or twice a vear we would load the wagon with fenceposts and barbed
wire and hitch up the team and go fix the fences where needed, drive in
a few posts, fix broken wires and so on., This was the kind of life I
enjoyed being outdoors, most of the time on horseback.

Another chore in the spring was breaking in young work horses along
with one or two saddle horses. Breaking in the saddle horses was mv job
and I was lucky enough to keep from getting badly hurt. Althocugh there
were times when the going got pretty rough, I used to look forward to it.

As time went by the Orknev Community Club was organized and [ was
secretary for about three years and I also served as president for two
or three years. 1 alsc served on the Church Board for a few vears.

We used to attend the Orkney Church whenever possible. The earliest
minister T remember, was a Rev. Thompson and there was also a bombastic
lay minister named Percy Dallin, who used to come out whenever the
regular minister could not make it. Then in later years there was Rev.
Jack Jones, who came out occasionally. There was also a whole string of
student ministers who came through the years. And of course there is

the present minister, Rev. Don Milne, who comes out once or twice a vear.
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Speaking of minmisters, T should also like to mention here a minister

who used to come out to Orcadia to preach every Sunday morning on the
passenger train from Yorkton. This was a Mr. Sutherland, better known
as "Sunday School Sutherland". 1 don't know if he was ordained or just
a lay minister. 1T can only remember him through the mid twenties, but
he used to come to Orcadia in the early teens sa I was told. He was

not a big man, but he wore a fairly long well clipped beard. He would
come to a different house each week, having made arrangements the week
before as to where he would preach the following Sunday. There are a
couple of dincidents that I would like to tell vou about that happened
while Mr. Sutherland was having his services at the McKen residence.

The first of these two incidents happened when 1 was about 2 years old.
This happened because Donald McKen did not like to attend the services
and was on this Sunday, told to look after me in the kitchen of the old
house, the service being held in the living room, So when Mr. Sutherland
got going pretty good on his sermon Donald thought he would have some
fun. He told me to go to the door of the living room and tell the pre-
acher to shutup. Now as 1 was too young te know any better and my
pronunciation of some of my words was still not the best, this is the
way it came out. I went to the door and looked in and shouted, "Shupup',
and ran back to Donald. Mother said that for a minute she could not
believe her ears and that everyone became very quite and then they

could not keep from laughing, including the minister. Donald thought

it was quite a joke at the time but did not think it so funny by the
time his dad and my mother got through bawling him out. Donald would
have been 17 vears old at that time. Both mother and Donald used to

tell not only me but other people as well about what happened at that
sexvice. The other incident happened when I was old enough to remember
very well as it was about 1925 when T was 10 years old. We had four
well cushioned seats that were joined together with arms in between.

We also had a black and white Fox Terrier, that was almost as wide as

she was high, who liked to sleep on one of the seats. This Sunday one
of the congregation decided to sit where the dog was sleeping, so he
pushed her down on the floor and she sat there and looked at him until

it came time to sing the first hymn. So of course when this gentleman
got up to sing, the little dog jumped back up into her seat without this
gentleman seeing her. What happened next turned out to be quite hilarious
to most of the congregation at the time, but not to this gentleman, al-
though as he told about it in later years, he thought it was‘quite a
joke on himself. When he sat back down after the hymn was over, of course
he sat on the dog, There was a big yelp and 2 shout and one heck of a
racket. These seats were in the back row and everyone turned around to
see what had happened. What they saw was this gentleman getting up off
the floor holding his head and muttering things under his breath, which
I don't think could have been said from the pulpit, When he sat on the
dog she had nipped him on the rear and in his hurry to get up tripped
over his own feet and fell down and bumped his head on the chair in

front of him. This of course caused quite a commotion what with some

of the congregation laughing and others asking if he was okay. He said
he felt like a fool as he should have known the dog would jump back into
her seat. Needless to say the dog was shut in the kitchen or outside for
the other services. Mr. "Sunday School Sutherland" stopped coming around
a few months after this last incident, maybe he thought he should quit
while he was ahead. ’
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For entertainment we formed an orchestra of our own, with my mother
plaving the banjo-mandolin, a combination instrument, with Donald McKen
and mvself on twe fiddles. We also had a couple of
us cnee in awhile. They were George Wilson on the accordian and Jobhn
Tvtyvla on the fiddle. Robert Cannon joined in a iew vears later and he
played the fiddle and guitar. We supplied the music for quite a feow house
dances and also to dances at the Orknev School. When we all got together
we had quite an orchestra, but we could very seldem all get tegether to
plav for dances for one reason or another. Then over the vears, George
Wilson joined the Army and John Tytula moved out of the district and
mother quit plaving, so Bob Cannon and myself and Donald used to plav
at scme of the dances. Then Bob left the district and from then on the
orchestra faded out of existance. I have not plaved the fiddle for vears.
We also took in quite a few picture shows, even riding horseback in to see
some of them. That was back in the thirties when we were a lot younger.
When I say we, I mean Donald McKen, myself and my mother. We were lucky
to get home by midnight, depending on how long the show was and of course
what time we left home to go see the show.

Both mother and Donald are deceased and I am retired.

neighbour bovs join

Since I lived with the McKen familv ali my life, with the exception
of 14 months, T want to recall my association with Donald.

DONALD McKen was the third son of Robert and was born January 2, 1900.
He was a man who enjoved life wvery much and was alwavs full of fun. He

was also a hard worker and looked after the farm diligently. In his
younger years he was a very good rider and roper. He could nearly always
catch anything that came within throwing distance of his rope. Ee was

alsc a very good shot with a rifle or shotgun, but not so good with a
revolver, or if vou like a handgun. He knew guns from one end to the
other and was always very safety conscious when out shooting with some-
one else.

He taught a lot of the younger pecple how te handle guns safely,
including myself. He liked to hunt and trap also. He hunted deer when
the season was open and he would trap and shoot all fur bearing animals
legally. Donald was a deputy game warden for two vears in the late 1940's.
tle kept a diary for 50 vears from 1936 right up to the time of his passing
in 1987. He was a member of the Sask. Wheat Pool and also served as
secretary of the Orcadia Wheat Pocol committee for a few vears. Donald was
also a founding member of the Yorkton Co-operative Assoclation. He was
also a member of the Canadian Co-operative Implements Limited or C.C.IL.L.
and a delegate for them from the Yorkton area for a few vears. He was
a member of the Yorkton Gun Club, when it started back in the fifties
until it disbanded a few vears later.

Donmald liked to play the fiddle, but as he could not carry a tune
verv well he decided to take a correspondence course from the U.S5,

School of Music. He learned just enough to play by note from this course
and then gave it up. All the tunes he plaved on the fiddle he learmned

to play by mote first. Donald went off and on to the Orkney School from
1906 to 1914. He alwavs said he was at home more than he was at school.
Ile took over the farm from his dad in 1940 and farmed until 1984, although
he had farmed with his dad since he had left school,

He passed away shortly after his 87th birthday, Januarv 26, 1937.
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MARGARET ELLEN (McKen) and HARTFORD LEWIS

submitted bv: Margie Steove

Tl

— 1938 —
Back (L to Ri: Ellen (McKen}, Hartford Lewis, Ronnie
Front: Glenn and Margie

ELLEN was the voungest child of Bob and Hellie McKen, the onlv one
of the familv to be born in the log house on $1/2 of section 35. FRllen
was raised by her Dad and her sister Jen. She went to school as did
other members of her familv. She told many times of her life with her
slster Jen, both before and after her marriage to Jimmic Cannon in 1916.

As sohon as Ellen was old enough to stand up, Jen stood her on a
chair and taught her how to bake bread. Her older brothers, Bob and Bill
were at home still when she remembers her and Jern baking bread. Jen took
ill and to bed, and my mother a tot of 6 had to finish making it. The
boys came in and offered tc help and she said, 'Yes, but go wash your

dirty hands'". Onlv once was it ever heard there was a failure. Jen
feared the laughter of her brothers and buried it outside under a pile
of sawdust. Unfortunately, the sun came out and the bread rcse under

the sawdust. My mother was one of the finest bread bakers all her life
duc to the teaching of Jen. After Jen's marriage Mom would be found at
her sister's in Orcadia. Many nights Grandpa would have to hitch the team
and buggy and come loocking for her. It was a wonder he never just gave

up and left here there. Mom and her nephew Bill Cannon both said in later
vears, the most of her growing up vears were spent with Jen and Jimmie.
Later, Jen and Jimmie moved a little further away and it was one of my
mother's fortunes that Uncle Tom took her in. She worked fer Uncle Tom
McKen and this was how she was eventually able to attend Yorkton High
School. TIn 1928 she left home and began working out, wending her away
into the Grav District of Saskatchewan, a town she was never to leave.

It was here in Cctober of 1929 she became the bride of HARTFORD LEWIS.
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Ellen never forgot her friends and family in the Orkney District. Every
summer we would make the trek home to visit. T remember well those visits,
it was always a race with the kids to see which cne of us could see Auntie
Jen's house first. After all was settled we went to Uncle Donald's and
Grandpa's. By that time cveryone knew we were around and we would visit
all over. Fred Hall's, the Chief's and the Staingers were our favorite
spots. Dad was a teacher at the University of Saskatoon, as well as a
farmer, so each winter we locked forward to a visit from Uncle Donald
when he came to the C.C.I.L. convention in Saskatoon.

Ellen was a very adept person in Arts and Crafts. Her needlepoint
pictures hang in nearly all of her families' homes, Ellen and Ilartford
had a family of RON (his wife Flo and their children Susan, Mrs. Larry
Schostal and their children Tracy, Chad and Sherry, and their grand-
daughter Megan), BOB and his wife Peggy, and their children Kristy, Lisa,
Erin and Tindsay, JANE (Mrs. Dean Johnstone and their family, Cory, Jason
and Kellyn), GLENN who died in an accident at the age of 12 in 1944 and
MARGIE, who is widowed and lives in Saskatoon. Margie's husband Merv
died in 1973. Their children Tom {(and his wife Lvnda and. their son,
Trevor their second son Ken and his wife Mary Jo).

Fllen 's familv was her life, and with the death of all her family
except Jen and Donald, she and those two became a very close threcsome.
In times of Joy and Sorrow, they were always together.

AGNES (McKen) GRAHAM
submitted by: Margie Steve

ACNTS was second child of John and Margarcet McKen. Borm in 1371
in Glencairn, Dumfrieshire, in Scotland. Agnes came to Canada with her
brother Bob in April of 1891. She immediately got a job at the Roval
Hotel. Six weeks later she married DICK GRAHAM, a railroad man and
thev moved to Plumas, Manitoba.

They began farming there and went into the Black Angus cattle bus-
iness. Agnes and Dick had a family of 2 boys and 4 girls. DORA (Mrs.
Dave Watson), BOB and his wife Apn, JOIN, EDNA (Mrs. Norman Watsom),
EDITH (Mrs. John Stinson) and ALICE (Mrs. Ed Nichol).

Back Row (L to R); 7, Dave Waton, Dora Watson, Agnes (McKen) Graham,
Mrs. Jirm Graham Front: 7, Dick Graham?
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JIM and CATHERINE McKEN

gubmitted by: Margie steve

Jim & Catherine McKen
— ca. 1905 —

JIM was the third member of the family of John and Margaret :cKen.
e was born in ¥irvkcudbright in Dumfrieshire in 1873. Jim, heing cne
0of the older boys of the family, was working with his Dad and his older
hrother Bob at the ""®ells' farm, in Castle prior to coming to Canada.

Jim was the rabbit catcher at the Kells. At that time the rabbit
population was over running Scotland. Jim had a revolver and a muzzle-
loader, and he was to shoot the vabbits on the estate, but not the hares.
Yhen they all decided to come Lo Canada he bogan poaching o few hares
and put the monev in the 'kitty'. With evervyone doing their part, thev
were scon able to buv tickets te Yerkton, North West Territories. 7

When thev wore boarding the beat to come to Canada, the officials
were not going to let Jim bring his guns, but Jim was able to convince
them that the family was headed for the N.W.T. where there were lots of
Indians and wild amimals, and that the gun would be needed tor thelr
survival. He explained that thevy would likely starve to death.  BSo,
they let bLim bring his gun, and it is for certain that the family would
have starved to death had it not been for Jim's muzuzle-loader. ~
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Jim found a job right awav at Levi Beck's Mill, running the steam
engine.  In 1900 he earned his steam enginecr's papors from the N.W.T.
Whatever money he could save from his wages, he sent to the family on
the homestead to help keep things going. 1n 1904 he laft the Mill and
took employment with the then Sherrif J.T. Hall as Sherrif's Bailiff,

In 1905 he married KATIE SCHNIDT of Yorkton. After his marriage he starteg
a draying business and hired a very ambitious young chap, Frank Draper,

to work for him. In 1908 disaster struck, a fire completely destroyed

his dray business, horses and all.

Following the fire, Jim bought a farm west of Fhenezer which he
worked until 1919, at which time he returned to Yorkton and went into
the Real Estate business with Bert Spice. That venture dida't last long,
and after a short stint with a grain company, he went into a Garage and
Farm Machinery business until 1928, He then left Yorkton ro go with his
two sons to Vermillion, Alberta, where he was a steam engineer in the
Vermillion Flour Mill until 1935,

With the outbreak of World War IT, Jim returned to Yorkton with his
two sons and joined the Air Force. He served as a steam engineer at
Jarvis Air Force Base in Jarvis, Ontario until the war cnded.  Jim's
wife Katie had died in 1926, and Jim went to live with his familv who
had moved to Port Dover, Ontario.

Jim and Katie had a family of 4 children. JOHN JR, who died in a
measles epidemic in 1921, at the age of twelve, DUNCAN (married Bertha
Russell and had children Merle, Robert and Donald. Bertha died in 1946
leaving 3 young children. Duncan married Alice Stewart in 19%49. Alice
was a loving mother to these 3 children. Duncan and Alice had one son,
Billy). MILFORD, {wife Grace and children Fenclope and Heather), and
one daughter, EDITH, who never married.

The John McKen and Robert Mcken families owe a great deal to Uncle
Jim for the sacrifices he made both in getting them to Canada and keeping
them fed. Also, his financial contributions helped keep their farming
operations going, through those first difficult vears,

JEAN “JENNY" McKEN
submitted by: Margie Steve

JENRY was the fourth child of John and Margaret McKen, born in 1874
in Kirkcudbright, Dumfrieshire. Jennie came to Canada with the familvwy
in 1890. She went to work at C.J. McFarlane Milliners in Yorkton, de-
signing and selling hats. In 1892 she married R. DURCAN MacLEOD, who
was cmployed by Massey Harris as an agent in Yorkton.

Jennie and Duncan had two children, a son "RODDY" and a daughter
"ETHEL". Roddy married and had one son "Duncan Macl.eod Jr. Ethel
married Norman Tamblyn, manager of the Northern Crown Bank and thev made
their home in Fiske, Saskatchewan. 1In later vears they moved to British
Columbia, where Norman died. Ethel returned to make her home in Yorkton.
She had two sens, Hugh, who received the Distinguished Flving Cross, and
who died in World War I1, and Glenn "Chubb™. Chubb Tamblyn and his wife
Mary had a family of Hugh, James, Gordon and Russell.

Ethel was a Silver Cross Mother in Yorkton.

R. Duncan MacLeod died in 1932, Jennie died in 1942, Roddy in 1958
and Kthel in 1988,

182

MARGARET (McKen) and GEORGE HALL

submitted by: Margic steve

Margaret (McKen} Hall

MAGCIE was the 5th child of John and Margaret McKen, born in 1875

i o ok o familv to
in Kirkbean, Dumfrieshire, Scotland. Maggie came with the famil:

tanada in 1590, - . -
{ Shortly after arriving in Yorkton, Maggie found employanF attfnu

T o h m o 3 g\"
Roval Hotel and in 1895 married GEORGE HALL of Yorkton. Togetner they

. e s s
r”isei iffi?i%ieoiaiqsizlii;eZ%fectionately known to all, fol%owed i? her
mothe;?s fgziife;s in the practice of mid-wifery. Manywa {§51§e?t0;1
the Orknev Distriet was brought into the world by Aunt Maggie and Dr.
satrick, who she travelled with. | | o
lutrjizég;E:S children were: ANNIE (Mrs. B¥00klyi‘Adamf);wiiﬁﬁE%%Eréﬁrb'
Jack'Stainger), MARGARET "PEGCY', FRED {(Louise), RILL¥AJ WH;VPY kcorr;en)
THOMAS "TOMMY", ART (Mav), MILLICENT (Mrs. Ken Tus_ehl ing), HENR ‘reen),
CHARLES, JOHNNY, ROY, STANLEY and IRENE (Mfs. Howard Evansz.l6 A
Stanlev died in infancy, and Peggie died at the age ot . 5 ge

died in 1938 and "Maggie' din 1952.

TOMMY AND JOHNNY HALL
submitted bv: Margie Steve

TOMMY AND JOHNNY ""HONESS" were born the 6th and 11th children of
UL faTh [l ey AR . ) N 7". o
Magegie (MeKen) and George Hall. They were a family that Tom McKen we
Maggi Me : T
lcomed into his home. ' L .
Tommy was never particularly strong, and after a brief stint

is U om ' : : astaved there to work
the Army, he returned to his Uncle Tom's farm and K

for him until his Uncle died. . o | o
- . this time, Tommyv's brother Fred was married and Tormy LD?tlﬂu&d
o there and i Much of Tommv's spare time was

: ive there ¢ work for his brother. :
to live there and wor o ot 1 1952 md

) . s
spent at the home of his cousin Donald McKen.
ER : ilite funeral.
was awarded a military | _ _ ‘ .y

Tohnny "oness” was somewhat vounger than Tommyv, but he Pattfr N
ife afres . pt : id not serve in the ! >
i 1 afte is ‘her, except that Johnny di
vig life after his brother, : wi serve 1  hoeed
1 After bis brother retired from farming, Johung lived at the f:

. lie spent his last years in the Anderson

of Les and Jovee (McKen) Muir. o
Lodge in Yorkton, where he died in 1979,
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FREDERICK and LOUISE (EVEREST) HALL

LOUTSE (Everest) and FREDERICK Hall were united in marriage on
December 3, 1930, They farmed in the Orcadia District and raised
two sets of twins, WARREN and GRAHAM, born September 25, 1942 and
MERLE and EARIL, boru November 23, 1943,

They atteaded school at Orcadia from grades I-VIIL. Many visits
to the Orkney School were made during this time, especially at Christmas
Concert time. One vear the concert would be held at Orcadia and next
year at Orkney, These were always exciting times. Santa always made
tis annual visit as well. During the spring and early summer Orcadia
and Orkney Schools would meet for softball games and school sports
days - this was also a fun time for us all.

i
st) Hall

Sunday was a day of worship and we would all attend church at the
Orkney United Church. Graham was the pianist for the services. He
had & motorbike and he would use this as a means of transportation to
and from church services., On special occasions Louise and Margaret
Barber (wife of Charles Barber) would sing duets, one especially they
sang so beautifully was "Beyond The Sunset'.

These times were special in our lives, as they brought friends,
neighbours and relatives together for worship and much visiting was
usually done at the conclusion of the church service.

WARREN married Joan McColl on June 6, 1953. They had four
children, Shelley, Shawn, Scott and Ryan. Shellev is married to Pat
Melenychuk. They have a set of twins, a girl Brittany and a boy Tvler.
They live in Edmonton.

Shawn married Tammie Austman. They live in Yorkton. Scott works
ia Toronto aund Ryan is home in Yorkton with his mother, Warren and
Joan divorced., Warren is living in Surrey, B.C,

CRAHAM married Marlene Christensen of Wolseley on April 1, 1961,
They had three children: David, who 1is teaching school in Regina;
Jeffrey, deceased July 4, 1983; and Leslie Ruth, presently in Paris,
France. Graham and Marlene live in Regina, Graham retived from the
Sask. Power Corporation in December 1987,

FARL married Margaret Varga on June 25, 1966. They later divorced,
He then married Shirley Froese on June 6, 1981. They live in Yorktoun.

MERLE married Rueben Larson of Rokeby on January 4, 1964. They
had four children, Todd, Trent, Terry and Lana Louise. Todd married
Mona Martin on October 11, 1986, They live in Saskatoon. Trent also
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Fred & Louise (Evere

lives in Saskatoon. Terry and Lana are still at home. Morle works
for Sask. Department of Agriculture and comploted 25 wears in 1984,

Fred ard Louise semi-retired oo the farm. Louise worked at the
Radar Base for a Few yvears, until 111 health forced her to leave, Thoy
moved to Yorxton in 1966. ‘

Fred passed away on September 6, 1969 and Louise died October 16
1887, Thev are buried at Yorkton Memorial Gardens, ’

Many memories are very vivid in my miad of growing up in the
Orcadia District. The long, cold winters with manv feet of suow and
hwge snow bauks.  Uncle John Hall, Fred's brother used to have te take
us to the main highway one mile awav by team and sleigh box. Our school
teacher, Mrs. Regina Walters from Springside, would pick us up mernings
aud take us back to the waiting team and sleigh after school, We also
used to be able tc skate on the creek, from home to the highwav - what
funr.,  In the spring of the year after the huge amouunts of snow"melted,
we were almost flooded out, We could take the boat practicallv from
the door step and paddle over almost to Auat Ethel's, Louise's sister
(Mrs, Charlie McKen). Tt was alse a good chance for the occasional
gwim. T recall going to the movie in Yorkton after an afternoon of
swimming and scratching so hard all through the show ~ we had a good
case of the "itch".

Warren and Graham also performed at Christmas Coucerts, Graham
would play the pianc and Warren would sing his comical songs ~ great
entertainment.

All these memories are still verwv much alive, Growing up and the
association of the many fine people in Orcadis and Orkaey Dis&rict
will always be verv special to me. Tt was a great place¥to be bhorn
and raised.

WILLIAM McKEN SR,
submitted bv: Margie Steve

WILLIAM "BILL" was born in Louthwick, County of Dumiriecs in Scotland
in 1877, the sixth member of the family of John and Margaret McKen. He
arrived in Yorkton, Canada at the age of 13. He was not verv interested
in farming and went to work draving instead. , 7
Lo In 1899 he left to fight in the Boer War, where he gave his life in

2.

Willtam McKen Sr.
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THOMAS McKEN

submitted bv: Margie Steve

Thomas McKen

THOMAS "TOM" was the 7th child in the family of John and Margaret
McKen. He was born in 1880 in Kirkbean in Dumfrieshire Countv in
Scotland. He came to Canada with the family in 1890.

Tom always said nobody ever knew what hunger was, unless thev had
lived through the winter of 1892. Snow was three feet deep, and the
family had run out of groceries because there was no way of getring to
town. They ate boiled wheat and prairie chickens mest of the winrter.

Alsc, they had run out of components for their shotguns, and resorted
to snaring rabbits for food.

Tom is listed as homesteading the S.W. 1/4 24-27-6. He traded that
homestead and got 27. This was the only time it is known that Tom lived
anywhere cxcept with his parent's on their homestead. The 27 he later
traded with his brother Bob, taking 28 and giving Beb 27. Tom was alwavs
working with Bob, and could be seen with Bob on his threshing outfit. -
These boys became particularly close. In later vears when Bob's son
Donald was farming, he and Uncle Tom was there. One night Bob had a tooth-
ache and instead of going to the dentist, he sent for Tom. Tom arrived,
pulled the tooth, and no mere problems.

Tom's house was always open to his family and he would take anv one
of them in, if it was needed. His mother lived with him after his father's
death in 1912, She remained with him until her death in 1915. His nephew
Fred Hall came to live with him and attended scheol at Orkney. Also,
his other nephews, Tommy and Johnny "Honess" Hall lived with him.

In 1930 his nephew Fred Hall married Louise Evercst of Beaverdale,
and they lived with him along with their first set of twins, Warren and
Graham,

When Tom died in January 1941, the homestead was left to Fred Hall.

JOHN McKEN JR.
submitted bv: Margie Steve

JOIN JR. "JACK'™ '"BATCH" was born in Dumfrieshire, Scotland, the
8th c¢hild of John and Margaret McKen., He came to Canada with his familv

in 1890. "Batch" as he was most always known, never married. He lived
with his family on the homestead on 28 until he was old enough to acquire
hig own romestead. He was the one who ran the steam engine for his Dad

on the MeKen Brothers threshing outfit.
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Batch was self taught and he managed te get his Steam FEngineer's
papers in Canada.  We often wondered just how he had accomplished this,
hut there it was, langing on the wall on his Leusing certificate.  In
later vearsg, after the death of his Dad, he worked continucusly for
"The Svndicate', as their threshing cutfit was called. He worked this
iwth his brother Charlie, the Chief, and his brother-in-law '"Scottie®
Barber. Most of Batch's leisure time was spent at his brother Charlie’s
home. FEvery Sundav he would come to call with his herse and buggy, and
his dog, "Skipper". He took great pride in his horse and buggy, and it
alwavs looked as if he had shined the buggy, harness and even the horses.
He would arrive with his laundry at his sister-in-law, Ethel would wash
this for him and feed him his Sunday supper as well.

We alwavs declared that Uncle Jack was the only person we knew who
could carry a skunk under his arm and never smell, A skunk had crawled
under the step, at Dad's and Uncle Jack reached in and pulled it out.

He tucked it under his arm and walked down to the bush behind the barn,
where he killed it. BHe returned to the house for tea without a whiff of
odor on him.

In later vears Batch bought himself a little green Model A Ford Coupe.
This he always kept in the shed and rarely drove it. The car was alwavs
polished to perfection and Joyce says she got paid a quarter each time
she shined it. In those days a quarter was a handsome price.

During harvest, Charlie's wife, Ethel and their girls would do the
cooking for Batch. He seemed to especially enjoy the company of Bob Henry,
as thev had many a long discussion. Batch was a verv quiet man, and staved
close to home. He was one of the hunting McKen's, and when he died, his
0ld double barrelled Wesley Richards shotgun was donated to the Western
Development Museum.

Quietly he lived his life, loving his brether, his nieces and nephews.
He died peacefully on January 11, 1960, leaving his entire estate to be
divided equally among them.

We can sav, ''No indeed!, we will never forget Uncle Jack.

The Syndicate

L to R 1, John McKen, Charles McKen, Mary McKen (Lewis}, Nellie McKen (Barber),
Charlie 'Scottie” Barber
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CHARLES “THE CHIEF” McKEN

submitted bv: Joyee (MeKen) Mudir

Charles & Ethel {Everest) McKen

CHARLES McKen was the ninth child bora to the family of John and
Margaret McKen. He was born in 1884 in Dumfrieshire,-Scotland and a
new chapter begins in 1890 when he and his family immigrated to Canada
to homestead on NE 28-20-5.

Dad was a self taught man, and a rather successful one at that.

As Dad grew into manhood, so did his love of the land and he started
his own farming operation on the northeast quarter of 20-26-5. Tt was .
here that in the winter of 1918 he brought his lovely bride, ETHEL EVEREST
of the Beaverdale District to be his life long partner. 0ddly enough'
Mother was one of the babies Dad's mother (Margaret McKen) delivered in
her davs as a midwife. Together they began theiy lives with few material
posseséions, hard work, a lot of love and courage and happi@ess. , '

Tn order to expand the farm Dad, Uncle Jack McKem and Uncle Scottie
Rarber had a threshing outfit. The "Syndicate', as it was known, was 4
1905 Rumelv 0il Pull. The Syvndicate was responsible for many a harvest
being successfully threshed in the area.
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Dad and his brothers took great pride in ctheir livestock. The McKen's
were known for thelrWHT

"black" Angus cattle a the Clyvdesdale horses.
is love of cattle was passed ente myv brother Norman. Dad and Norman
ad bullt the berd up to 90 head bHy 1948,

Charles and Fthnel had a family of 8 children, OLIVE 19%1%, REGIES
1921, MAURTCE 2923, ADA 1925, NORMAY 1922, STARNLEY 1930, JOYCE 1932

1-
LEY 1937,

2

A1l of our piconeers had a gtruzggle to survive, life was difficult,
sonctimes even cruel. So too, it was for our carents, but they looked
at life "one dav at a time' and managed not ~o take things too scricusly,
znd their sense of humour was never lost.

Ada remembers our very first Christmas tree when she was about eight
vears old.  There werce pever any Christmas presents, but Christmas stock-
ings were always filled with candy and nuts. This particular Christmas
rorning she fumped out of bed with great expectations, dashed to her stock-
ing onlv to find it 1imp. Tears were neot far awav, when she looked around
and behold, the most beautiful Christmas tree cverl Tt was all decorated
in twinkling tinsel and homemade decorations, More than £ifty vears later,
that tree holds a special place in Ada's heart. HMother and Dad were ob-
vicusly up mest of the night decorating the tree for us.

Later that same dav we went to Uncle Fred Hall's for Christmas Dinner.

Unele Tom MeHen had completely convineced littie eight vear old Ada, that
he had shot Santa Claus because he had caught him in the middle of the
night cutting a branol his lavzest fir tree.  Sure enough, after going

at o, At was obvious thazat 2 branch was indeed

missing, a branch about the sane size as our trec.  When Ada caught the

out and looking

strange sparwle in Unele Tomn's eve, the joke was up, hut we were all very

worried for sometdme as to the condition of poor Santa,

Christmas Dayv every vear was a very special time, perhaps with not
manv, or anyv giftsg, but with warmth of family and friends like the Ben-
iaming and Barbers. Many good times have been shared and stered in our
Temories,  brought out again from time to time, and then filed awavy for
safe keeping.

Maurice remembers the vear he was 16, Dad and Mom bought him a rifle
(.22 calibre) from P.J. Lewciuk, the storekeeper in Orcadia at that time.
The gun is still in good condition. Ada had inscribed "Maurice" on the
stock and it has a prominent place in his gun rack.

Again at 21, he was given a wrist watch by the folks. He still wears
that watch with pride, 45 vear later!!

Yes, gifts were few and far between, but how precious the memories
of those special events.

Our big summer event,to the Yorkton Fair. This was only done with
noney from the good old cream cheque. One vear though, there was no
cream cheque available to go to the fair, and there were a whole lot
of sad faceg arocund. But, dear, faithful Dad came through. He went down
to the Blacksmith Shop and came back with a jam pail full of change that
he had saved over the vears. lle said he had saved it for a "rainv dav"
and this day looked like a downpour. So, off to the fair we went.

The other highlight of the summer was a trip to Good Spirit Take,
better known to us as Devil's Lake and Gunn's Beach. But the jov and
food time was alwayvs dampened by having to come home and milk those darn
cows.  But we had already learned just how important those cows and cream
cheques were to our familw,
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I think one of the most dramatic events of our familyv, was the birth
of Ada. Ground FEog Day was never forgotten, nor was Ada's birthday. For
it was Ground Ting Day in 1925 that the stock arrived through a raging
blizzard tec our home, It was a record storm, I an told and when Monm
went into labour, Dad was hoping it might be false labour or even indi-
gestion. Mom said, "this was it". Dad would warm up lids on the old wood
stove and wrap them in towels and put them around mother hoping to case
the pain. The contractions grew more intense and Dad started the twenty
four mile trip to Yorkton to get Dr. Morrow.

Aunt Louis, mother's sister, was a voung girl of 14 and was staving
with mother at the time and was left in charge. 1In charge of Olive who
was only six, Maurice who was two and her sister about to give birth,

This experience, I am sure Aunt Louise never forgot. On the way home

from Yorkton with Dr. Morrow, the team played out because of the intense
storm. They stopped at George Dalmages, and he hitched up a fresh tecam
and the journey continued. They arrived home in the early morning. Mother
had given birth hours before. All Dr. Morrow said was, "Well, Ethel, wvou
picked a fool of a time to do this!".

The spring of Ada's birth brought a chain of events. FEveryone got
measles and whooping cough. Again Dad made the trip to town, this time
to bring a housekeeper. Her name has been forgotten, but the memorv of
her doughnuts lives on. This woman kept the family in good supply of
doughnuts. Mrs. Austin, a neighbour, came over to care for baby Ada
and would rock her by the hour. Along with all of this, mother had terrible
nose bleeds that again brought the doctor to our hone.

We all survived that horrible winter, including poor Dad. Bv the time
mother was up and around again he sure enjoved her cooking. No more dough-
nurs!

Our Dad was another of those pioneers, who always showed understanding
and kindness to mankind. I am told of how in 1925 or 26 a familv by the
name of Griffin appeared at our home. With only a few belongings they
needed a place to stay, so Dad helped them put tcgether a little sod house
and built a pole and straw shelter for the cattle.

There was also a family by the name of Martins who came about the
same time. They lived on 29 with the Griffin familv where there was alwavs

a good well for water supply.

It was here Olive and Mother learned the art of knitting and other
crafts. Many an enjoyable evening was spent with knitting needles clicking
and I remember a sweater and skirt that 0live made for me which T wore
with great pride. The Griffin children, John and Fvelyn, went to school
with Ada and Maurice and they well remember all the cookies Mrs. Oriffin
would slip inteo their anxicus hands when they would take John and Fvelyn
home. Mrs. Griffin gave us our first pair of haond knitted mittens for
Christmas. What a great lady! We were sorry to sec them meve, but wished
them well and God's grace to go with them!

The farm and the family were growing, Mom and Dad built the addition
to the house in 1944, and the big barn in 1945.

We still milked a lot of cows. It was Dad's job to turn the cream
separator, and he would separate pails and pails of milk. TLooking back
now, this was the very worst thing Dad could have done with the heart
condition he had. How little we knew then.

Dad always seemed to be building or fixing. He enjoyed the Black-
smith Shop and all of us kids remember the big forge. We would turn it
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tor Dad, arg be just fascinated te sce him hammer that stecl into what
over shape he needed, then he would throw it in the snmow to cocl, or in

S Wte a buckel of water. The next step of progress was the workshop
Dad built to house the 32 volt battery. FElectricity. What a celebration
we had when we could turn on a light!

Dad taught me to drive. 1In those davs there was no automatic, just
standard transmission. 1 was so proud that at 14 vears I would drive
bad to Yorkton and park our car along Secend Avenue beside the Dunlop
Building. I would go up the side entrance to Dr. Portnuff's office and
he would come down and check Dad, give him his needle and we would head
home. Dad alwayvs said to me, "Joyvce, vou must respect the gas peddle,
Pretend that there is an egg under the gas peddle, and vou had better not
break it'". 71 taught my daughters the same lesson, but they scrambled
many an egg. Dad was certainly not just our father, but alsc our teacher
and our friend,

T remember once when Mother was in the hospital, Dad took it upon
himself to teach Ada the art of bread making. As soon as Mom came home
from the hospital she soon got the job back again, no one could bake
bread and buns like cur Mother. We girls were all lovingly taught verv
voung to cook and sew and keep house by one of the best.

November 1948 gave us a record amount of snow. Roads were all blocked.
Dad's heart was causing serious problems so Austin Ingham flew Dr. Portnuff
out to our farm. A straw stack was 1it in order for the plane to know

whaere to land.

Dad was treated and made comfortable for the ordeals of tramsporting
him the 2 miles to the highway.

The car's frent wheels were put on the old stone boat then pulled
to the highwavy with a team of horses. Here a car was waiting and took
him to the Yorkron Hospital. Dad mever returned home, On Februarv 5,
1949 Dad died, two days before their wedding anniversarv. We all missed
Dad greatly, especially Norman. He and Dad had a special kinship that goes
bevond human understanding. Horman joined Dad five months later at age 21,

Norman McKen & his mother Ethel
After suffering a terrible sense cof loss and sorrow, many famililes

nave a rebirth and experience some kind of great joy. This was the cir-

cumstance for our family. The vear 1949 saw three wonderful, healthy

arandsens born to our family. To Olive and Lester, Kenncth, to Jean

and Maurice, Domald and to Ada and Melford their first son, Glen.
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The Story of the McKen Children
Mom and Dad had eight children, OLIVE, REGINALD,
STANLEY, JOYCE and WESLEY.
Olive married LESTER LANGE in 1938.
BEUCE and KENNETH.
asthma.

MAURICE, ADA, WORMAYN,

They were blessed with two bovs,
Bruce was troubled with eczema and Kenneth with acute
This forced Lester and Olive to move intro Yorkton. But Lester
continued farming the original Lange Farm, north of Orcadia. Lester died
March 31, 1989,

BRUCE married Madeline Pfeifer in 1960.

Jo-Anne, Kevin and Jennifer.
little girl, Brandy.

KENNETH married Trudy DeiPot. They have two children, Stephanie

Christopher., Kenneth and family neow live on his parents farm. He is the
third generation on his farm.

They have threa children,
Kevin married Laine Hearn and they have a

and

Olive & Lester Lang Family
8ack Row (L to R): Madeline & Bruce; Laine, Brandy & Kevin; Jennifer; Kenneth
Front: Olive & Lester; Jo-Anne: Stephanie; Trudy & Christopher.

REGINALD died as an infant at four months of age.

MAURICE married JEAN McVEY in 1947 at St.
Yorkton. Their reception was held at Orkne
Incidentally was the original church manse.

Haurice brought his bride to our home for a short time,
completed their little home on the adjoining land.
children to their family. DON and MAUREEN. Maurice and Jean bought
the original land, S1/2 of 28, of the McKen's from Fred liall.

They are very active in community affairs.
worked and supported the Orcadia Red Cross, Orkney Community Club, School
Board, Orcadia Wheat Pool and were on the Orkney Church Board during
the amalgamation with Westview United Churcl in Yorkton.

Andrew's United Church in
v B School in Orcadia, which

while thev

Later they added two

Over the years thev

192

Don C.D. McKen and Family
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Uncle Jack McKen lived with us cccasionally during the larter Blages
of his farming carcer and it was he who purchasel a hicyele for me,

As I reminisce, many fond nemorics return and I would e Gulte
prepared to continue if it weren't for my mother's instruction to Meeen
it shert". T slwavs listen to my Mother -+~ so long as it doesn't
contlict with i{nstructions from myv wife,

The less »leasant memories such as Church Vacation School and Suncday
School seem to Tade, or at least take on less Importance --- except for
the time when T »nut a large snake in my sister's waterine can. She
screamed so loudly and for so long, that she nearly scared me to death,
Of course, T neover really admitted to having done it and have alwavs
felt quiltv. T will now attempt to clear my conscience and set things
straight by publicly admitting that T did put the snake in the watering
can, and that I'm sorry,

The greatest influence in my life was derived from my¥ parents’
absolute determination for Maureen and T to have access to the education
that was not available for them, They both participated in community
educational afrzirs. dom, after working long and hard all day alwavs
had time to help us with school work that we may have been having difficulty
with. Dad wade certain that we got to school every dav no matter tho
weather, or how manv miles the team had to go the dav-e-— he Fust pacaed
it slower and longer.

I was particularly fortunate when I started =chool in 1955 4 new
schiool had been built {n Orcadis. Tt was a gi

ahout thirtv-five students attending in grades oma through

classroom se
i

coupie of grade nine and ren students tawing mE by corressondence.
Mrs, Regina Welrers taught for the first three yoars, and Mrs. VWrioda
sYEran taught {er the next five vears,  The stone school at Orknew
remained open for a while longer, and [ have good rvecollections of older
students competing at softball and both schools cetting together for
social events,

Upon gradusting from Orcadia School, my colleague, and by then cgood
friend Allan Benlow, and T were agalin fortunate. A school buw service
had been established a vouple of vears earlier to transport country studoents
to high school <n Yorkton. There was no longer any need to board in
Yorkton while attending high school,

I was a permanent full time resident of the Crcadia/Orkney community
for eighteen vears at which time T began to attend the University of Alia.
in Edmonton., Uncle Jack and Auntie ¥llen Shaver aleng with cousins Cathy,
Connie and Laurel wore moving from Regina to Edmonton at the same time, and
we have always had a close relationship,

[ had already developed a genuine love and respect for the land and
the freedom that the farm lifestvle offers, At the Universityv T planncd
to study enginsering with a specialty in something related to agriculturce,
As fate would have 1t, a new and challenging technology had just been
demonstrated a fow vears earlier, and a particularly knowicdgeabhle pro—
fessor at the University of Alberta was engaged in it. Intrigued by the
possibilities, T began to study under his supervision and carned a
Docterate of Philosophy in Nlectrical Engincering with specialization
Laser Technology, During mv student davs T spent essentially all of my
holiday time working on the farm, Probably, the old adage, "You can
take the boy out of the farm but vou can't take the farm out of the boy",
applied.
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Qur dual carecers, together with mv involvement in a technology that
is new and ir re but promosing, pu us in a pioneering position, and
it Just may be possible that we are
that our Orknoy forefathers and pionesrs of the soil experienced 100 vears
az0.

We are currently living in Calgary, Albercta and Orcadia, Saskatchewan.
Bilkies is emploved by the Calgary Board of Education. Jason and Andrea
are taking eduvcation seriously and are engaged In mumerous extra-curricular
activities. They particularly enjov the time that thev can spend on the
farm. They play their role well with Mom, Dad and Barney in the con-
tinuing process of transfer of knowledge, wisdom and skills from the older
generation to the vounger.

eriencing many of the same emotions

A final note on friendship. T
during relationship that I have had
Beblow, Dennis Popowich, and cousin
of the Orkney community —-- each in

Yes, nineteen fortv-nine was a

am grateful for the rewarding and en-
since childhood with compatricts Allan
Glen Milbrandt --- current builders
their own way,

verv good vear!

MAUREEN also attended the Orcadia School and graduated from the
Regional High School in Yorkton. She was involved in 4-I and was selectod
te attend the Washington conference in 1970, Maureen was active in the
Orkney Church choir and played the piano. She went to Regina and trained
as a registerecd nurse and later married Larry Galve. DLarry is manager
of Engineering Services for the Citv of St. Albert, Alberta.

They have two children, GClavton and Jocelvn. Maureen and Tarry live
in 8t. Albert, Alberta where Maurcen is nursing. Jocelvn has studied
highland dancing and has just recently given her parents a great deal of
pride in her achieving her first gold dance medal. Her grandfather,
Maurice jokingly told her that he would give her ten dollars for everv

gold medal she got., He has had to give up seven, ten dollar bills recentlv.

Larry & Maureen {McKen) Galye Family - 1984
L to R): Clayton, Larry, Maureen & Joceiyn {front)
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Melford & Ada (McKen) Milbrandt Family
Back Row (L to R): Brand & Wendy Schmidt; Gary , Lindsay & Faith; Donna, Chad & Glenn
Front: Kurtis, Ada, Melford, Kristopher, Greg & Kelly

ADA married MELFORD MILBRANDT in 1946, Thev farm west of Qrcadia,
which is the land Melford's Dad farmed.

They have three children, GLENN, GARY and WENDY.

Glenn married Domna Pretzlaw and thev also have three children, Greg,
Kellvy and Chad. Glenn and Donna built a new home next to Glenn's parents
and Glenn and Melf farm together as well as ralsing a fine herd of c¢har-
loils cattle. Donna 1s a registered nurse in the T,.C.U, at the Yorkton
Imion Hospital. Glenn is the third generation on this farm,

Garv married Faith Tillman, Thev have children, Kristopher, Kurtis,
Lindsay and Laura. Gary farms and is busv as a school bus driver. ¥Faith
is a certified nursing assistant and works at Dr., Datta's office.

Wendy married Brad Schmidt, They live in Yorkton and Brad works in
refrigeration and Wendy at Neill's Jewellervy. They have two bovs, Kyle
and Adam.

STANLEY married LINDA TILIMAN. Thev have two bovs, DARYL and BRENT.

Stanley farms Dad's farm with his son Brent. Stanley also works with
Government brop Insurance and Linda at the Yorkton Unicn hospital.

Darvl attended the Orcadia School. Went on te become & teacher.
fie teaches at Delisle, Saskatchewan and lives in Saskatoon,

-

Stanley & Linda (Tillman) McKen Daryl McKen
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Brent & Bernice {Benko} McKen with Jennifer and Brittany

Brent attended the Orcadia School, went to U of $§ and received a
diploma in Agriculture. He married Bernice Benko and live in his srand-
parent's home. Brent is also the third generation living and farming
this land. Brent is the secretary to the Wheat Fool, and Bernice is a
teacher, and is on the staff at Fairview School in Yorkton.

They are blessed with two girls, Jennifer and Brittany

JOYCE - refer to the Muir Family history

Wesley McKen

WESLEY attended Orcadia School. ¥He lived with and tock care of his
mother until his tragiec truck accident in February 1971,

Mother died in 1979 just after her great grandson David (first born
of my daughter, Bomnmie) was born in Scarberough, Ontario. And so the

saga continues. Yew life, love and hope to help fi11 the void of those
who are gone.

I feel very blessed to have had such a wonderful home and family
to be raised in. Doubly so to see all the land that my Dad worked so
hard for is still being farmed successfully by my brothers Maurice and
Stanley and their sons, Don and Brent.

198

JESSIE (McKen) and BILL BENJAMIN

cocland,

bern in 13289 4in Dumfrieshire

2
I

and Margarel ¥eXen., She came to Canada wit

Tor some time after she came to Canada, and it wusn't
her died in 1915 that she mavried BILI, BRMHJAMIN,

e maintained o very close contact with her family

c.  After 3111 retired, thev moved fto Yorktoun.

Jessic worked

alter her no

Bill & Jessie (McKen) Benjamin
with grandchild Beverly Cumming
Jessie and Bill raised 7 children: BILI. JR. bern in 1916 (wife
Jean and daughter Charlotte), MARGARET, born in 1917 {later Mrs, Bill
Crmming and éhildren Beverly and Robert), FLORENCE, born in 1921 (later
Myg, Eérl Christenson and children Willdiam and Benjamin), JAMES (wife
Yarian and children Bvelyn, Beth,Stanley, Debra and Gwen), ROBERT, born
in 1919 (wife flelen and children FBetty and Shirlev), EDNA born in 1926
(later Mrs. Sidney Graves and children Merle, Margaret, and twins Curtis
and Chexrvl), JESSIE born in 1928 (later Mrs, Allen Graves and their
children Fave and twin sons, Glenn and Gregory).

: © e . 4 .
Jessie died in 1953 and Bill followed a short vear later in 1954.
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NELLIE (McKen) and CHARLIE BARBER

submitted by: Mavgie Steve

NELLIE was the twin sister of Mary Jane, born in 1838 to John and
Margaret McKen. These twins were number 10 and 11 in the familv. TJorn
in Dumfrieshire, Scotland, she came with her parents and other familv
members to Canada in 1890. '

The McKen Twins
Mary {(McKen) Lewis & Nellie {(McKen) Barber

deliie married CHARLIE "'SCOTTIE"™ BARBER in 1911, and they set up
farming on Sec. 30. One of their closest neighbours for a few vears
was the Jack Maxwell family,

Scottie worked on the threshing crew '"The Syndicate" with his two
brothers-in-law, Charlie and Jack McKen. As well as working together,
they also spent a lot of time visiting together as a family with the
Charlie McKen's.

Scottie and Nellie raised 4 children: LEWIS, MARGARET "PEGGY",
JOHN and CHARLIE 'CHAY".

Charlie & Nellie (McKen) Barber
Back Row (L to RJ): Charlie (Chay!, Lewis, John, Scottie Front: Margret (Peg!, Nellie
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Lewis remained on the farm and never married. Margaret "Peggy”
married JOE OWIN. They were blessed with one daughter, Pat who becamc
s, Joe Heshka. Jehn married POYLLIS BUCKNUM and they had a daughler
ira. John died suddenlv at home of a heart attack. Charlie married
{ARGARET THOMPSOXN. Their family consists of two children, a son Richard,
and a daughter Lvnne.

Lvnne married Glen Tressel of Neudorf and they have one son, Wayne.
Rick married Audrev Halcro of St. Louis, Saskatchewan and they have three
song, David, Allan and Douglas,

Scottie and Nellie retired from farming and moved to Yorkton, where
Secottie died in 1957. Nellie continued to live in her own home, next door
to her daughter Peggv, until she died in 1972,

MARY JANE (McKen) and CHARLIE LEWIS

submitted by: Margie Steve

MARY JANE was born in Dumfrieshire, Scotland in 1888, one of the
set of twine number 10 and 11 in the family of Jeohn and Margaret McKEen.

On November 23, 1921, Mary married CHARLES LEWIS of Yorkton,
Charles worked on the railroad in the Yorkten area, Both Mary and Charles
were almost 40 vears of age when they married. Their first child, a
daughter EVELYN was born in Yorktoun in 1922. Shortly after rhis, the
family left to make their home in Los Angeles, California, where their
son CHARLES JR. (Jimmie) was borm in 1924.

Charles & Mary (McKen) Lewis
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Mary made several visits home to visit her family. It seems that
Mary instructed her family well about the relatives she had left hehind
in Yorkton, as her children have also made frequent visits home to see
their mother's home and family.

Mary's daughter, FEvelyn, married WALTER DICK {(children Judith, later
Mrs. Norman Pierce and their children William and James). Her son Charles
"Jimmie" married HELEN HANSON and their children were John, James and ’
Thomas. John and his wife have 2 children, Aimee and Allison. James Jr.
and his wife Chervl have one son Aaron.

Mary Jane died in 1958 and Charles pre-deceased her in 1951. Their
family still resides in California,

THE ROBERT McKEN STORY CONTINUES
— JULY 1987 —

gubnitted by Marjorie Steve

As T begin this story, I mention the passing of Donald McKen,
the fourth son and fifth member of the Robert McKen family, on January
26, 1937. '

Jen (McKen) Cannon, Ellen (McKen} Lewis
and Donald McKen
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Mvself, the writer, daughter of Margaret Ellen McKen (Lewis) and
William James Cannon, eldest son of Jessie Jane McKen (Cannon), are
now the only grandchildren left of Robert and Helen.

As I write this story, you will note how close a family my mother,
Auntie Jen, and Uncle Donald were., They were the only children of Robert
and Helen to survive to any age. Uncle Donald was 87, Auntie Jen was 74,
and my mother was 68,

My mother was but a wee tot of four when her mother died, She was
named after her mother and grandmother, Twe things happened here.
Grampa couln't say his H's, so my mother's name slipped to Ellen. Also,
Jessie seemed to be a name my mother couldn't handle so she always called
Jessie -Jen, a name which stuck. Thereafter, she was known all her life
as Jen.

Mom was seven vears old when Jimmy Cannon wooed and won the affections
of Jen McKen. Mom often told stories of her life before and after this
marriage.

When she was a wee girl, Jen would stand her on a chair and teach
her how to make bread and buns. A comment here I make, Mom, all her life
was one of the finest bakers, bar none. She told her feelings many times
about Jen. Her mother died when she was little and Auntie Jen was the only
mother she had ever really known, So, it was not surprising when Jen
married Jimmy that many nights after school at Orkney, Mom would run away
from home and would be found by her father later at Jen and Jimmy's with
her wee puppv dog. How that puppy survived is something else. She would
raise it on its front legs, grab it up by the hind legs and run it ahead
of her down the road to school every morning. She said she always got
into trouble running away to Jen's, but she went anvway. The proof of
the story when visiting at Bill Cannon's just this year, he said, "Your
mother sure spent a lot of time at our house when I was a kid."

In 1927, my mom was by then a young lady of 17 and she went away
from home to work out as a housekeeper. She arrived in the south country
in Riceton, Saskatchewan then on to Gray, where she met my father, Hart-
for Lewis. On October 15, 1929, she and my father were married,

Both Jen and Elien were now married, Jen in 1918, my Ellen in 1929,
I must say now that I cannot write this story without bringing inteo it
all the way along her sister Jen and brother Donald.

My recollections are of every summer going home to Yorkton and Orcadia
with mom and dad, my two brothers Renald Laverpe, born in 1930, Glenn
in 1931, and myself, the Christmas present, in 1933.

At first my dad had only a truck to go home in, a 1928 Chevy. Tt was
always a race to see which one of us could see Auntie Jen's house firstc
as we came up the road and through the field. By this time Jen and Jimmy
had their two sons, Bill (1919) and Bob (1924). So here we were the
grandchildren of Robert McKen. As soon as all was unloaded and we had
a night's sleep, it was up in the morning and off to Uncle Donald's and
Grandpa's that we had arrived.
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I well remember the old log house on the farm at Orcadia. The long
table that stretched clear acrosgs the kitchen. I remember at one time
there was a family of nine who sat dowa to eat. Then, two stops up
and vou were out of the kitchen and into the living room, Grandpa had
a set of horse hair chairs against one wall. This was his favorite
chair to sit on in the house., So, we knew if he was not by the door we
could run in the house up those two steps to the living room, and there
he was. All this action and the noisc from Donald's barking dog would
bring Uncle Donald down the path through the bush from the barnvard. e
were all then tegether with much laughter and much talking.

I don't know how he knew but no soconer would the commotion he settled
down then enter Fred Hall that to be sure the next evening was to be
spent at his home. By the time we got to Fred and Louise's, the word
was around and we were expected to go to Charlie McKen's. The wording
went something like this, "The '"Chief" expects you tomorrow'. A lot
of Grandpa's brothers had nicknames. Why Crandpa was "The Boss! and
Charlie was "The Chief", I do not know,

In later vears into the forties, my father would often be awav with
work in summer for the University, so Mom was often at Jen's with the car

and myself. These were some of the happiest years that Mom, Jen and Donald

were to have. As Mom could drive, it meant that we three, Mom, Jen and
myself would every day get in the car and set about visiting all the rel-
atives. After each day's visiting, we alwavs had to allow enough time
before supper to stop at Uncle Donald's on the wav home and tell him

the events of the day.

These were the times as a small girl that I came to know well so

many of the older McKen family and their descending family. The Fred Halls,

the Charlie McKens, the Jack Staingers, the Benjamins and the Barbers.

I recall one night in '43 Auntie Jen told Mom there was to be an old
time dance at Orkney Shccool and she would sure like to go. So off we went
again, the three of us to the dance. 1t was many years later to relate
this story to Bill and tell him, "Boy, could your mother ever dance'.

1944 brought trouble to our family with the death in an accident
of my middle brother Glenn at the age of 12, the only red-headed grand-
child. Here I must admit I know how much I look like mv mom, but it
never ceased to amaze me how much this red-headed brother of mine re-
sembled the picture of my grandmother Helen,

Once again, I bring Donald and Jen into the picture. Uncle Donald
had this 1940 Dodze car and he and Jen set out to get to Mom and Dad's.
Jen said as if it wasn't enough Donald's car beoiled and heated all the
way downr. She told of taking her hankie and holding it over the radiator
while Donald poured water from the ditches inte it so thev could keep
going and get to us.

The country here, [ tell vou now, where T grew up was the flat prairie
land of the Regina Plains, Uncle Dorald did not think much of cur country
gide, He was heard manyv times toe remark jokingly, "That sure is barren
countrv, L swear you can see the bed pot under the hed ten miles away!"

204

T here tell my side of the story, T told people my Uncle Donald lives
1/4 of a miie from town and vou can't see his farm for bush.

The summer of 1945 saw Uncle Donald building his new house.

My father was a farmer in the summer time but in the winter months

we lived in Saskatoon where he was a Professor in the College of Agriculture

4t the University of Saskatchewan. It was here in December of 1945 we
received word of the serious illness of my Grampa Robert. My mother
and 1 set out bv train from here to get to Yorktom. That train ride I
will never forgét so help me. The train was 11 hours late and the only
bright spot in the whole journey was when we waved to Jack Stainger as
he picked up the mail off the train when we went through Orcadia., He
was later to tell us it was a good thing we came that day as the next
day the traim never came at all,

The old C.P.R. station still srands in Saskatoon and T never drive
past it but I don't remember that train ride, Our efforts to get to
Grampa were futile and Grampa was already gone when we arrived. We did
see Jen's son Bill as he was now home from overseas. This was our first
time in Uncle Donald's new house. T only being vet a young kid at the
time, Barnev Fenske was commandered to take me to the Xmas Concert at
Orkney Church.

The day of Grampa's funeral was T think one of the coldest days in
my life. Once again we set out in Uncle Donald's car and it balked, we
got it going but the heater did not work. It was a lovely warm day in
January when we laid Uncle Deonald to rest in Orkney. My thoughts rolled
back and T remarked to Barnev, "This is sure a lot different day than the
last time we stood here'. T realized then Barney had not forgotten
cither.

Tn the summer of 1946, our family now growing up a bit. Bill was
spening much of his time at the Patterson home. What a thrilling summer
to say the least that was Jen, Jimmy, Mom, Bill, and TIsobel, Bob and me.
Unclevjimmy by this time had purchased a coupe car with rumble seat in
the back. Bv sheer luck and an overlaod of people I was allowed to ride
in the rumblé seat. As I remember T don't think Uncle Jimmy ever let my
Mom drive the car.

That fall we went to Yorkton for the wedding of Bill and Isobel.
Bob by this time was working in Yorkton and was well on his way to leaving
Yorkton to make a life for himself.

Tn 1948, mv brother Ron was married to Florence Cooper of Saskatcon.
So the familv trips were parred down to Mom and I as 1 was still voumg at

bome. There was a shortage of girls as vou can see and T was the only

. . . . PR 1
pirl in the descending family until rthe arrival of mv nicce, Ron's daughter,
Sugan. The next vear saw the arrival of Denald Cannoun. What fun Ellen

and Jen—each with a grandchild! Yo matter, it must meant more people to
: T T T . J1 - -

come home to Auntie Jen's, Uncle Jimm's, and Uncle Donald's, The next

to arrive were Robert, son of Ron and Alan, seon of Bill. Now we approach

1955 and mv marriage to Mervin Steve of Saskatoon, Julv 1956, Thomas
Richard Donald made his appearance. 1958 Auntie Jen strikes gold, the
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arrival of granddaughter, Kathv. 1959, my son Kenneth Bruce Steve and
1966 the arrival of another daughter Jane for my brother Ron and his wife
Plorence. Imagine the jov of Jen, Jimmy and Donaid as every ycar our
husbands, wives, and families would all proceed to Yorkton and Orcadia to
track through their homes. On cne of these journeys, my husband, myself
and my two kids packed up Jen and off we went to a picnic at Orkney School.

Happy years for all indeed. Fall of 1967, we went home for the
Colden Wedding Anniversary of Auntie Jen and Uncle Jimmv. Auntie Jen's
health was failing then as well as that of my husband, however we did
have a joyous celebration.

Finally, her illness overcame her and in 1969 my Auntie Jen died.
I1lness again in 1973 took the life of my husband Mervin Steve at the age
of 43. My mother lived long encugh to see three of her grandchildren married
and begin a generation of 6 great grandchildren before her life was taken
in December of 1978, just ten months short of her Golden Wedding date,

lere, I will give a running of my mother's family. My father, Hart-
ford Lewis, brother Glenn (1931-1944). My brother Ron and his wife Flo
and their children Susan and her husband Larry Shostal and their three
children Tracy, Sherri and Chad. Tracy is married to Kevin Donald, they
have a daughter Megan. Jane and her husbdnd Dean Johnstone and their
three children Cori, Jason and Kellyn. Robert and his wife Peggy and their
four children Kristy, Lisa, Erin and Lindsay. The writer and her husband
Mervin Steve and their children Tom and his wife Lynda and their son Trevor

and Kenn and his wife Mary Jo.

Now back to Yorkton where we find Uncle Jimmy living with Bill and
Isabel. Then to a home where he died in 1980 at the age of 90 vears.

In 1985 brought the death of my brother Ron at age 54 and again
in 1986 we lost Robert Cannon at 62. BSo, it was in January of 1987 Bill
and T found ourselves the only grandchildren of Robert McKen left. My
memories are many and happy about the life I enjoyed with my mother's
family in Orcadia and Yorkton. I close this story by telling about Barney
Fenske whe lived with Uncle Donald, Grampa and his mother, Laura. He
came into the family as a baby of two in 1917 with his mother, and is
still living on the farm. A good and faithful friend he was to Uncle
Donald. I could talk on about Barney, but I shall leave that to him.
T surprised a few people when T saw him this year and asked if he could

still play the mouth organ.

Time to put down my pen and close this chapter in the Robert McKen
family.

— My Vivid Recollections of This Family —

- Grampa Rober's "Aye Lassie' when I came in
- Grampa in his horse hair chair in the corner at his side was

Gramma's picture
- Grampa's big mustache curled up at the ends

- Gramqa riding in our car. He would never ride in our car, but
one day =y dad coaxed him into the car and we drove him down to

ﬁ:?F{G;JGHES’ he yeiledlall the wav down and all the way back,

1.”ou down, Hartford. T can't count the fance posts’,

hve? now as I go in the vard, I can picture Graﬁpa sitting in his

chair cutside the door of the log house. Even though the house

is long gone, J -

- ?nfle Lonald and his guns, Ilow he loved hunting and trapping.

- L?lng witchen matches and striking them on the side of his Briar
pipe to light them.

- h%s fiddle and how he could play, "The Irish Washer Woman'.

— his letters to us and how we would laugh, They were always full
of fun of some sort. The time the skunk wandered into the basement
of his house and the antics he and Barney went through tc get it
?ut. Lowered a stove pipe into the basement, the skunk wa;dered
lgto it when they raised it up in yard. Uncle Donald looked in the
pipe to sec where the skunk was and it was looking him right in
the cye.

~ the first time he saw a manure spreader, Boy, he told that one!

-~ building the new outhouse and telling us he hoped he never had.to
dig another. Said he hoped no one ever held their nose waiting
for any thing to hit botteom. The outhouse still stands in the
same spot todav.

- @is @ccent all his life, he never lived in the "bush'", he lived
in the "boosh'. ’

- Auntie Jen running from the house to meet us when we came through
the gnte

— showing us kids how to wring a chicken's neck

- "0k, Mercy'" was her favorite expressicn

- doing her wash on the hand powered washing machine

~ 1 have never again met a woman quite like her. Happvy and content
with whatever life held for her. )

- Uncle jimmy going out of the house in the early morning and calling
to all the animals, then walking across the ya;d with them all
following after him.

My mother Ellen led a much different life but in many ways I could
sce, ves that Jen had raised her. She excelled in Arts and Crafts. There
waslscarnely a handicraft known that she could not turn her hand to and
do it well. Her ncedle point and petite point pictures hanging in almost
all of her family's homes. She, like Jen; was a good mother té her familvy.
Her family, her crafts, her curling, and her involvement in the Order of-;
the Faster Star pretty much tells the story of her life.

- The little song my mother said she would sing and skip to as a wee
girl,

Raiser Bill

Went up the hill,

To take a look at France
Kaiser Bill came down the hill
with bullets in his pants.
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THE GILBERT STAINGER FAMILY

" Gilbert Stélnger

CTLBERT Stainger came from Orkney, Scotland. He married a lady
of Cree descent, from Manitoba, MARY JANE SANDERSON. They had five
children, JOHN, WILLIAM, PETER, MARY, deceased at the age of sixteen
years, and a babv girl who died at the age of a few weeks old. The
mother Mary died in childbirth., William was four vears old at the time.
He was borm August 8, 1886 in Ossowa Woodland Munc., Manitoba. William
1ived on Manitoulin Island prior to coming to vYorkton in 1890 with his
father and two brothers.

Gilbert bought a homestead from Mr. Humble Ferguson, where he was
living at the time in Orkney District. Gilbert passed on at the age of
seventy-five years in 1921.

Since there were a few Staingers in the area from what I understand,
in order not to get the mail mixed up, one of the Staingers had the
letter i put in between the a and the © in the original name, Stanger.
1t has remained there till this day.

Mary (Brough) & Willie Stainger
Wedding Photo — Oct. 20, 1909
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WIT.LIAM Stainger alse known as Bill grew un on his father's home-
stoad 1o Orknev. lHe recalls, when as a little hoy, sitting by and watching
ihe men work as they were bullding the Orkney School entirely out of
stone. He attended that school for two years and had to quit in ordetr
to help with the work at home. He recalls thaz the school was a cold
place during the winter.

At the age of twenty-four vears he decided to settle down and marr-
ied MARY AXN BROUGH, age nineteen on Qctober 20, 1909 at Yorkton, Sask.
Mary was the daughter of John Allan and Harrriet Ann Brough, Mary was
born on July 16, 1891 at Sec. 32-27-4 west of the 2nd, MN.W.T., Canada.

William and Mary had the following children all born in Yorkton's
Victoria ilospital.

JOUY, February 28, 1911, married DOROTHY BRIGHT, lives in Calgary,
Alberta. He had three children, GEORGE, WESLEY and CHARLIE, Bille,
March 5, 1913, lives in Milk River, Alberta. l.ena, February 10, 1918,
married Roman Fenger, lives in Blackfolds, Alberta. They had three
children, Judv, Karen and Doug. Gordon, September 3, 1922, married
Elizabeth Belcourt (deceased October 21, 1988) lives in Weraskiwin,
Alberta. Norman. December 3, 1920 married Petrena Dolawski {(deceased
May 12, 1985) lives in Hudson llope, B.C. They had twin girls, Stella
and Johanna, who was a still at birth. Charlie, June 7, 1926, married
gtella Delawski (deceased March 14, 1981) lives in Quesnal, B.C. They
had four children, Carol, Joe, Linda and Brenda. Jennie, March 24, 1924,
narried Hearv Miller and lives in Sundre, Alberta. George, June 30, 1937,
married Ann Bellintine, lives in Quesnel, B,C.

Tn addition, a boy and a girl were born and died in infancy.

Norman & Petrena {Dolawski} Stainger
with daughter Stella

William farmed two quarters of land. He did mixed farming. Part
of the land was for pasture as he had a few head of cattle and sixteen
head of horses. He broke horses in, so he continually bought and sold
them. He was known to have some of the finest horses 1in that country,
they were ome of his hobbies and he loved them very much.
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Tragedy struck some of his best horses and he lost all but three to Nad recalls watching the prairie chickens come together and make

. . . PRl B P . . 3 el ] e Lt e U
swamnp fever, which was very hearthreaking to him. 2il kinds of sound while doing their fancy dancing,
The logs “or the house and barn were brought in by his Loam of horses, West sice of the old homestead there used o be three rutted trails

thirty miles west of the homestead in Beaver ifllls, Marv's father, John
had built the heouse on the homestead. Part of it still stands today.

eoing north and south across the farm. When da
made these trails and he was told they were @

was a boy he asked vhat
by Red River Carts pulled

The harn was in very good condition when I last saw it. by oxen. These three trails could have been the old freight trails
William was one of the members of the Jury in Yorkton's court. He between Winnipeg and Edmonton. Might also have been the Red Riwver

was a big stocky man but was verv light on his feet. ke was known to Trail.

be one of the best jigging and tap dancer. He could easily tap dance Dad shewed me the areca where he had his first trapline. 1In those

within a twelve inch square for a long pericd of time. He could plav vears the gopher were abundant. The cute little creatures were not

the fiddle very well but he was alwavs-a bit hesitant to do so in public. thought cute by the farmers. They were looked upon as a pest that ate
There had been some hard times. One of the memories Lena recalls the grass that the horses and cattle should have. All the holes that

was when evervone was getting the flu. They always had a hired hand to were on the fields were dangercus for the horse and the rider as the

help with the work. When the flu struck, her mem had six children and horse could easily stumble when stepping in the gopher hole. Bounties

every one was down with the flu. The hired man left in a hurry for he were put on the little gopher and many farmers would pav a cent a tail.

' was afraid of getting the flu. The barn was full of horses and no one So the local voung bovs had a job to do. Dad was one of the young Bounty
to look after them. She recalls her mother had to ge out and let the Hunters for Martin Just. Dad hunted well, using his mother's sewing
horses out of the barn to look after themselves. There was no one to machine lace and I'm sure she did neot appreciate this when she wanted
; feed them as her mother had to go to the hospital, as she had double to use her sewing machine and the lace was mot there.

pneumonia and almost died. Lena recalls it was a verv bad time as it Also, dad used a shoelace that worked out very well. He would wverv

all happened in the month of March, patiently wait by the gopher's hole with the loop tied over the hole,
When the 30's arrived there were more probless as drought hit and When the curious gopher popped his head out to see what was taking place
everything turned to dust. William still attempted farming aod planted the unfortunate sopher was captured, Dad, being soft-hearted, felt sorrv
a crop. But that spring was sc windy the crop just blew away and so did for the gophers as he used to sit and wateh them frolick amongst them-
William's dreams sielves. They scemed sco happv, playing tag, wrestling and ceunjoving life
Mv dad, Norman can remember the dust storms that would darken the oul ip fhe sunshine.
skies. At times it was so dark it was difficult to tell if it was day Everviime he caught one he would see those big soft eves and he'd
or night. During the day sometimes cone had to have a light in the fecl like two cents. lle was not told if the gophers should be alive or
house. The wind would howl and scream and moan, The dust would come dead, just the tails were wanted. So dad would catch the gopher and
right through the walls. There would be an inch of dust on the window easily pull the skin off their tails. He still had the tail to clainm
sills even if it was dusted off everyday. Dad's mother would cover every- the bounty. Things scemed to go well for awhile. The gophers didn't
thing with shects and still the dust would penetrate through. One could secm to be Suffurfng anv, for thev continued to plav and chase one an-
feel the grit and taste the dust in the feod, other like nothing happened. Mr. Just scemed content in receiving the
One had te be careful in going to the barn because one could casily talls and the little boy had his pennies, Dad said it was an unusual
get lost 1f he did not hold on to the rope from the house to the barn. tight to sce all tho gophers rumning around with their bone dried
The dust was that thick, at times cne could onlv see inches. Waving a tails sticking up high, reflecting white against the sun. It was not
lawp or having 2 light shining in the window at times was needed to see an amusing sight when Mr. Just came to investigate his field nad saw
your way from the barn to the house. Dad can remember a lot cf coughing all these little white refliectors running around in his field. That
and red eyes when the winds howled and the dust swirled. put an end to dad's bounty hunting. 1f Mr. Just could read this, would
Se with losing the horses to swamp fever, no crop, dust storms, and he @till recall the little Bounty Hunter chat had a soft spot in his
Allness, William knew there was grecner country north. So William, Mary heart for the little gophers.
and the children packed what theyv could on a wagen pulled bv a team of As we walked back to the gate, dad inspected the old cedar gate
herses.  Thev rented the farm to Martin Just and September 1932, they post, still pood for being there almost fifty vears. Dad wondered if

headed north to Irwood. ‘ the old moose horns were still around. Immediatelv he found them all

My dad, Nerman, recalls how good the air smelled so clean and fresh Intact. Dad relates the story of his dad's last moose hunt while
compared to the dried prairies. The most outstanding memory he recalls living in this area. My dad's father and John Weatherspoon left Yorkton
ig how fresh and green cvervthing was. It was bush country all around. around the first snow ih October 1929, with a large fat team of grev

A few dave later he was fascinated to see so much wildlife arouqd. horses, and a canvas covered sleigh, loaded with oats, hav and groceries.
There was an abundance of deer, moose, grouse, ducks, and rabbits. o Thev were to sleep outside, underneath the bright stars with abundance
fear of going hungry! of frash cerisp wintry air. They were to go to Rosco as that was the

Since there was no schoel at Erwood, dad never was able to roturn closest they could gét to hunt Moose in an area that had an open moose

to school. 1t was quite a few vears later that a schoo% was bu.l.lt.I - season. They got their moose and at the bottom of Pee Wee Hill, south
wWitliam settled in E ask. : int ixed farming, ¢ ate ) N " ) 7 _ - P :
william settled in Erwood, SIQR s weut into mixed farming, anc theT of Reserve, they saw tracks of two moose and two deer, That's the first .
did some cordwood cutting with his sons, :

210 211

_ -




tracks ever seen of moose in that area, It was closer than Rosco. Shortly
after there was an abundance of moose in Erwood.

Thev returned home for Christmas with two very thin grov horsges,
no oats nor hay, ne groceries and a couple of very dead tired men. That

was after two months on the trail. But thev had the meat for the rest
of the winter.
Sc this was the moose horns taken im 1929 ncar Rosco. They were

in excellent conditicn with oniv one end of the palm gnawed by a rodent.

Indeed a prized relic in my eyes and a valuable possession to own.
For they were lying on the ground for about fifty-six vears and still
preserved nicely.

Dad recalls one of his special friends, Mrs. Bear. Dad and his
friend Lloyd Garry used to visit Mrs, Bear often. She was a kindly
lady who enjoyed their company, She would sing songs to the two young
lads and tell them many stories. Dad said she could sing beautifully.
She treated them to her pancakes which were dad's favorite, He said
she made the best pancakes in the whole district. She is remembered so
well.

We walked the trail te the highwav where we were parked. This
trail was used by the kids to go to school. Dad sayvs there is very little
change in the ¢ld gnarled, dwarfed trees along the trail. This brought
memeries to my dad as he wondered aleng in deep thought. le used to
collect eggs of every different bird in the district, He took only one
egg and was very careful not to damage the mext or upset the parent
birds. He said the crows were quite aggressive and could be hard on
the head. Falling out of the trees produced many black and blue bruises.

As we neared the highwav each in our own thoughts of the bygone
vears, we tock a moment and looked back, saw the lonelv old housc on the
herizon of what used to be the old homestead, with flashes of memories
of dad's bovhood going through our minds. As the rain began to fall
at the end of the day, we got into our truck to continue our journey.

I end this with —-— "Helle, King Billy" from Forman!:

William and Mary lived in their log house in Erwood for a number
of vears. Later they moved to Red Deer, Alberta and lived in a Senior
Citizen's Home. Mary died on May 20, 1966 and William on Julvy 7, 1973.

I, STELLA GAIL, the only daughter of Norman and Petrena Stainger
was born on August 9, 1946, I also had a twin sister but unfortunately
she was stillborn. T married PAUL ROSENBERGER on July 29, 1966. We
have one daughter, WENONAH NOLITA, born February 2, 1980.

My dad grew up in northern Saskatchewan in bushland, so became a
logger. Work included boxwood, cordwood and he became an owner of a
sawmill. He also worked as a faller in Saskatchewan and British Columbia.

At present we are all living in Hudson Hope, B.C. which 1s known
for the large B.C. Hydro Bennctt's Dam and a second Dam Site T. lHudson
Hope is known for its discoveries of mammoth and dincsaur bones.

In the year 1985, my dad, Nerman Stainger, Paul, Wenonah and I
were passing through Yorkton.

We took some time to visit Orkney District, as we wanted to sce
the countrv that my dad used to run around as a young boy in bare feet
chasing gophers.

The first sight we came to was the Church and School. We were fas-
cinatecd at the structure of the stone buildings. It is a masterpiece bv
itself. One could see the talent and skill that was used in constructing
guch an outstanding building.
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Thoughts raced through my mind. Ti only this school could talk.

‘ng as waell as humourcus stories and experiences it could relate.
back many memories to my father. He recalls his firvst
ceachoer, Miss Lange, some of the other teachers, ¥Mr, Ivan Patrick and

Mr. Tripp. He recalls Mr. Tripp as a very big man and It was nothing

for him to run with a geood sized kid under each arm. Dad remembers him

28 a kindly and gentle teacher.

Dad didn't go to school very long as his parents moved north.

Across from the school we visited the cemetery and dad recognized
nany familiar names on the headstones and markers. We noticed some of
our kinfolk's names as well. We noticed some verv old ummarked graves
and figured that amongst them are his infant brother and sister.

Then we headed to the old homestead, The surrcunding area really
has changed from what dad remembers, Dad recognized the house imm-—
cdiately, even if some was missing., He said the barn is in excellent
shape after all these yvears. But the landscape had changed drasticallwv.

Looking at the house and barn, I was quite surprised in seeing how
well it stood up all through these vears,

I had to examine the housec and put my imagination to use. The
reoms, partially rotted floor, the stairs that led to the bedrcoms
which are occupied by pigeons. At least the house was not completely
abandoned. Tlocking around dad was telling me where different pieces
of furniture were kept and I often wonder what happened to the beau-
tiful organ my grandmother used to play. What I'd give to have that in
rememberance of her. One could see it was a nice house at that time.

The boards on the inside walls looked very well preserved.

As I quietly gazed at the surroundings, I recalled an incident my
dad related. I could see him as a young impish boy sitting across the
stairs with short pants and bare feet dangling while spitting grape seeds
against the wall as he chewed on the grapes. He was fascinated as he
watched the seeds bounce and stick to the wall. T also in imagination
could hear his well-tempered mother firmly scolding Norman for his
mischievous experiment.

Looking closelv at the cracked and torn blue wall paper I could see
faint pencil drawings and writings. Again the question came into my mind
if that is not some of my dad's trademarks. TIf only the house could talk,

As we walked around the house looking at the surroundings, dad tried
to recall familiar scenes which seemed to have diéappeared with the dust
storms.

Across the railroad tracks west of the Orkney Schoeol, was a small
neadow, on the road that went to the south side. Dad used to know of
two Buffalo Wallows, one was about a quarter of a mile from the housge.
But there's no indication of them at all as the dust #torms have buricd
them, covering any evidence of existence. '

Mot far from the old housc there used te be a large slough where
ducks used to swim. Mv dad used to float an old raft on the slough
during his bovhood davs. Looking at the area, there's not even a hint
that there used to be a slough.

Walking around the ploughed field surrounding the house my dad
related how his mother used to go to the field and sit behind the stooks
and call the wild prairie chickens. She would do this by ilmitating their
whistle and thev would come real close to her. She would shoot enough
for supper. Tt was dad's job to take them te the house while she would
whistle for a couple more for supper,

What dnterogt

Tt brouw
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JOHN GEORGE STAINGER

JOUN GECORGE Stainger, son of Gilbert and Mary Stainger, was born in
Poplar Point, Manitoba, December 22, 1384, John teok up residence in the
Orkney District in 1891, with his father Gilbert Stainger and sister Mary
and brothers Peter and William. Their first home in the district was
that of the cld James Reid homestead {later to be known as the Humble
Ferguson farm). The early education of the family was received in the
first Orkney School, a log structure, which was later replaced by the
present stone building. John's prime employment, over the years, was
that of a grain buyer at points in Manitoba and Saskatchewan. Irom 1906-
1909 he operated a Blacksmith Shop in Orcadia. Between 1909 and 1916
he was employed as a foreman, building elevators for the Northern Crain
Co. From 1916-1922 he was the Elevator Agent for the Northern Grain Co.
in Orcadia. BHe also bought grain for the company in Birtle, Manitoba,
During the years 1922-1928 he operated a garage and was the local post-
master,a position he had previously taken over from one Fred Knight, in
1917.

John & Isabelle [Hall) Stainger

In 1917, Scptember 5, John G. Stainger married ISABELLE HALL, the
daughter of George and Margaret Hall (nec McKen). This marriage was
blessed with six children, EDITH, GEORGE, MARGARET, MILLICENT, BETTY and
LORNE.

In 1928, Jeohn G. Stainger bzcome the Elovator Agent for the new
Pocl Elevator in Orcadia, where he was emploved until his retirement in
1954,

John George Stainger passed away on April 19, 197Z.

Isabelle Fmma Stainger passed away on Japuary 27, 1973,

Both John and Isabelle Stainger rest in the Orkney Church Yard.
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EDITH married ART FINNIE. She had three children, Dennis Wilson of
itilbert Plains, Val of Tethbridge and Trev of Toronto.

Edith s known for sense of humour and alwavs had a ioke,
Mother's coffee pot was alwavs on the stove, She fed many a passerbv.

We alwavs had a gtranger at the meal table.

MILLICENT GRACE Stainger married SIDNEY McKAY and they reside in
Inion Bay, B.C.

Their children include Ralph and Janine McKay and daughter Casady,
Darbara and Leonard Barklev (deceased) and children Jamie and Sherrie,
Llovd and Dawn McKay and son Jesse, Keith McKav and Peggy McKay.

They all reside in Umion Bav, B.G.

BETTY LAUREEN Stainger married RONALD JAMES WILSON and they reside
in Yorkton, Sask.

Their children include Fraser of Yorkton, Maureen and Gerard Zent-

ner and children Matthew Gerard of Port Coquitlam, B.C., Marla of

Richmond, B.C. and Heather of Port Coquitlam, B.C,
MARGARET COWAN Stainger marvied DAN DRAPER (deceased). Margaret

resides in Yorkton, Sask. Their children include Donna Kyle (husband

deceased) and children Ashely Kyle and Alan Kvle of Regina, Kari and
Carl Wlock and children Rhonda, Dan and Karla of Brandon, Manitoba.

The Stainger Girls
L to RJ: Edith, Margaret, Millicent & Beity
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GEORGE GILBERT STAINGER

GEORGE GILBERT, born August 5, 1920, attended Orkney Public School
and the Orknev United Church. He graduated from the Yorkton Collegiate
Institute in 1939, then attended Bible College in Winnipeg and Regina
graduating in 1942. George was in the Air Force from 1942 to 1946.

He received his B.Ed from the University of Edmonton, Alta. and his

B.D. from McMaster University with pastorates in Ontaric, Alberta and
Manitoba., He taught school at St. Joseph's in Yorkton from 1968 to 1983.
He is now retired and living in Yorkton,

George & Inez (Sheane) Stainger
with daughters Sharon & Myrna.

George married INEZ ALTCE SHEANE in 1942. They have two children
SHARON (Longo)} Anaheim, California (grandchildren Christy 17 and Randy 14)
and MYRNA (Dodds) Yorkton, Sask. (grandchildren Heather 14 and Kevin 5).

George had many exciting and memorable days in the Orcadia/Orkney
District in school, community activities (sports, hunting, church and
Community Club). There were manv wonderful neighbours, friends who made
the Orkney District a real home and community,

LORNE and BUNNY STAINGER

LORNE Stainger, the son of John and Isabelle Stainger from Orcadia,
Sask. married BERTHA KORMOS (known as Bunny)}, daughter of Frank and
Julianna Kormos of Yorkton, Sask. They were married April 6, 1956 in
Calgary, Alta., where TLorne was then stationed with the Royal Canadian
Adir Force.

Lorne joined the Royal Canadian Air Force on Januarvy 27, 1950 and
during his career served in every province of Canada with the exception
of P.E.I., twice in the North West Territories and rwo tours in the U.S.A.,
four years in Maine and five vears in New York. During the period of
service in the U.8.A. he was attached to the Canadian Embassy in Washington,
D.C.

Lorne retired from the R.C,A.F. in February 1980 having attained the
rank of Major.
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Lorne & Bunny {Kormos) Stainger with children Donald, Lorna & John Jr.

Lorne and Bunny were blessed with three children, DONALD BLATINE,
TOXNA DELLE and JOHN GEORGE Stainger Jr.

WILLIAM G. and SELENA (SCHMALTZ) KITTEL

submitted byv: Veruna Brenner

WITLIAM G, Kittel or "Billy" was born March 8, 1859 in Warsaw,
Illinois. He immigrated to South Dakota and then on to Canada in 1890
and settlied in the Ebenezer area. o N
In 1893, he purchased the E1/2 of 4-26-4 W2. This land is now.
known as Pleasant Heights in Yorkton. Kittel Avenue has been named in
this area in his honour. . . ‘
Under the requirements of the "Naturalization Act" and having lived
in Canada for three years, he became a Canadian citizen October 26, 1894.
Tn June of 1905, Wm. Kittel acquired NW 34-25-5 ¥2 through the
provisions of the Homestead Act. | '
William married SELENA SCHMALT? {(an immigrant from Lublln} Poland). N
They had six childrew. LEVI (deceased); GEORGE (deceased); WILLIAM (deceased);
META (deceased) married John (Jack) Rudiger (deceased); FRANCES'(de?eased),
FLORABELLE married Foster Sinclair, who are now retired and living in
Churchbridge. 1 _
Tevi and George attended the Orkney Schoel for a short t%me. o
Selena passed awav January 20, 1917. After her death, Billy r?tlre
and moved into Yorkton. Billy died November 13, 1944. Both are buried
in the Yorkton City Cemeterv.
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THE PATTERSON FAMILY
JOHN and ANNIE PATTERSON

JOHN Patterscen was one of the early settlers in the Orkney District.
John was born in Westrav, Orkney Isles, Scotland in 1876.

John was the son of Charles and Isabella Parterson, he had threc
brothers Tom, Frank and George, two sisters Betsv and Mary. Charles
Patterson died at a fairly early age and the family responsibilities
then rested on the sons.

Frank, the elder brother immigrated to Canada and settled in the
Orkney District where he engaged in farming. John went to sea at the
early age of 14 vears, he sailed in the North Sea on a fishing vessel
the Arcadia for three years. Life was tough in the North Atlantie for
the fishermen on the sailing ships, severe storms took the lives of
many men and a large number of those ships went down in the ice cold
waters of the Atlantic during storms.

John decided he'd had enough of the ocean life and followed his
older brother to Canada in 1893, he too settled in the Yorkton area and
comuenced farming. John homesteaded on the farm that Tom Patterson now
farms, )

When John got established on the homestead, his mother, brother Tom
and family, two sisters and vounger brother George came to Canada and
were cared for by Frank and John. Tom was a stonemason and plasterer.

Annie Patterson was born in Hamilton, Scotland in 1886. She was the
eldest daughter of James and tary Ann Halliday and immigrated to Canada
in 1907. There were five children in the family, Annie, Joe, Tom, Kate
and Peter.

Annie (Halliday) married John in 1908 and settled on the homestead
with John. John and Annie Patterson had ten children. MARY (MAREL) the
eldest in the family married Carl Borden (deceased). Mabel now resides
in Yorkten, their family was comprised of three sons and a daughter.

CHARLES (deceased} the eldest son and Janie (nree Gilchrist) farmed
at Foam Lake, Sask. where they raised a family of three boys and two
girls,

CATHERINE (KATE) married Jack Pottinger (deceased) and lived in Flin
Flon, Manitoba. Jack was employed by the Hudsen Bay'Mining and Smelting
Company. Kate resides in Flin Flon and they had a family of two boys.

LOUISE(deceased) did not marry and remained at home with her mother
and father. Lou took an active part in local affairs and spent many vears
as a Director on the Yorkton Exhibition Board.

JIM and Christina (nee Purves) farmed in the Yorkton area until 1977
when Jim passed away. Christina{Tina) now resides in Yorkton. Jim served
in the Army (Tank Corps) serving in Canada, England and Europe.

RUBY ROWLEY (nee Patterson) and Harold farmed in the Yorkton District
until their recent retirement and are now living in Yorkton. The farm is
now being farmed by their eldest son Tom. Ruby and Harold have two sons
and & daughter.

JOHN and Hazel (nee Skea) resided on a farm for a short period until
John took employment with the Post Office 4in Yorkton. John served in tha
Army with the Cameron Highlanders and was wounded in Falaise, France.
John passed away in 1988, Hazel resides in Yorkton. Thev had a famnily of
3 sons and 3 daughters.
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WALTER and Phyllis (nee Bacon) {(deceased) farmed in the Orcadia
District until moving to Victoria, B.C., where Walter took up emp]qyment
;ﬁtb the Departnent of Highways and Phyl, a registered nurse,'contlTued
nursing until her death. They had a family of 4 boys and a girl. Walter

resides in Victoria.

Walter & Phyllis (Bacon) Patterson :
Back Row (L to R}): James, Calvin, Kelly and Don Front; Sharleen, Phyllis & Walter.

DAY and Helen (nee Johnston) reside in Regina, Sask. Dan also L

served his country in the Royal Canadian Artillery. They have a family
and a girl.

o foééL?;?sthe youigest of the Patterson family, farms the home farm.
Colin continues to raise shorthorn cattle and Clydesdale herses, a?d Loss
recently was named as Clydesdale Man of the'Yea? f?r'Saskatchewan For ’ d.

JOBN (B0OSS) Patterson was an enterpr181ng.1nd1v1dual, he part1c1?a e
in numerous land transactions during his lifetime. John wgs one of the
first to own a steam engine in the Yorkton District. He 41d custom
threshing for neighbours in the Steam Era, then advanéed 1?to the ﬁastage,
for many years did custom breaking of land and threshing with the f?? ent
Parr 30;60 and Waterloo separator, He then advanc§d to the more e_ icien
(Wallis) Massey Harris tracteor and separatE¥ ani did cujtom threshing

i -1 's when the modern combine took over.

untlIWEZE iiii}segiged in the Yorkton area there was no.railroad and_the
Citv of Yorkton was then located north of its present site. Early pioneers
hadito travel to Whitewood for supplies. This meant at least a three day

] of horses
trip by oxen. For those who were fortunate to own a good team ,
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they could make the trip in a long day or part of a second dav, The earlwv
settlers had to make at Jeast two trips a vear, one in the spring and
another in the fall to purchase encugh food and necessary items to CATrTy
ther through the cold winters. John Patterson tcok part in many of theso
treks for supplies,

John Patterson often told stories of the winter of 1506-1907, the
coldest and most severe winter on record. At that time thev lived on
the homestead which Tommy Patterson presently owns. Snow was up to the
roof of the barn, they were forced to tunnel through the snow in order rto
get feed and water to the cattle. A number of farmers lost their lives
in the blizzards and hundreds of livestock died of starvation throughout
the province that winter. He told stories of farmers that worked their
land with oxen. Quite often during the hot summers when flies were bad,
the oxen would take off into a slough to rid themselves of insects and
to get cooled off, oxen were difficult to control under such circumstances.

John and Annie Patterson were highly respected by many people, they
extended a helping hand to people who were less fortunate. 1In the de-
pression years (hungry thirties), destitute farmers from the south would
receive food and lodging from the Pattersons, their horses would be tended
to in preparation for the trek north to Kelvington, Porcupine Plain and
places beyond.

The Patterson (Pollock) farm which was located off #9 lighway about
nine miles north of Yorktonr and situated between the ONR Railroad and
the highway was a stopping off place for a meal by many hobos and tran-
sients who were riding the rods and walking the highwavs, Manv of those
unfortunate people will remember John(Boss) and Maw Patterson for their
kindress. There was always rcom for another plate on the table.

In those earlv davs, farmers depended to a great extent on neighbours.
They helped each other in so many ways; field work, threshing, cutting
and sawing the supply of wood for the winter. John (Boss) and Annie
Patterson were always available to people in need.

In the long cold winters when there was no means of communication,
John and Annie would have a neighbouring couple come to stay for a week.
Time would be spent plaving cards, veading and enjoving the good meals
that were alwavs availahble. They, in turn, would be invited to return
the visit of that neighbour and enjoy their hospitalitv. ‘

John (Boss) and Annie Patterson can be looked upon as an example
to the young people of today and in the future. The& will long he
remembered for their part in the development of the Orknev District.

MABEL (PATTERSON) BORDEN
submitted bv: Mabel Borden

MABEL Patterson married CARI. BORDEN on October 30, 1939. Carl was
from Sheffields, Nova Scotia. Carl passed away on June 2, 1979,

We have four children, JOHN of Toronto, Ontario, BRUCE of Swift Current,
Sask., KEN on home farm in Wallace, Manitoba and MARY MeDougall farming
with husband and son east of Yorkton.

I attended Orkney School as did my brothers and sisters.
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CHARLES GEORGE PATTERSON
suhmitted by:  Janie Patterson

CHARLES GRORGE Patterson was born on December 27, 1910, the
eldast son of John Patterson and Ann Halliday. He was born in the Orknev
District and went to Orkney School, He had an older sister Mabel. She
married Carl 3erden and theyv farmed at Saltcoats.

Charlie Zarmed in the Orknev Distrist until 1944, when he moved to
¥oam Lake, Sask. lle farmed the land where Charlie Fitzsimmons had
homesteaded.  Then it was farmed by John and Myrtle McLean.

He was helped to move by Leslie Muir, it was near the end of April
1644, He started with six horses, Then in 1946 he bought a tractor
partnership with Bob Gilchrist.

. in 1950 he married JANIE GILCHRIST and they raised a family of five.
KAREN ANNE was the oldest and then RUBY GRACE came to join her sister,
We have alwayvs called her Grace. Later three sons came to join the familv.
The oldest oﬁe is CAMERON CHARLES, then ANGUS JAMES is the second scn
and the voungest one is ANDREW FRANK,

in

) - . g
Charles & Janie {Gilchrist) Patterson -
ca. 1968 Charles’ & Janies’ Children - 1965
- Back Row (L to R} Karen, Grace
Front: Cameron, Andy & Angus.

Karen is a registered nurse, she is married to Tom Nicholls and they
have three childreﬂ. Their names are Jennifer, Jeff and Sara, Thev are
living in Dalmeny now, where the children go to school, Tom works aF
Oliver Lodge as a physiotherapist, Karen works part time at University
Hospital in the neo-nacal intensive care unit. She also works for the
Nightingale Rursing Service in Saskatoon. '

 Grace went through for a lawver, graduating from York University in
Toronto. She married Rene Sorell, who graduated with the same class.
Rene is n corporate lawyer in the firm of MeCarthy and MeCarthy. Grace
is at present Vice—chairman of the Environmental Asscssment Board of
Ontario. They have two daughters Jessica and Emilyv and live in Toronto.
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‘ Cameron and Angus farm. They raise registered Horned Hereford cattle
and have a feedlot where they custom feed cattle. They grow mainly barley
and sorghum for silage.

Andy Is an Agricultural Mechanic and works for the John Deere deal-
ership in Foam Lake. He is alsc taking heavy duty mechanics by appren-
ticeship.

Charlie passed away June 23, 1982. He had not been well for quite
sometime, as he suffered from bronchial asthma and cancer. He was laid
to rest in the cemetervy in Foam Lake.

JAMES HALLIDAY PATTERSON

JAMES HALLIDAY Patterson was born November 20, 1914. He was the
second son of John and Annie Patterson. He received his education at
Orkney School. Following this he farmed on the family farms with his
brothers.

In 1940 he joined the Army, going overseas. He returned home in
October 1945,

He took up farming in 1946 in the Wallace Municipality, north of
Yorkton,

In 1951 he married CHRISTINA PURVES and thev centinued to farm.
Jim was fond of farming, which included Clvdesdale horses and Shorthorn
cattle.

In 1975 Jin took 1l with cancer and passed awav in 1977.

JOHN and HAZEL PATTERSON
submitted by: Hazel Patterson

JOHN was the son of John and Annie Patterson. He was born on
April 18, 1917. He received his education at the Orkney School. He
worked on the farm until he joined the Armed Forces, He enlisted with
the Prince Albert Cameron Highlanders for five vears, He then served
overseas and was wounded in France, Then was discharged in March 1945,
He was united in marriage to HAZEL SKEA on November 19, 1945. They
were blessed with six children, three girls and three boys, PATRICIA,
WILLTAM, DENNTS, MURIEL, MARGARET and ROBERT.

John and Hazel farmed for ten vears and then moved into Yorkton.
John worked for Massey Ferguson, then went as a letter carrier for the
Post Office until his health gave out, He then became a Commissionaire
and worked at the Radar Base and later at the hospital,

He took a stroke in 1973 and had to retire. ie passed away in 1980,

RUBY (PATTERSON) and HAROLD ROWLEY
submitted by: Ruby Rowley

My father, John Patterson who was originally from the Orkney Tslands
immigrated to Canada in the 1890's, My mother, Aan Halliday, who immi-
grated here from Hamiltonm, Scotland in 1907 married my father the foli-
owing year in Yorkton. They settled on a farm in the Orkney District
where they raised six sons and four daughters, All their children
attended the Orknevy School.
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Harold & Ruby {Patterson) Rowley & Family
Back Row (L to R} Colin Patterson, Charlie Rowley, Faye & Tem Rpwley, Sid Gray
Front Row: Susan Rowley with Ashiey, Harold & Ruby Rowley, Colin & Janet Gray.

I, the voungest of the girls married HARCLD ROWLEY in 1943. Hareld
originated from the Foam Lake/Sheho area. He had been in the Orknev
District since 1937, when he bought the Joe Caldwell homestead. We sett-
led on this farm, raising two soms and a daughter. In 1987 we retired
off the farm and now live in Yorkton, Our oldest son, TOM took over our
farm. Our other son CHARLIE and daughter JANET also live in Yorkton.

We have three grandchildren, Tammy, Brian, Colin and a great granddaughter
Ashley.

DAN and HELEN PATTERSON

DAN Patterson was born in Yorkton, Saskatchewan on February 15, 1921.
e was raised and educated in the Orcadia District, attending Orkney
School.

Dan played an active part in sports and enjoyed playing hockey and
softball, bhe also enjoved hunting and shecoting,

In December 1940, Dan joined the Canadian Army and served in the
Roval Canadian Artillery (BSM) until January 1946.

Dan married HELEN JOHNSTON, R.¥., of Winnipeg in 1943. They have
five children. GEORGE, named after great uncle George Patterson,
is married to Colleen (nee Horaer). Theyv reside in Moose Jaw and have
two children, Megan and Hugh. George is a graduate in Law and practices
his profession in Moose Jaw, Sask.

DAN (JUNIOR) and Corinne {(nee Welke) presently reside in Regina
where he 1s General Manager of the Farm Land Security Board. Ie also
has a farming operation in the Briercrest, Spring Valley area. Dan
had his Bachelor of Science B.Sc. He also spent three years with the
Farm Credit Corporation. They have three boys, Duncan and David and
Steven (twins).

JOHKN and Sheila (nee Craddock). John is named after his grandfather
John (Boss) Patterson and is now residing in Calgary. He is engaged in
the o0il and gas industry and has his Master's Degree in Environmental
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Engincering. He is presently emploved with Western 0ilfield Environ-
mental Services (M.0.E.S5.), an engineering firm in which he is also a

partner. They have two children, Daniel James and Heather,

Dan & Helen {Johnston) Patterson & Family
with children George, Dan Jr., John, Marshall and Sheila

MARSHALL {D.V.M.) and Maxine (nee¢ Lowmeyer). Marshall and Maxzine
have two children, Colin and Rebecca. They reside on the ranch at Spring
Valley. Marshall is also employed as Veterinarian for Queensbury Downs
Racetrack in Regina.

SHEILA Dickey (Patterson). Sheila (psychiatric nurse) and her husband
Dr. R. Dickey reside at 100 Mile House, B.C. where Rod is a general prac-
titioner. They have four children, Breanna, Mari, Rys and Michaella.

When Dan Patterson was discharged from the army, he decided to go
into the decorating business. le and Helen moved from Winnipeg te Yorkton
where he started his own business. They then moved to Foam Lake where Dan
operated a retail paint and floor covering store and contracted in de-
corating and floor covering until 1955. Dan tock an active part in comm-
unity affairs, served on Town Council for four years, was active in the
Canadian Legion, and served as president for 2 years. Dan also was active
in the Foam Lake Air Cadets, served as drill instructor for a number of
years.

Dan transferred his business to Moose Jaw and operated in the same
field until 1976. While in Moose Jaw, Dan was active in community affairs,
serving with the Kiwanis Club, Victorian Order of Nurses, United Nations
Association and was active in the Conservative Party,

Dan purchased a ranch in the Spring Valley area in 1961, which they
operated until 1983. Dan raised Aberdeen Angus cattle and then took part
in the breeding of the imported Simmental Breed, he was a fouunding member
of the Simmental Association of Saskatchewan. Dan showed Simmental and
sold breeding stock in Saskatchewan, Alberta, Towa and Missouri for a
aumber of vears. Dan and Helen now reside in Regina.
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THE PATTERSON — VAUGHAN FAMILY

submitted by:

Marion Vaughan

Charles & Isabella {Seatter) Patterson
with John & Betsy (standing) and Mary & George (front},

Tom & Jemima (Harcus) Patterson

Our grandfather, THOMAS PATTERSON, was born on the Isle of Westray
Orkuey Islands, Scotlaund, on December 5th, 1876, the eldest of the sixd,
chiidren of CHARLES Patterson and ISABELLA Seatter. |

He married JEMIMA HARCUS and their children were: our mother, BETSY
JANE (better known as JEANNIE), JOANNE and CHARLES. B

Tom's two brothers had proceedad him to Yorkton, Assiniboia. North-
west Territories; FRANK in 1892 and JOHN some vears later, follo&ed by
the'extended family group in May 1902, including Tem, Jemima and their
family, Tom's widowed mother, sisters BETSY (Mrs. William Skea) au& HARY
(Mrs. James Logan) and brother GEORGE.

_ They encountered a very rough passage, their children contracting
%Carlet fever and measles, complicated by pneumounia, Ten mounth old
gharles succumbed and was buried in Halifax. The girls were still very
L1 when they finally reached their destination. N
Ra They came to the home of FRANK Patterson on section 20, Township 26,
ange 4, west of the 2nd, TFrom there, the girls attended Orkneyv School
and their father was a "once a week' caretaker of the church for 50¢ a
Mouth while their Aunt Mary was caretaker of the school for $l.50 a month!
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The house was a large two-storey brick house and one morning Mry.,
William Wiseman, driving an Indian PONy was proceeding to Torkton.  Wihen
they came to the Patrersan house, the pony refusel to pass and Mre. Wiseman
was Lorced to return home,  Whether the animal coul
horsey premonition, they didn't know but shorgly

was called to lend assistance as the Family discovered flames leaping out
under the eaves.

d smell smoke or had a
thoreartter Mre. Wisemnan

Jemima attempted to carry out some of her dishes which her sea-faring
brothers-in-law had brought her from various parts of the world, carrying
them in her apron. However, Tom called to her that the roof was falling
in, so0 she had to drop them and scramble cut a window,

They had a number of eacounters wich bears, returning from Yorkton
one day to find a heavy metal cream can by the door, crushed in with claw
holes through the metal,

Great-grandma was sitting by the door Peeling
when she saw a bear up on the stable roof looki
the sod at a bull tied below, Needless to say, the animal was terrified,.
One of the men shot at the bear but it ran away through the whegt field.

Altogether, five members of the Seatter famiiv came to Orkney
District: George Seatter, who married Lena Erickson, came in the 1880's;
Elizabeth, who married Nels Neilsen: William and Ellen Seatter, who
returned to Scotland; Tsabella Patterson and a brother John, who worked

for several farmers in the district for sometime and also returned to
Scotland.

Jemima died April 14, 1906, at the age of 38,
Orkney gravevard.

otatoes another dav
ng down through a hole in

and is buried in the

Tom & Jeannie Patterson

Tom eveutually moved to Yorkton to work
contractor in company with Wes Neelin and Hug
house for him, first on Betts Avenue and |
until marrying cur father, also Thomas
zorth of Orcadia. oOur father also e

4s a stone mason and later a
h Mc¥enzie, Jeaunie kept
ater at 70 Laurier Avanue,
Patterson and moving to a farm
migrated from Westravy in 1907,
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Pautterson,

Frank & Marion {(Patterson) Vaughan & Family

j i ; ith Vaughan; Dave Bright
; Robert & Daniel Kirkham; Frank & Kglt .
?a?k ngnréerso(\’jéuggas)r, Kathy & Janice Kirkham; Marion (Patterson) holding Jordon,
Frone: Lise, Fr Angeta, Gail (Hillier} & Alia Vaughan; Gail (Vaughan) Bright.

LOBNA JEAN, boru August bth, 1949, is
: f 211y, Sas and is now
ied to Dave Bright, originally from Pelly, Sask., and ‘
marriec ave ight ;

We have three children.
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Director of Legal Aid in Yorkton. Lorna is Director of Tinance in the
business office of the Yorkton Unioun HRospital. They built a new housc
o an acreage oo the farm.

EFITH DANTEL, born October Sth, 1952, is an Allied agent and operates
Vaughan's Moving and Storage Ltd. in Yorkton. He is married to the.formor
Gail Hillier. Thev have three children, Angela, Alis aund Jdordan, and
also live on aun acreage on the old farmvard,

FRAWCES LE%, born November 13, 1952, married Daniel Kirkham, a
registered seed grower. Thev live on a farm four miles north of Saltcoats
and have four children, Robert, Lisa, Kathy and Janice.

We lost an infant daughter, JANICE MARTON, born June 26, 1957, who
died from influenza meningitis on November 4, 1957 and is buried in the
Yorkton City Cemetery.

While we haven't lived full time i the district, we have enjoved
good times and good neighbours and are happy to add our names to é )
valuable historv of the district.

FRANK and BESSIE PATTERSON

submitted by: Marion Vaughan (great niece)

Frank Patterson Bessie (Draper) Patterson

FRANCIS SEATTER Patterson was born February 17, 1871 on the Isle of
Westray, Orkney Islands, Scotland, the second son of Charles and Isabella
(Seatter) Patterson.

He immigrated to Yorkton, Assiniboia, North West Territorics in
1892 working with his uncle George Seatter.

He was joined by his brother John in 1894 and for some time thev
ranched at Fishing Lake, his brand was registered as F.0.P. )

He returned to the Orknev District and in a relatively short period
owned numerous quarters of land in the area. He made 2 home on 20-26-4
Wind and there his widowed mother, brother Tom and familyv, sisters Betsy
(Skea) and Mary (Logan) as well as his youngest brother George came in )
May 1902.

228

1607 that Frank Patterson

=

The Yorkton Enterprise notes on March 29
had returnad ter spending three months in Scofland,  On the 17th of
February 190% thev reported that Trank Patterson and George Seatter left
for Winnipeg to take in a bonspiel, obviocusly travelling had become much
casier!
Frank married BESSIE DRAPER, whose father and brother Frank came to
the Yorkton area in 1904 from the United States., The writer still treasures
some of Bessic’'s school books with her name and '‘Lincoln School Mandan,
North Dakota" written on the cover,
They had two daughters, MYRTLE the cldest and BAZEL , who died at '
age 11l. Frank and Bessie lived at 140 Simpson Street in Yorkton Ffor
many vears and in 1936 retired to Victoria, B.C, Their Myrtle married
NORMAN BEXRUD and they have two sons and a dauchter. Frank visited back
in Yorkton at least two occasions and Bessie was back once. Both passed
awayv 1in Victoria and are buried there.
Following is a letter written by Frank in 1895 as part of a project
bv clergyman Hugh Hamilton to serve as a comparison of the COrcadian imm-—
igrant and their counterparts who chose to remain with the "auld sod'.

c

"T was born inm Westrav Island, Orknev, Scotland, on 17th Feb, 1R71
and when able to work engaged in inland fishing for some time, and after-
wards engaged mvself to a farmer,

After some time I was determined to go to 2 foreign land, and I sailed
fer Canada. I arrived at Quebec 3 vears ago last spring, and went by
rail to Yorkton where a number of my friends weve livins., T labored
with a relative for some months till T would learn the way of the
P then hived cut for $15 a month and board., This situation lasted
six months. #ith this money T bougcht two cows, two vearlings and two
calves, leaving a small balance unpaid. T took this stock to my relativa's
and staved with bim during spring looking after his and mv stock. At
haying timc T got $25 a month and board, and through the fall sor $22
a month and beard working with ranchers icoking after their cattle. In .
the winter of that vear 92-93 T worked in the lumber camp, getting $20 i
a month and board.  This lasted for 10 weeks. With the money thus earned
I cleared the balance off my stock, and spent some of the remainder pur-
chasing & proper equipment for the Canadian winter. I did some breaking
on my own homestead till having time, when I again hired out at 323 a
month and board for 5 momths. Through the winter 93-94 I got $15 a month i
(a1l found) drawing hay for stock, When the spring of 94 came T again
set te work at my own place, breaking more land. Before I finished I had
completed 25 acres which T now have readv for crop. For the succeeding
5 months I got $25 a month and board working at a ranch. With the money
thus carned I purchased another cow, calf and heifer, as well as a
mare and a foal. Altogether through purchase and increase, T own todav
4 mare and a colt, a team of oxen, 3 cows, 1 two yvear old steer, 3 vear-
Llings, 3 calves and 1 bull, 20 head in all.

I find the winters very cold, but with proper clothing whicsh T have
been able to get, T am able to keep myself comfortable.

What [ have mentioned in the preceding statement has been acquired
entirelv in this country, as I had not a quarter dollar when I arrived.

Frank Patterson
Orkneyv, Yorkton, Assa. Can. .
Feh. 25th, 1895 -
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GEORGE and JANE PATTERSON

submitted byv: Marion Vaughan (grest niece)

GEORGE Patterson was born on the Isle of Westray, Orknev Islands,
Scotland in 1883, the fourth son and voungest child of Charles and Isabella
(Seatter) Patterson.

After the death of his father, he came to Canada with his mother and
other family members in May 1902,

In 1922 he married JANE (JEAN) BEWES who was also born on the Isle
of Westray on February 24, 1889 and immigrated to the Yorkton arca in 1920,

They had a son PATRICK, who died in infancy in 1924. They farmed
the north half of 31-26-4 W2nd until George's death on October 13, 1945,

George was a lifelong friend of Dave Fergus and every Saturday night
you would see George's Model Ford wending its' way to Daves house on
McFarlane Avenue. Invariably Dave's dog would he sitting some distance
down the street awaiting the visitors,

RNeighbours recall George and Dave building a log chicken house on
George's farm. It wasn't very big but took a long time to build, they
had to stop for frequent "refreshment breaks",

In 1949 Jean married JULIUS HANSEN of Theodore, Sask., who pre-
deceased her in 1967. Jean passed awav in the Jubilee Home in Foam Take
on September 29, 1977 at the age of 83,

George, Jean and son are buricd in the Orknev gravevard.

George & Jeannie (Bewes} Patterson
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ROBERT and OLIVE SCHOLLIE

i ! ' i I - <1 Tive Scho! Le
submitted by: Marion Vaughan on behzls of Olive Schollie

Robert & Qlive {Fisher) Schollie

ROBERT PATTERSON Schollie was born in Glasgow, Scotland on Mav 25,

1895, the son of Jeremiah and Catherine (Patterson) Schollie.
In 1911 &t the age of sixteen, he immigrated to Yorktom, Sask.

District. He then served overseas for four vears during W.W., I.

to
his uncle Thomas Patterson and werked for various farmers in the Orknev

In 1923 he married OLIVE FISHER, who had come from the Saskatoon
District in 1921. Olive worked fer several farm families, including the

YelIntyres, who farmed Section 32-26-4 W2ad.

Thev lived in the same yvard as Tom and Jeannie Patterson until after
the birth of their first son ROBERT, then moved to the south half of 30-
20-4 Wind. They carried on a farming operation there for several vears

and LAURA and GREORGE were born during that time,

- i t P B LI [ A
They then moved into Yorkton where Bob became one of Yorkton's first
b 1 - ; A - ] oy T 3y (21 o
letter carriers, a job in which he continued for 26 vears. Here GRACE and

T were added to the tamily.

As witness to the effiency of Scottish records, Bruce, a son of

George and Audrey Schollie of Snow Lake, Manitoba, had made his way

to

Britain and was informed that he would not be allowed employment unless

he could prove British ancestry. ) i
Bruce procecded to Glasgow and 92 vears after his grnndL?Lhcr

f

obtained a cony
in London. . L
Bob passed away in Yorkton February 29, 1980 and Olive resides

4 Senlor Citilzens Unit.
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THE KNIGHT FAMILY

submitted bv: Annie {(Knight) Hamiiton

Fred & Mary (Brown) Knight
with daughter Annie & dog ‘Flurry’ - ca. 1911

Orcadia before the 1920's was the perfect place to spend a child-

hood. My first memories are of Orcadia and my pareunt's store and post
office.

My father, FRED Knight had left his parents' heme in Exeter, Ontario

in 1894 at age nineteen to go to Kansas, U,S.A, and later to Celorado,

in search of adventure., He made a living by teaching piano and vielin

and tuning pianos and organs. The country was new and exciting and he

ioved it. But he was still a Canadian. Seven years later and homesick
he answered his mother's pleas and returned to Exeter. There he taught
music, met the lady who was to become my mother, aad bought a store and
opened 1it.

I think he felt smothered in that very staid conventional Oatario
town. He felt the urge to g0 west again. He went as far as Orcadia
and homesteaded on N.E. 1/4 of section 34-26-5 just north and a little
west of Orcadia. He had a store built which burned down with all con-
tents and most of his personal possessions amoong which was his beloved
violin., He rebuiit the store and added Orcadia's first post office.
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His fiancé, MARY BROWN met him in Winnipeg. They were married and he
brovght her to Qrcadia.

Mary made friends with the neighbours and customers, joined the
Orkiey Ladies Aid, ran the post office and looked after the store when
Fred was teaching music in Springside. She helped with the garden,
raised chickens, turkevs and ducks and kept a uneat house, She loved
to drive IFred's mare Rosie, Rosie got caught in a harb wire fence and
had to be shot, the first tragedv after the fire, Later Rosie's colt
May, a sorrel, became their driver. Mother kept a cne line diary in

Dr. Chase's Almanac, I have learned much frem irt.
One room behind the store served as kitchen, dining and living
quarters. There was a shed in the back used as a summer kitchen. Here

was the wood box, an extra cupboard, a place for tubs, pails, a snow
barrel and innumerable other necessities. Upstairs we had a large
storage area curtained off and three bedrooms, The store ran the length
of the big front window, A large coal burning stove stood at the back
near the house door. The post office was in the opposite corner by a
big front window. Its many mica windows giowed cheerily in the winter
time. T could peek through the post office wicket but was never allowed
behind the store counter. The store carried staples and a few luxuries
such as chocolate bars and Wrigley's gum.

Time to introduce myself, ANNIE, Fred went west again to homestead
but only as far as Jansen. Mary went back home to Exeter, I was bhorn
in my grandmother's house in 1909. Mother brought me to the Jansen home-
stead when I was five months old. T was the first baby baptized in the
little, newly built Church of England., Tn 1912 when the required three
vears of proving up were finished we went back to Orcadia and took over
the store and post office again, Mr. Bill Bagg had looked after things
in my parents absence,

Now Maryv had a little girl to look after besides all her other duties,.

I was often the only child in the little settlement, T wandered free as
a bird. There were two grain elevators in Orcadia, The men who operated
them were my friends. 1 must have been a little pest, [f I didn't show
up at home when expected it was taken for granted that I was either
"visiting" Jack Stainger or Bill Bagg. T held them both in high regard.
It was to Jack I ran for coasolation when I broke my doll. Jimmy Cannon
was there that time no doubt trying to keep a straight face.

Ellen McKen was my playmate. There was a path across the field be-
tween McKen's and the store,

Student ministers came from Scotland in the early vears to spend a
year or so preaching in the stone Orkney Preshbyterian Church. We had a

"spare" bedroom so the young men boarded with us. There was a Mr. Roberf-

son or Robinson who left to go home to see his folks in Scotland but was
coming back for a second term at Orkney and to be with us. He took sick
oun the ship, developed pueumonia and died before the ship decked. My
parents had been foud of him and were saddened by his death as the whole
district must have been. This was before my time. But I remembher a Mr,
Sutherland, an elderlv man referred to as "Sunday School Sutherland",
who came down c¢n the train from Yorkron Sunday mornings, held a service
in our store and returned on the evening train te Yorkton.

Orcadia's and Orkney's first resident minister was Mr., Samucl Prenter.
tle arrived on the train one evening from Scotland with his wife and little

son Sammy. Our spare bedroom was the only accommodation in the town so
they stayed with us until the manse was made ready. Mr, Prenter was a
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serious, verv dedicated voung man with little sense of humor but a strict
sense of dutv, He was gilven to long morning pras
mother watched with resiguation as her bread dJdous
toppled over the pan before the Reverend concluded nis devotions,

My father liked to play Solitaire, A deck of cards was always on
the sideboard. Mrs. Prenter would slip down to cur house, sink into my
father's captain's chair, pick up the cards, lav them out and enioy a
game or two.  Xo need to tell us that Samuel woulc have no cards in his
house, Theyv were works of the devil.

Here is a memorv T would like to share with vou., Tt was getting oo
to Christmas 1913. T was four vears old. My mother and Mrs. Wood had
been delegated to drive to the Hudson's Bav Store in Yorkton to shop for
gifts to be given to the Sunday School children a*t the Christmas program
held in the school. 1 was allowed to go along. The rov department in
that store was a child's dreamland. While the ladies chose tovs 1 wander—
ed dlissfuliy arcund. T was crazy about dolls, never had enough so when
I saw them add a dol! to their collection T hoped it was intended for me,
Later at home mv mother explained that the doll was for Phvllis Wood. 7T
was to get a set of doll dishes. I was bitterly disappointed. When 1
learned that T was expected to recite at the program, I rebelled. 1
learned the recitation, hated it and announced that ne way would 1 say 1t.
When the big night arrived nyv father could not take mother and me so My,
Prenter volunteered, Mrs. Prenter was staving home with her new baby girl.

The school was 1 magic place lit up with coal adil lamps.  There were
paper decoratiouns, and there was the tree, and there hanging from a branch
was the doll. 1 those years candles were secured to the tree Tor 1llumina-
tion. This tree had many candles,

The program began. There were dialogues, The Ladies of the Aid pre-
sented a comedy called "Filling The Missiovarv Barrel'. The Young People
had a humorous dialogue. 1 remember Billie McKer dressed as a woman pre-
tending to wash the platform floor. Mother and Mrs. Wood sang a duct.

The voungsters had recitations and songs, Mr. Pezzani playved an instro-
ment, was it a French Horun? Came my turn. Mr. Prenter lifted me up on

the platform. I stood there and true to my threat would not utter a word.
A minute or so passed and Mr. Prenter set me down on the tloor with a
decided lump. I was in disgrace. At the conclusion of the program all

the candled on the tree were lighted. One candle was too close te the doll.

e morninse

rose and rose and

Its dress was slightly singed. T accepted my set of dishes with good grace, 1

3till have the cream and sugar pileces.

When the presents were all given out one of the young men announced
that a dance would follow. Mr. Preoter was furious. Dancing was devil'ys
work. He strode out of the school, got his team out of the barn, hitched
them up and was last reperted galloping towards Orcadia, forgetting mother
and me. T think it was Humble Ferguson who saw us home that night,

it was time for me to g6 te school, My father tried to et a school
in Orcadia but there was not the required number of children in the area,
so I started at Orknev, It was Mshank's mare'" for me most of the time.

I walked up the railroad track 1u good weather, Ta bad T staved home. If
the sectiou men cp their jigger happened by T was in luck and gratefully
accepted a ride with them. Tater T joined by the Pezzani children. Some-
times Charlie McKen would bring me home behind him op horseback,

L was the voungest in the school and alone in my grade. The teacher
was Miss McTavigh., She taught me to read. She was a strict disciplinarian
and hard on some of the bovs. T remember school closed at 3:30 with the
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singing of, "Now the dav is over, Night is drawing nigh, Shadows of the
evening, Steal across the skyv, ete,',

War broke out. 1 think there were about Lwenty voung mesn around
Orcadia who jolned up almost as soon as war was declared, T remember
Ellen McKen clinging to her brother Billie in the little waiting room
when be leit in 1914, T remember the sadness when word came that Billy
would not be coming home. It was my father's dutv to relav the sad news
when a telegram came saving one of our boys had been killed in action. 1
had never been afraid of the dark or of anvthing else but listening to
horror stories of the war began to affect me,

It was known that 1If you arrived at the store for groceries and mail
around meal time, vou could generally expect to be iavited into the house
to share what we had., Mother would roast a turkev on special occasions,
and bachelors in town would be invited, We were so much a part of the
community that when we left we missed that togetherness. My parents had
contributed to the daily lives of the distrier people. T know thev were
the happiest vears of my pareats lives.

Io 1917 our store was sold to Jack and Tsabelle Stainger, They kept
the post office too. We lived on the homestead for a short time and I
attended Grunert School riding there on my ponyv, The terrible flu of
1918 broke out and schools were closed. We were fortunate but mapv were
not.

We sold the homestead to Adolf Lehman ic June 1919 and returned to
Jansen.  Then we went to Victoria for some months and back to Jansen,
Mother died there in 1924 and my father in 1935, They were both buried
in Exeter.
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